
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Audit, Pensions and 
Standards Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 21 March 2017 
7.00 pm 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1 - HAMMERSMITH TOWN HALL 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition 

Councillor Iain Cassidy (Chair) 
Councillor Ben Coleman 
Councillor PJ Murphy 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Michael Cartwright 
 

Councillor Michael Adam 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill 
Councillor Mark Loveday 
Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 13 March 2017 
 
 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee 
Agenda 

 
21 March 2017 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 10 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2016. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee. 
 

 

4.   CERTIFICATION OF GRANT CLAIMS 2015-16 
  

11 - 19 

5.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016-17  
 

20 - 40 

6.   HEALTH AND SAFETY CHECKS - PROGRESS UPDATE 
  

41 - 75 

7.   RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
 
 

76 - 100 



 

8.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN AND 
OUTSTANDING RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT 
  

101 - 107 

9.   INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2017-18 
  

108 - 120 

10.   INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT  
 

121 - 135 

11.   INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - MITIE CONTRACT QUALITY 
ASSURANCE 2016-17 
  

136 - 161 

12.   INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - TRADING ACCOUNTS 2015-16 
  

162 - 177 

13.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following meeting dates are scheduled: 

 21 June 2017 

 20 September 2017 

 6 December 2017 

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Audit, Pensions and 
Standards Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 7 December 2016 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Iain Cassidy (Chair), PJ Murphy, Guy Vincent, 
Michael Adam, Nicholas Botterill, Donald Johnson and Michael Cartwright 
 
Officers: Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Finance Director), Peter Carpenter (Interim Director 
for Treasury and Pensions), Paul Monforte (Head of Operations), Nicholas Austin 
(Director for Environmental Health), Michael Sloniowski (Risk Manager), Moira Mackie 
(Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk, and Insurances), Andrew Hyatt (Head of Fraud), 
Geoff Drake (Senior Audit Manager), Ian Heggs (Director for Education), Dave 
McNamara (Children’s Services Director for Finance), and David Abbott (Scrutiny 
Manager) 
 
External: Mat Bishop (Managing Director at MITIE), Lee Ginger (Director at MITIE) and 
Ian Webb (Senior Partnership Manager at MITIE) 
 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2016 were agreed as a correct 
record and were signed by the Chair. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor PJ Murphy. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ben Coleman and Mark 
Loveday. 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

4. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2015-16  
 
Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Finance Director, presented the report and noted that 
the Council’s external auditor, KPMG, had issued their Annual Audit Letter. The 
letter noted that, following the full completion of the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts 
by the Committee on 13 September 2016, KPMG issued the following on 30 
September 2016: 

 An unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for 
money (VFM conclusion) for 2015/16. 

 An unqualified opinion on the Authority’s 2015/16 financial statements. 

 An unqualified opinion on the 2015/16 Pension Fund. 

 The 2015/16 Audit certificate. The certificate confirms that the auditor has 
concluded the audit for 2015/16 in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the contents of auditor’s letter. 
 
 

5. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
Hitesh Jolapara presented the report that outlined the approach for appointing the 
Council’s External Auditors. The recommendation was for the Council to opt in to 
the appointing person arrangements made by Public Sector Audit Appointments for 
the appointment of external auditors.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee approved that the Council opts in to the appointing person 
arrangements made by Public Sector Audit Appointments for the appointment of 
external auditors. 
 
 

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2017-18  
 
Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Finance Director, and Peter Carpenter, Interim Director 
for Treasury and Pensions, presented the report that set out the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2017/18. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill asked if there were any changes to the institutions that 
the Council deposited with. Peter Carpenter said there were no changes. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam, referring to a discussion at Finance & Delivery Policy 
and Accountability Committee in November, asked if options for higher yield 
investments had been considered yet. Hitesh Jolapara noted that papers were 
being prepared and would be circulated to members by email. 
 
RESOLVED 

1. That approval was given to the future borrowing and investment strategies as 
outlined in this report and that the Strategic Finance Director be authorised to 
arrange the Council’s cash flow, borrowing and investments in 2017/18. 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

2. In relation to the Council’s overall borrowing for the financial year, to note the 
comments and the Prudential Indicators as set out in this report and the four-year 
capital programme 2017/18 to 2020/21. 

3. That approval was given to pay the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) investment 
income on unapplied HRA receipts and other HRA cash balances calculated at the 
average rate of interest (approximately 0.40% p.a.) earned on temporary 
investments throughout the year to the 31st March 2017. 

 
 

7. UPDATE ON HOUSING HEALTH AND SAFETY CHECKS  
 
Paul Monforte, Head of Operations, presented the report. Lee Ginger, Director at 
MITIE, and Ian Webb, Senior Partnership Manager at MITIE, were also in 
attendance. Paul Monforte took the committee through the recommendations and 
progress to date in section 4 of the report. He noted that initial results of the 
reviews suggested that the installations were safe but paperwork for the checks 
had not been completed to the proper standard. Where there were issues raised 
from visual inspections and electrical tests, MITIE were aiming to resolve them by 
the end of the week. 
 
MITIE were also validating all C1 and C2 checks, of which around 600 were 
remaining and these would be completed within seven weeks. They would then 
provide written assurance that the sites were compliant. PCM would also be 
carrying out independent checks of this work. Officers were working with MITIE to 
improve their processes, and had introduced a monitoring sheet that tracked 
electrical tests from start to finish. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked, if officers were reporting that the systems were 
fundamentally safe, were there problems with the auditing process. Paul Monforte 
responded that, from discussions with PCM, the systems were safe though on 
inspection there were some issues found with the C2s. The key problems were 
administrative and quality assurance was not as good as it should have been. 
These were the areas for improvement going forward for both MITIE and the 
Council. The Housing department were putting in additional resource to facilitate a 
greater number of onsite post-inspections as well as a desktop review of twenty 
percent of them. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked if, in practice, work had been signed-off without 
evidence, or proper checks. Officers said MITIE had employed a sub-contractor to 
carry out EICRs and while the process was safe, there was a failure in 
administration. Both MITIE and the Council were fully committed to getting this 
right in future. 
 
Councillor Michael Cartwright said nothing was more important than the safety of 
residents and noted he was surprised by how few checks were initially carried out. 
He said he had concerns about MITIE and asked if the Housing department had 
assessed their competence to be the contractor for this service. Nicholas Austin, 
Director for Environmental Health, responded that the Council and MITIE were in a 
contractual arrangement. He said there were issues of quality assurance on both 
sides but there had been a commitment to improve and officers and MITIE were 
ensuring all outstanding actions were being followed up. Paul Monforte added that 

Page 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Housing were adding an additional management post to ensure compliance across 
the department 
 
Mat Bishop, Managing Director at MITIE, said MITIE took their partnership with the 
Council very seriously and had invested a lot of time and resources in the service. 
Within six months they had delivered 100 percent gas compliance, something that 
hadn’t been achieved before. The team had worked hard to address the problems 
immediately. He noted that they stopped using the sub-contractor and MITIE 
operatives were now self-delivering the checks. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy said he was concerned by the apparent lack of oversight 
from both MITIE and Housing officers. He felt there needed to be a third-party audit 
of the checks to ensure the issues had been resolved and third-party quality 
control was employed going forward. Mat Bishop said that proposal was in the 
service improvement plan – PCM had carried out cross checks and going forward 
they would be checking ten percent of all new works. Paul Monforte added that 
Housing were looking to employ a company to carry out audit work across all their 
compliance areas. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy noted that there were 17 checks that were found to have had 
‘major discrepancies’. He asked if all of them had been visited. Paul Monforte said 
they had and they were all found to be safe. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill noted that during canvassing visits to local estates it 
was common to see electrical panels unscrewed, or panels missing, and rarely 
seemed to be fixed. Lee Ginger said vandalism generated the majority of unsafe 
situations and incidents could happen at any time. It was an ongoing issue but 
MITIE were holding a training day for managers to show them what to look for as 
part of a bigger piece of work around estate management. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent noted that he appreciated that representatives from MITIE 
had attended the meeting and it showed that they were taking the issues raised 
seriously. He also noted that this process had taken Housing officers a great deal 
of time to resolve and asked what it had cost the Council, and if there would be 
appropriate compensation. Paul Monforte responded that there had been 
additional time on both sides. He said the issue of compensation had not been 
broached but MITIE had paid for external consultants to visit 700 properties at their 
own cost. Councillor Vincent suggested officers investigated if there were penalties 
in the contract and / or grounds for compensation. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam, noting that the report related to common areas, asked 
what checks were carried out inside the flats. Paul Monforte said there was a five-
year programme to test domestic properties and any empty property had an 
electrical test prior to new tenants moving in. Councillor Adam asked if the same 
sub-contractor was used for those checks. Paul Monforte said they were only used 
for the common areas. Councillor Adam asked if there could be same issue of 
signing-off work without proper oversight. Paul Monforte said the works were 
carried out by directly employed electricians. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam noted that domestic properties typically needed re-wiring 
every 30 to 35 years and asked if there was a rolling programme to carry out this 

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

work across the estate. Paul Monforte responded that there was money available 
to upgrade systems as necessary but there was no rolling programme. Tests 
showed the infrastructure to be in good condition. Nicholas Austin said he could 
consult with Nilavra Mukerji, Director for Housing Services, about this and send 
information to members after the meeting. 
 
Mat Bishop noted that MITIE were looking at ways to utilise intelligence gathered 
through delivery of the maintenance programmers and how they could inform 
future investment programmes. For example, repairs demand was a primary 
indicator that could be harnessed to help develop preventative programmes. 
Councillors said they would welcome more information on this. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy noted that the Housing department had implemented a new 
electrical safety policy and asked why they didn’t have one previously. Officers 
responded that previously they had used the corporate policy but the audit process 
identified it as a gap. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy noted that policies were only effective if they were 
implemented properly and said he would like to see measures or a roll-out plan to 
show how that would be done. He also noted that officers needed to improve the 
way they worked with contractors to ensure they were effectively managed and 
held to account. 
 
RESOLVED 
The Committee noted the report. 
 
 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 
The Chair informed the Committee that this item was for information only. 
 
 

9. ANNUAL CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT  
 
Nicholas Austin presented the report that summarised the safety performance of 
the Council for the year April 2015 to March 2016 and the aims of the Corporate 
Health and Safety Team for the year ahead. He noted that MAZARs carried out an 
external audit in 2015 and made recommendations to improve senior management 
training, for services to upload risk assessments to a central system, and to finalise 
the health and safety regime for schools. The service has responded to each of 
these actions, full details of which could be found in 5.15 of the report. 
 
The Chair asked how many Academy schools bought in to the services provided 
by the Council’s Health and Safety department. Nicholas Austin said five schools 
currently and further outreach would be done with both Academies and voluntary 
aided schools. 
 
The Chair asked which services involved in the seemingly high number of violence 
and intimidation incidents reported. Nicholas Austin reported that the two main 
areas were libraries and civil enforcement officers. 
 

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Nicolas Botterill asked if the parking wardens were outfitted with body-
cams, and if so had there been a corresponding reduction in violent and 
intimidation incidents. Nicholas Austin said enforcement officers had been given 
body-cams and, with the right training, they had been responsible for a significant 
reduction in incidents. 
  
Councillor PJ Murphy, referring to 5.6 of the report, noted there were only 18 
incidents of ‘slips and trips’ and asked what was responsible for the low figure. 
Nicholas Austin replied that those types of injuries could have a major impact on 
staff so officers had worked hard to reduce this number through better signage and 
highlighting the issue at senior management team level.  Councillor Murphy then 
asked about stress amongst staff from absenteeism. Nicholas Austin said they 
were waiting from more informed data on this from HR. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent asked why there was no mentions of the recent fire at a 
block of flats in Shepherd's Bush Green on 19 August 2016. Nicholas Austin noted 
that this was an annual report that only covered the previous financial year. He 
also noted that the Council had lobbied for a full recall of the affected tumble dryer 
model that caused the blaze and officers had explored taking regulatory action 
under the Enterprise Act. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill, referring to table one in appendix one, asked why 
there had been a fall in reported incidents from employees but an increase for non-
employees. Nicholas Austin said the increase in incidents from non-employees 
was likely to be due to improved reporting. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked if the reduction in reported incidents from employees 
could be due to reductions in staff numbers and requested that future reports 
included an ‘incidents per-100 employees / non-employees’. 
 
RESOLVED 
The Committee reviewed and commented on the organisational health and safety 
performance. 
 
 

10. CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD SERVICE - MID-YEAR REPORT  
 
Andrew Hyatt, Head of Fraud, presented the report that provided an account of 
fraud related activity undertaken by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service from 1 April 
2016 to 31 September 2016. 
 
Councillor Michael Cartwright asked if the proceeds of crime actions were 
effective. Andrew Hyatt said they were often long cases and it could take up to 12 
months to receive payment but he considered them to be a strong deterrent. 
 
Councillor Cartwright noted the substantial figures in the Right to Buy cases and 
asked if the Council prosecuted those offenders. Andrew Hyatt said they did look 
to prosecute - they also vetted all Right to Buy applications through an agreement 
with the Council’s HomeBuy Service to ensure the source of the money was legal. 
 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Nicholas Botterill noted that the report said ‘resources within the service 
remain stretched’ and asked if the service required additional support. Andrew 
Hyatt responded that the posts existed but they were struggling to find suitably 
trained investigators. To combat that the service was looking at building on an 
existing apprentice post. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent noted that a significant portion of crime and fraud had 
moved into the digital realm now and asked if the Council was sufficiently protected 
against those types of attacks. Andrew Hyatt agreed that cyber-crime was on the 
rise but detail of the Council’s protections was a question for the ICT team. The 
service was undertaking awareness training so they could advise other staff on 
these issues. 
 
Councillor Michael Adam asked for an update on the repayments for business 
rates fraud. Andrew Hyatt said he could provide this information after the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the fraud work undertaken during the period 1 April 
2016 to 31 September 2016. 
 
 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT  
 
Michael Sloniowski, Risk Manager, introduced Moira Mackie, Interim Director of 
Audit, Fraud, Risk, and Insurances, and presented the report that included: 

 An oversight of the authority’s processes to facilitate the identification and 
management of its significant business risks. 

 A summary of the Q2 2016/17 Corporate and Service Risk Registers. 

 A summary of the benchmarking exercise of Risk Management undertaken in the 
quarter. 

 Oversight of the council’s revised Risk Management Policy and Strategy document. 

 
Councillor Michael Adam noted that the key challenge for the service was to 
embed risk management in the Council’s day to day operations. He asked if the 
service had considered ‘score-carding’ departments, e.g. on a scale from one to 
five where one was ‘no appreciation for risk management’ and five was ‘risk 
management embedded in work practice’. 
 
Michael Sloniowski replied that they had been thinking about using indicators and 
the Council’s senior leadership team had asked for monthly risk registers so they 
could scrutinise departments. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked if the Council had a risk map like the example on page 
150 of the agenda. Michael Sloniowski said they didn’t but would like to develop 
one and hoped to integrate it into the report that would be sent to the senior 
leadership team meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 

1. That the Committee noted the contents of the report. 
2. That the Committee considered the corporate and service department risks and 

requested that the risk owners provide a detailed update on the treatment and 

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

mitigation of the risk including impact on the corporate objectives at the next 
meeting. 

3. That the Committee endorse the 2017-2020 Risk Management Strategy. 

 
 

12. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN AND OUTSTANDING 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT  
 
Geoff Drake, Senior Audit Manager, presented the report which summarised 
progress on implementing recommendations arising from the External Audit Report 
2015/16 and the Annual Governance Statement. He noted that since the report 
was published recommendation two had been completed. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy, referring to page 244 of the agenda, noted that the Council 
was funding commercial and contractual training for staff and asked if there was 
any cost recovery if staff left the organisation within a certain time-period (as was 
standard in many private sector companies). Geoff Drake said he would check with 
the responsible director after the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

13. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT  
 
Geoff Drake, Senior Audit Manager, presented the report that summarised internal 
audit activity in respect of audit reports issued during the period 1 July to 30 
September 2016 as well as reporting on the performance of the Internal Audit 
service. He noted that the number of outstanding recommendations had 
significantly reduced from the previous quarter – 66 to the five listed in the report. 
Nick Austin noted that the three outstanding recommendations in Environment 
Services would be completed by 1 January 2017.  
 
Councillor Michael Cartwright asked for an update on the BT Managed Services 
programme. Hitesh Jolapara responded that the main issues were with payroll and 
pensions. Geoff Drake added that the target date for the outstanding audit 
recommendations was end of March 2017 but it was not clear at this stage if the 
key outstanding issues would be resolved. Councillor Cartwright asked if the 
Finance department had to bring in additional resource to help with the closure of 
the accounts. Hitesh Jolapara said they had, and all additional cost would inform 
the commercial discussions. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

14. FINAL AUDIT REPORT - DISABILITY SERVICE DIRECT PAYMENTS  
 
Ian Heggs, Director for Education, and Dave McNamara, Children’s Services 
Director for Finance, presented the report. 
 

Page 8



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Michael Cartwright noted that the report suggested, while the Council 
wasn’t directly responsible for people not paying their income tax and national 
insurance, it wasn’t proactive in supporting them. Dave McNamara said the audit 
highlighted the need for more rigour and discipline in the service and to that end, 
new management had been put in place and had carried out a complete review of 
the area. Councillor Cartwright asked if the individuals were paying the money 
back now. Dave McNamara said he could check and provide that information after 
the meeting. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill asked what the Council’s obligation was in this 
instance. Dave McNamara said the Council didn’t have legal responsibility, it was 
up to individuals to make own arrangements, but if those people got into trouble 
and that threatened the support given to a child it could cause the Council 
problems. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy said he gave credit to the service requesting an audit due to 
concerns. He asked if officers had similar concerns looking across other areas in 
Children’s Services. Dave McNamara said the focus was inevitably on high value, 
high risk cost areas. However, this was an area that escaped scrutiny for a long 
time and they would be reviewing other areas and making sure the rigour applied 
to major payment areas was applied elsewhere. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent asked what officers were doing to ensure schools were 
using funds appropriately. Dave McNamara replied that schools were responsible; 
the only check was through the audit process. The current system of accountability 
was being refreshed though, soon school bursars would be given training to allow 
them to challenge headteachers. 
 
Hitesh Jolapara noted that Chairs of Governors could be invited to the Committee 
if their school had outstanding recommendations, in the same way Directors for 
internal services were. The Chair noted that a letter had gone to all Chairs of 
Governors explaining future attendance at this Committee may be necessary. 
 
Councillor PJ Murphy suggested officers charged Academies for advice and 
attendance at bursar forums etc. Ian Heggs said the service he could review the 
current policy and practice. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

15. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 21 March 2017. 
 
 

16. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
RESOLVED 
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the public and 
press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following items 

Page 9



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

of business, on the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of exempt 
information, as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the said Act, and that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

17. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED 
The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2016 were agreed as a 
correct record and were signed by the Chair. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.50 pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: David Abbott 
Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2063 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2017 

 
 

FINAL GRANT CERTIFICATION 2015/16 
 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 
Key Decision:  No 
 

Wards Affected: None 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Finance Director 
 

Report Author:  
Christopher Harris, Head of Corporate 
Accountancy and Capital 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 6440 
christopher.harris@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The external auditor, KPMG, has finalised the work to certify the Council’s grant claims 
in respect of the 2015/16 financial year. 

 
1.2 KPMG’s findings are detailed in the letter appended to this report (appendix 1).  In 

summary: 

 There are no recommendations arising. 

 The Housing Benefit Subsidy claim was subject to a qualification letter which 
set out the detailed findings from their testing. This identified two 
overstatements totalling £10,777.48 (in the context of a total claim of 
£145.5m) relating to 5 cases. We expect the DWP to make an amendment to 
our claim in respect of these cases. 

 Two adjustments were noted in respect of the Pooling of Housing Capital 
Receipts return which have now been corrected by officers; 

 The Teacher’s Pensions EOYC return required one minor adjustment but 
otherwise no issues were raised; 

 
1.3 The final audit fee of £30,756 was in-line with the indicative fee. The main element of 

this fee relates to the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim (£23,756) which was set by Public 
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA). 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To note the 2015/16 Grants report as put forward by KPMG 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:christopher.harris@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 
None. 

List of appendices: 

Appendix 1 - Annual Report on grants and returns 2015/16 

Page 12



Annual Report on grants Annual Report on grants 
and returns 2015/16and returns 2015/16

London Borough of Hammersmith and FulhamLondon Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham

—

January 2017

P
age 13



Contents

The contacts at KPMG 

in connection with this in connection with this 

report are:

Andrew Sayers

Partner 
Tel: 020 7694 8981

Page

Headlines 3

Summary of reporting outcomes 4

andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk

Jennifer Townsend

Senior Manager
Tel: 020 7311 1368 

Summary of certification work outcomes 5

Fees 6

jennifer.townsend@kpmg.co.uk

Sarah McKean
Assistant Manager
Tel: 077 8538 1142
sarah.mckean@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 
Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what 
i  t d f  dit d b di  W  d   tt ti  t  thi  d t hi h i  il bl   P bli  S t  A dit A i t t’ b it  ( k)is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Andrew Sayers, the 
engagement lead to the Authority and the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, who will try to resolve your complaint. After 
this, in relation to the certification of the Housing Benefit Subsidy grant claim, if you are still dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by 
emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 
3HZ.

2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 14



Headlines
Annual report on grants and returns 2015/16

Introduction and background

This report summarises the results of work we have carried out on the Council’s 
2015/16 grant claims and returns. 

Following the completion of our work, the claim was subject to a qualification letter. 
No amendments have been made to the claim for the issues raised in our qualification 
letter:

Testing of the initial sample of cell 55 identified one error ithin the claim  This 
This includes the work we have completed under the Public Sector Audit Appointment 
certification arrangements, as well as the work we have completed on other 
grants/returns under separate engagement terms. The work completed in 2015/16 is:

– Under the Public Sector Audit Appointments arrangements we certified one claim 
– the Council’s 2015/16 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. This had a value of £145.5 
million

– Testing of the initial sample of cell 55 identified one error within the claim. This 
led to 40+ testing, during which no additional errors were identified. 

– Testing of the initial sample of cell 225 identified two errors within the claim. 
This led to entire population testing, during which an additional two errors were 
identified. 

In the previous year  several small amendments were made but no qualification letter million

– Under separate assurance engagements we certified two returns as listed below.

– Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return (value £16.0 millIon); and

– Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa return (value £7.0 million).

Certification and assurance results (Pages 4 - 5)

In the previous year, several small amendments were made but no qualification letter 
was issued. 

Our work on the other grant assurance engagements resulted in an unqualified 
Reporting Accountants’ independent reasonable assurance report. Three adjustments 
were necessary to two of the Council’s returns as a result of our certification work this 
year.

Certification and assurance results (Pages 4 - 5)

Our certification work on Housing Subsidy Benefit claim included: 

– agreeing standard rates, such as for allowances and benefit incomes, to the DWP 
Circular communicating the value of each rate for the year; 

– sample testing of benefit claims to confirm that the entitlement had been 

– The Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return had two adjustments of £239k 
and (£2k). In the previous year, no adjustments were necessary. 

– The Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa return had one adjustment of £1k. In the 
previous year, an adjustment of £40k was identified and corrected. 

Recommendations
correctly calculated and was supported by appropriate evidence; 

– undertaking an analytical review of the claim form considering year-on-year 
variances and key ratios; 

– confirming that the subsidy claim had been prepared using the correct benefits 
system version; and 

eco e dat o s

We have made no formal recommendations to the Council from our work this year. 
We noted that there were no recommendations raised during previous years’ work on 
grants and returns. 

Fees (Page 6)

O r fee for certif ing the Co ncil’s 2015/16 Ho sing Benefit S bsid  grant as 
– completing testing in relation to modified schemes payments, uncashed cheques 

and verifying the accurate completion of the claim form.

Our fee for certifying the Council s 2015/16 Housing Benefit Subsidy grant was 
£23,756, which is in line with the indicative fee set by PSAA. 

Our fees for the other ‘assurance’ engagements were subject to agreement directly 
with the Council and were £3,500 for the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return 
and £3,500 for the Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa return. 

3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 15



Summary of reporting outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2015/16

Overall, we carried out work 

 th  t  d t

Detailed below is a summary of the reporting outcomes from our work on the Council’s 2015/16 grants and returns, showing where 
either audit amendments were made as a result of our work or where we had to qualify our audit certificate or assurance report. 

on three grants and returns:

– Two were unqualified but 

required some 

amendment to the final 

figures; and

A qualification means that issues were identified concerning the Council’s compliance with a scheme’s requirements that could not be 
resolved through adjustment. In these circumstances, it is likely that the relevant grant paying body will require further information from 
the Council to satisfy itself that the full amounts of grant claimed are appropriate.

Comments 
Q lifi d

Significant Minor
U lifi d

– One, the Housing benefit 

subsidy, required a 

qualification to our audit 

certificate.

overleaf
Qualified

g
adjustment adjustment 

Unqualified

Public Sector Audit 
Appointments regime

— Housing Benefit Subsidy 1
Detailed comments are 

provided overleaf. Other assurance engagements

— Pooling of Housing Capital 
Receipts 

2

— Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa

1 - 2 2

3

4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 16



Summary of certification work outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2015/16

This table summarises the 

k  i  b hi d h f th  

Ref Summary observations Amendment

key issues behind each of the 

adjustments or qualifications 

that were identified on the 

previous page.

Housing Benefit Subsidy

Following the completion of our work, the claim was subject to a qualification letter. No amendments have been 
made to the claim for the issues raised in our qualification letter.

— Testing of the initial sample of cell 55 identified one error within the claim. In this claim, Occupational Pension 
income was incorrectly input in the Academy leading to overstatement of cell 61 by £235.04.This led to 40+ 
testing, during which no additional errors were identified. 

£nil1

— Testing of the initial sample of cell 225 identified two errors within the claim. These errors included 1) 
Occupational Pension incorrectly cl assed as War Pension and 2) Occupational Pension was double counted. This 
led to entire population testing, during which an additional two errors were identified. The total error identified in 
this cell was an overstatement of £10,542.44.

In the previous year, several small amendments were made but no qualification letter was issued. 

P li  f H i  C i l R i  £23 kPooling of Housing Capital Receipts 

We noted two adjustments to the return, both of which were corrected by management 

— For one property, £239k of new build expenditure was also included in the original return as buy back 
expenditure.

— For one property, the new build expenditure did not include £2k of legal costs which should have been included.

£237k

2

Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa

We noted one adjustment to the return, which was corrected by management 

— The adjusting employee contributions cell had an incorrect formula which affected 21 lines and changed the total 
payment due by £1k.  The total pensionable pay and employer contributions are not affected.

£1k

3

5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 17



Fees
Annual report on grants and returns 2015/16

Our fees for the Housing 

B fit S b id  l i   t 

Public Sector Audit Appointments certification arrangements

Public Sector Audit Appointments set an indicative fee for our work on the Council’s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in 2015/16 ofBenefit Subsidy claim are set 

by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments. 

Our fees for other assurance 

engagements on returns are 

Public Sector Audit Appointments set an indicative fee for our work on the Council s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in 2015/16 of
£23,756. Our actual fee was the same as the indicative fee, and this compares to the 2014/15 fee for this claim of £31,270, which was 
the PSAA indicative fee at the time. 

Grants subject to other assurance engagements

The fees for our assurance work on other grants/returns are agreed directly with the Council. Our fees for 2015/16 were in line with 
those in 2014/15

Breakdown of fee by grant/return

2015/16 (£) 2014/15 (£)

agreed directly with the 

Council.

The overall fees we charged 

for carrying out all our work 

on grants/returns in 2015/16 

those in 2014/15.

Breakdown of fees for grants and returns work

2015/16 (£) 2014/15 (£)

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim 23,756 31,270

Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 3,500 3,500

Teachers’ Pensions EOYCa 3,500 3,500

Total fee 30,756 38,270

on grants/returns in 2015/16 

was £30,756.

6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 18



kpmg.com/uk

© 20 6 KPMG LLP   UK li i d li bili  hi  d  b  fi  f h  KPMG k f i d d  b  fi  ffili d i h 

The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular individual or entity. 
Although we endeavour to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it 
is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice 
after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International  | CREATE: CRT070784A

KPMG LLP is multi-disciplinary practice authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority. For full details of our professional 
regulation please refer to ‘Regulatory Information’ at www.kpmg.com/uk

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. | CREATE: CRT070784A

P
age 19



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2017 

 
 

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17 
 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 
Key Decision:  No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Finance Director 
 

Report Author:  
Christopher Harris, Head of Corporate 
Accountancy and Capital 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 6440 
christopher.harris@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The Council’s external auditor, KPMG, have provided their plan for the audit of the 
2016-17 Statement of Accounts.  The plan (attached at Appendix 1) describes how the 
auditor will deliver the financial statements audit work and also sets out their approach 
to value for money (VFM) work for 2016-17. The audit will substantially take place 
during June and July 2017 and the final accounts will be presented to the Committee 
in September. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 To note the 2016/17 Audit Plan as put forward by KPMG. 

 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
None. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 5

mailto:christopher.harris@lbhf.gov.uk


External Audit Plan External Audit Plan 
2016/20172016/20172016/2017

London Borough of Hammersmith & FulhamLondon Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

9 March 2017

P
age 21



Contents
The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:The contacts at KPMG 

Contentsreport are:

Andy Sayers
Partner, KPMG LLP

Tel: +44 (0)7802 975171
andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk 

in connection with this 
report are:

Andy Sayers
Partner
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0207 694 8981

Jennifer Townsend
Senior Manager, KPMG LLP

Tel: +44 (0)7788423750
jenniferr.townsend@kpmg.co.uk 

Page

Section 1: Headlines 2

Tel: 0207 694 8981 
andy.sayers@kpmg.co.uk

Jennifer Townsend
Senior Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)

Section 2: Introduction 3

Section 3: Financial statements audit planning 4

Section 4: Value for money arrangements work 10

Section 5: Other matters 15

Tel: 020 7311 1368
jennifer.townsend@kpmg.co.uk

Andrew Stuart
Assistant Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)

Appendices

Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach 16

Appendix 2: Audit team 17

Appendix 3: Independence and objectivity requirements 18

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 075 5433 0111 
andrew.stuart@kpmg.co.uk

Appendix 3: Independence and objectivity requirements 18

P
age 22



Headlines
Section 1

Financial Statement Audit

There has been a number of updates to the 2016-17 code. To allow local authorities to 
report on the same basis as they are organised, the formal link between the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) and the Comprehensive Income and 

■ Payroll
■ Cash & cash equivalents
■ Non pay expenditure (accounts payable element)p g ( ) p

Expenditure Statement (CIES) has been broken  This introduces a new Expenditure 
and Funding Analysis which provides a direct reconciliation between funding & 
budgeting and the CIES.  This analysis will be supported by a streamlined Movement in 
Reserves Statement (MIRS).  The changes have replaced the current segmental 
reporting note. The impact of this on our audit is detailed on page 7.

■ NNDR appeals
■ HRA Income 
■ HRA: repairs & maintenance expenditure

Value for Money Arrangements work (See pages 10 to 14 for more details)
Materiality (Page 9)
Materiality has been set at £12M (£12M 2015-16)  for the Authority and £17M
(£17M 2015-16) for the Pension Fund.

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those 
which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance and this has been set 

We did not identify any significant risks as part of the planning process, however,  we 
will consider the following VfM audit  issues within our overall assessment:

■ Managed Services;
at £600k for the Authority and £850k for the Pension Fund.

Significant risks (Page 4)
Those risks requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the 
likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment (Authority);
Logistics

■ Contract management/procurement; and

■ Medium term financial plan.

.

Our team, covering both the Authority and Pension Fund audit is detailed below.  
More details are provided on page 17:

■ Andy Sayers – Partner

■ Jenny Townsend – Senior Manager

■ Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Authority);
■ Managed Services (Authority);
■ Valuation of Pension Fund Assets; 
■ Pension liability including assumptions and having regard to the potential for 

significant changes arising from the LGPS Triennial Valuation; 
■ Management override of controls; and

■ Andrew Stuart – Assistant Manager

Our work will be completed in four phases from January to September and our key 
deliverables are this Audit Plan and a Report to those charged with Governance as 
outlined on page 16.

Our fee for the audit is £163,950 (£163,950 2015-16) for the Authority and £21,000 

■ Management override of controls; and 
■ Fraudulent Revenue Recognition (conditional grant income).

Other areas of audit focus (Page 7)
Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are 
nevertheless worthy of audit understanding have been identified as:

2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

, ( , ) y ,
(£21,000 2015-16) for the Pension Fund see page 15.■ Disclosures associated with restatement of CIES, EFA and MiRS

P
age 23



Introduction
Section 2

Financial Statements Audit

Our financial statements audit work follows a four stage audit process which is identified 
below. Appendix 1 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This report 

h Fi i l S A di Pl i f h Fi i l

Introduction
Background and Statutory responsibilities

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2016-17 presented to you in April 2016, 
which also sets out details of our appointment by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd 
(PSAA) concentrates on the Financial Statements Audit Planning stage of the Financial 

Statements Audit.
(PSAA).

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 and the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice. 

Our audit has two key objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

— Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): Providing an

Substantive 
Procedures CompletionControl

Evaluation

Financial 
Statements Audit 

Planning

Value for Money Arrangements Work

Our Value for Money (VFM) Arrangements Work follows a five stage process which is 
identified below. Page 10 provides more detail on the activities that this includes. This 
report concentrates on explaining the VFM approach for the 2016-17. 

Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): Providing an 
opinion on your accounts; and

— Use of resources: Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the value for money 
conclusion).

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going process and the p p g ppp g p g g p
assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under review and updated if necessary. 

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members for their continuing 
help and co-operation throughout our audit work

Risk 
Assessment

VFM 
audit work

Identification 
of significant 

VFM risks
Conclude Reporting

3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 24



Financial statements audit planning
Section 3

p g
Financial Statements Audit Planning

Our planning for both the financial statements and the pension fund work takes place 
during January 2017. This involves the following key aspects:

— Risk assessment;

— Determining our materiality level; and 

— Issuing this audit plan to communicate our audit strategy.

Risk assessment Revenue 
recognition –

Remuneration 
disclosures Pension Fund 

investments

Valuation of 
pension fund 

assets 

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We 
are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan but consider them as a matter of 
course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our 
ISA 260 Report.

— Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to 
perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare

recognition –
conditional 

grant income

Valuation of 
PPE

Financial 
Instruments 
disclosures

Pension

ST 
creditors

Compliance to 
the Code’s 
disclosure 

requirements

Managed 
iperpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare 

fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be 
operating effectively. Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management 
override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out 
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal 
entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that are outside the normal 
course of business or are otherwise unusual

Management 
override of 

controls

Key financial 
systems

Bad debt 
provision

Pension 
liability 

assumptions 

Cash

Business rates

services

course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

— Fraudulent revenue recognition –We do not consider this to be a significant risk for 
local authorities as there are limited incentives and opportunities to manipulate the 
way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate 
specific work into our audit plan in this area over and above our standard fraud 
procedures.  We have reflected one exception to this rebuttal – that is the recognition 
f diti l t i W h i l d d thi ithi ‘ i ifi t i k ’

Accounting 
for leases

Pro isions

Payroll and 
Non-Payroll 
E dit

HRA Income 
and Expenditure

Housing 
Benefits 

Expenditure

Business rates 
and Council tax 

income

NNDR
appeals

of conditional grant income.  We have included this within our ‘significant risks’ 
included within page 6 of this plan. 

The diagram opposite identifies, significant risks and other areas of audit focus, which we 
expand on overleaf. The diagram also identifies a range of other areas considered by our 
audit approach.

Provisions Expenditure

4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Keys:  Significant risk  Other area of audit focus  Example other areas considered by our approach

P
age 25



Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
Section 3

Significant Audit Risks

Those risks, related to both the financial statements and the pension fund, requiring specific audit attention and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial 
statement error.

Valuation of Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) (Authority)

■ Risk: As at 31 March 2016 the value of the Council’s PPE was £1,807 
million. Local authorities exercise judgement in determining the current 
value of different classes of assets held and the methods used to ensure 
th i l d d h fl t th t l Th

Managed Services (Authority)

■ Risk: The Tri-borough councils implemented a new financial system on 1 
April 2015 through a managed service partnership with BT. There have 
been a number of difficulties with the implementation since 1 April 2015, 

hi h hil t h b d h t t b f ll l dthe carrying values recorded each year reflect those current values. The 
Council is responsible for ensuring that the valuation of PPE is 
appropriate at each financial year end and for conducting impairment 
reviews that confirm the condition of these assets. We have assessed 
that the inherent uncertainty in valuation and high value of assets held 
by the Council creates a significant risk to the financial statements for 
2016-17

which, whilst progress has been made, have not yet been fully resolved.  
This continues to give rise to a risk in relation to the completeness and 
accuracy of the balances in the financial statements. 

■ Approach: 2016-17 is the second full year of operation of the service 
organisation. As such, we envisage that increased reliance can be placed 
on the control environment at BT, both in terms of the general IT control 2016-17. 

■ Approach: We will:

• review management’s assessment of property valuations and 
impairment calculations;

• confirm the information provided to the valuer from the Authority;

environment and the routine monthly and daily control processes in place. 

■ We will undertake on site controls testing at BT managed services. Our 
will, on a sample basis, test the design and implementation of the controls 
surrounding the key financial systems, including payroll, debtors, creditors 
and cash.   We will also test the operation of key IT controls, for  example 
system access controls together with those controls surrounding the set

• compare the assumptions made by your valuer to benchmarks and 
to the assumptions used for 2015-16 for consistency; 

• complete testing over new capital additions in year to confirm these 
are appropriately capitalised and that Council ownership is 
evidenced; and 

system access controls together with those controls surrounding the set 
up/removal of users to the system.  

• review disposals made in year and confirm appropriate removal 
from the PPE balance in 2016-17. 

5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 26



Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
Section 3

Pension liability including assumptions and having regard to the potential 
for significant changes arising from the LGPS Triennial Valuation

Conditional Grant Income (Authority)

Ri k Th C il i t t i i t i diti £288M
for significant changes arising from the LGPS Triennial Valuation 
(Authority)

Risk :   During the year, the Pension Fund has undergone a triennial valuation 
with an effective date of 31 March 2016 in line with the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2013. The share of pensions 
assets and liabilities for each admitted body is determined in detail, and a large 
volume of data is provided to the actuary to support this triennial valuation

■ Risk: The Council receives grants containing certain conditions. £288M
of grants were included within the financial statements in 2015-16.   Each 
grant is awarded on the basis that it will be drawn down at a service level 
once the specific conditions of the grant have been met.  The grant 
cannot be credited to the comprehensive income & expenditure account 
until the conditions attached to the grant have been satisfied. 

volume of data is provided to the actuary to support this triennial valuation.

The pension numbers to be included in the financial statements for 2016-17 will 
be based on the output of the triennial valuation rolled forward to 31 March 
2017. For 2017-18 and 2018-19 the actuary will then roll forward the valuation 
for accounting purposes based on more limited data.

■ Approach: We will review the controls in place to ensure that grants are 
recognised only when there is reasonable assurance that the Authority 
will comply with any conditions attached to the grant and ensure that for a 
sample of grants, that they have been applied over the period necessary 
to match them with the related costs, for which they are intended to 
compensate, on a systematic basis;

There is a risk that the data provided to the actuary for the valuation exercise is 
inaccurate and that these inaccuracies affect the actuarial figures in the 
accounts.

The Pension Fund only includes limited disclosures around pensions liabilities 
but we anticipate that this will be identified as a risk area by the Authority itself 

■ We will ensure that the accounting policy adopted for grants has been 
disclosed within the accounts. 

Valuation of Pension Fund Assets (Pension Fund)

as the pension liabilities represent a significant element of its balance sheet.

Further there are significant judgments made in relation to the assumptions to 
be adopted when calculating the pension liability.

Approach: As part of our audit of the Pension Fund, we will undertake work 
t t b i t th d t id d t th t b k t th t

Risk: At 31 March 2016 the Pension Fund had investment assets totalling 
£979 million. The investment portfolio includes contracts which can be 
complex to value. Given the size and potential for complexity in the 
investment portfolio we consider this to be a significant audit risk for 2016-17.

Approach: We will undertake detailed testing of investments as part of our 
fi l t dit i l di i th d i d ti f t lon a test basis to agree the data provided to the actuary back to the systems 

and reports from which it was derived and to understand the controls in place to 
ensure the accuracy of this data. This work will be focused on the data relating 
to the Authority itself as largest member of the Pension Fund.

We will also review the assumptions adopted in calculating the pension liability 
using the work of independent experts engaged by the NAO

final accounts audit, including assessing the design and operation of controls 
in place, obtaining independent confirmations from the Custodian (and Fund 
Managers as necessary) to verify year end balances, undertaking 
substantive testing over sales and purchases made in the year, reviewing 
year on year movements, and comparing performance to known 
benchmarks.

6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

using the work of independent experts engaged by the NAO.

P
age 27



Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
Section 3

Other areas of audit focus

Those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but which are nevertheless worthy of audit understanding.

Disclosures associated with restatement of CIES, EFA and MiRS

During past years, CIPFA has been working  with stakeholders to develop 
better accountability through the financial statements as part of its ‘telling 
the whole story’ project. The key objective  of this project was to make  
Local Government accounts more understandable and transparent  to the 

Approach:  

As part of our audit ;

■ We will assess how the Authority has actioned the revised disclosure  
requirements for the CIES, MiRS and the new EFA statement as 
required by the Code; andp

reader in terms of how the Councils are funded and how they use the 
funding to serve the local population. The outcome of this project resulted in 
two main changes in respect of the 2016-17 Local Government Accounting 
Code (Code) as follows: 

■ Allowing local authorities to report on the same basis as they are 
organised by removing the requirement for the Service Reporting Code

q y ;

■ We will check the restated numbers and associated disclosures for 
accuracy , correct presentation and compliance with applicable 
Accounting Standards and Code guidance.

organised by removing the requirement for the Service Reporting Code 
of Practice (SeRCOP) to be applied to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (CIES); and 

■ Introducing an Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) which provides 
a direct reconciliation between the way local authorities are funded and 
prepare their budget and the CIES. This analysis is supported by a 
t li d M t i R St t t (MIRS) d l thstreamlined Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and replaces the 

current segmental reporting note 
As a result of these changes , retrospective restatement of CIES (cost of 
services) , EFA and MiRS is required from 1 April 2016 in the Statement of 
Accounts.

New disclosure requirements and restatement of accounts require 
compliance with  relevant guidance and correct application of applicable 
Accounting Standards .

Though less likely to give rise to a material error in the financial statements , 
this is an important disclosure change in this year’s accounts, worthy of 
audit understanding.

7

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 28



Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
Section 3

.

NNDR appeals provision

I NNDR i t i l d h l it i th t l ti f

Payroll

I P ll t i ifi t ti f th A th it ’ ■ Issue: NNDR is material and has complexity in the translation from 
Collection Fund into Council prime statements and a high degree of 
subjectivity underlying the NNDR appeals provision. 

■ Approach: We will gain an understanding over controls related to 
business rates income and specifically the appeals process.  We will 
review the methodology applied in determining the appeal provision and 

■ Issue: Payroll represents a significant proportion of the Authority’s 
annual expenditure. Whilst not considered overly complex from a 
material error perspective, we consider that it is important from an audit 
perspective to understand the nature of the Authority’s expenditure in 
this area. This is also an area impacted by Managed Services.

■ Approach: We will review and test reconciliations for gross pay and gy pp g pp p
report as to whether this reflects a balances, cautious or optimistic 
assessment.

HRA Rental Income
C h & h i l t

pp g p y
deductions (e.g. pensions, tax and national insurance); and complete 
substantive analytical review of payroll costs and test supporting system 
information used to compile the review.

■ Issue: HRA dwelling rental income is an area of audit focus due to the 
material size (£70m in 2015-16).

■ Approach: We will gain an understanding over controls related to HRA
rental income; test the operating effectiveness of relevant controls; and 
complete substantive analytical review of dwelling rent income and 
reconcile HRA amounts to the Authority’s CIES.

Cash & cash equivalents

■ Issue: Cash has a pervasive impact on the financial statements and 
provides comfort for other areas of the financial statements. This is also 
an area impacted by Managed Services.

■ Approach: We will review controls over bank reconciliations; and confirm 
balances with external third parties ybalances with external third parties. 

Non-Payroll Expenditure

■ Issue: Non-payroll expenditure, specifically the accounts payable 
HRA Repairs and Maintenance and Management Expenditure

■ Issue: HRA expenditure over repairs & maintenance and supervision &component, is an area of audit focus due to its pervasive impact on the 
financial statements and size. This is also an area impacted by 
Managed Services.

■ Approach: We will perform substantive tests of details to agree 
expenditures to third party documentation and cut-off testing of non-
payroll expenditure to ensure costs are recorded in the correct period.

■ Issue: HRA expenditure over repairs & maintenance and supervision & 
management is an area of audit focus due to the material size (£14m
and £19m in 2015-16, respectively).

■ Approach: We will gain an understanding over controls related to HRA
expenditures; test the operating effectiveness of relevant controls; and 
complete substantive analytical review of expenditures. We will also link 
t k ll d ll dit

8

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

payroll expenditure to ensure costs are recorded in the correct period. to our work over payroll and non-payroll expenditure. 

P
age 29



Financial statements audit planning (cont.)
Section 3

Materiality

We are required to plan our audit to determine with reasonable confidence whether or not 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An omission or misstatement

Reporting to the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit, 
P i d St d d C itt dj t d i t t t f l t tthe financial statements are free from material misstatement. An omission or misstatement 

is regarded as material if it would reasonably influence the user of financial statements. 
This therefore involves an assessment of the qualitative and quantitative nature of 
omissions and misstatements.

Generally, we would not consider differences in opinion in respect of areas of judgement
to represent ‘misstatements’ unless the application of that judgement results in a financial 

Pensions and Standards Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to 
the extent that these are identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are 
obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are 
‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as 
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and j g

amount falling outside of a range which we consider to be acceptable.

For the Authority, materiality for planning purposes has been set at £12 million (£12m
2015-16)  which equates to approximately two percent of gross expenditure. 

For the Pension Fund, materiality for planning purposes has been set at £17 million. (£17m

whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be 
considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £600k.

In the context of the Pension Fund, we propose that an individual difference could normally 
be considered to be clearly trivial it is less than £850k.

2015-16)

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the 
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit, 
Pensions and Standards Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

683 688

300

450

600

di
tu

re
 (£

m
)

Procedures 
designed to 
detect 
individual errors 

Individual errors, 

£7.8m

0

150

2016-17 2015-16

E
xp

en
d

£0.600m where identified, 
reported to 
Audit , Pensions and 
Standards Committee

9

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 30



Value for money arrangements work
Section 4

Overall criterion

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 

Background to approach to VFM work

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires auditors of local government bodies 
to be satisfied that the authority ‘has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
ffi i d ff i i i f ’

Working

properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources’. 

This is supported by the Code of Audit Practice, published by the NAO in April 2015, which 
requires auditors to ‘take into account their knowledge of the relevant local sector as a 
whole, and the audited body specifically, to identify any risks that, in the auditor’s 
judgement, have the potential to cause the auditor to reach an inappropriate conclusion on 
the audited body’s arrangements.’

Informed 
decision 
making

Working 
with 

partners 
and third 
parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment 

y g

The VFM approach is fundamentally unchanged from that adopted in 2014-15 and the 
process is shown in the diagram below. However, the previous two specified reporting 
criteria (financial resilience and economy, efficiency and effectiveness) have been 
replaced with a single criteria supported by three sub-criteria. These sub-criteria provide a 
focus to our VFM work at the Authority. The diagram to the right shows the details of
this criteria

VFM audit risk assessment No further work required

this criteria.

Identification of 
significant VFM risks (if 

any) Conclude on 
arrangements to 

secure VFM

Assessment of work by other review 
agencies

V
FM

 conclus

Financial statements and 
other audit work

Specific local risk based work

sion

Continually re-assess potential VFM risks

10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 31



Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
Section 4

y g ( )

Overall criterion

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 

sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

Informed 
decision 
making

Working 
with 

partners 
and third 
parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment 

Proper arrangements:

- Acting in the public interest, through 
demonstrating and applying the principles 
and values of sound governance.

Proper arrangements:

- Planning finances effectively to support the 
sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and 
maintain statutory functions.

Proper arrangements:

- Working with third parties effectively to 
deliver strategic priorities.

Commissioning services effectively tog

- Understanding and using appropriate and 
reliable financial and performance information 
to support informed decision making and 
performance management.

- Reliable and timely financial reporting that 

y

- Managing and utilising assets to support the 
delivery of strategic priorities.  

- Planning, organising and developing the 
workforce effectively to deliver strategic 
priorities.

- Commissioning services effectively to 
support the delivery of strategic priorities.

- Procuring supplies and services effectively to 
support the delivery of strategic priorities.

supports the delivery of strategic priorities.

- Managing risks effectively and maintaining a 
sound system of internal control.

11

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 32



Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
Section 4

VFM audit stage Audit approach

VFM audit risk assessment We consider the relevance and significance of the potential business risks faced by all local authorities, and other risks that apply specifically to the 
A th it Th th i ifi t ti l d fi i l i k i hi i t t t f ti d bj ti hi h l t t dit ’Authority. These are the significant operational and financial risks in achieving statutory functions and objectives, which are relevant to auditors’ 
responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice.

In doing so we consider:

■ The Authority’s own assessment of the risks it faces, and its arrangements to manage and address its risks;

■ Information from the Public Sector Auditor Appointments Limited VFM profile tool;pp p ;

■ Evidence gained from previous audit work, including the response to that work; and

■ The work of other inspectorates and review agencies.

Linkages with financial 
statements and other

There is a degree of overlap between the work we do as part of the VFM audit and our financial statements audit. For example, our financial 
statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the Authority’s organisational control environment including the Authority’s financialstatements and other

audit work
statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the Authority s organisational control environment, including the Authority s financial 
management and governance arrangements, many aspects of which are relevant to our VFM audit responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid duplication of audit effort by integrating our financial statements and VFM work, and this will continue. We will 
therefore draw upon relevant aspects of our financial statements audit work to inform the VFM audit. 

Identification of The Code identifies a matter as significant ‘if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the 
significant risks

g p
audited body or the wider public. Significance has both qualitative and quantitative aspects.’

If we identify significant VFM risks, then we will highlight the risk to the Authority and consider the most appropriate audit response in each case, 
including:

■ Considering the results of work by the Authority, inspectorates and other review agencies; and

■ Carrying out local risk based work to form a view on the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy efficiency and■ Carrying out local risk-based work to form a view on the adequacy of the Authority s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.

12

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 33



Value for money arrangements work (cont.)
Section 4

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Assessment of work by other 
i i

Depending on the nature of the significant VFM risk identified, we may be able to draw on the work of other inspectorates, review agencies and other 
l t b di t id ith th id t h l i th i kreview agencies

and

Delivery of local risk based 
work

relevant bodies to provide us with the necessary evidence to reach our conclusion on the risk.

If such evidence is not available, we will instead need to consider what additional work we will be required to undertake to satisfy ourselves that we 
have reasonable evidence to support the conclusion that we will draw. Such work may include:

■ Meeting with senior managers across the Authority;

■ Review of minutes and internal reports;p ;

■ Examination of financial models for reasonableness, using our own experience and benchmarking data from within and without the sector.

Concluding on VFM 
arrangements

At the conclusion of the VFM audit we will consider the results of the work undertaken and assess the assurance obtained against each of the VFM 
themes regarding the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

If any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment and in particular if there are issues that indicate we may need to considerIf any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment, and in particular if there are issues that indicate we may need to consider 
qualifying our VFM conclusion, we will discuss these with management as soon as possible. Such issues will also be considered more widely as part 
of KPMG’s quality control processes, to help ensure the consistency of auditors’ decisions.

Reporting We have completed our initial VFM risk assessment and have not identified any significant VFM risks. We have identified three areas of audit focus 
which are set out on the following page.  We will update our assessment throughout the year should any issues present themselves and report 
against these in our ISA260against these in our ISA260. 

We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters arising, and the basis for our 
overall conclusion.

The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing VFM), which forms part of our 
audit report. 

13

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 34



Value for money arrangements work planning
Section 4

y g p g
VFM: Areas of audit focus

We have not identified any significant VfM risks at the planning stage. The risk assessment process is dynamic, and we are alert throughout the audit to the possibility that risks may 
emerge.  We will report such matters should they arise.  Those areas on which our VfM work will focus are detailed below.  We will consider the extent to which procedures are in g p y p
place to address the likelihood that proper arrangements are not in place to deliver value for money.

Sustainable resource deployment: Medium Term Financial Planning

■ Area of audit focus: The Authority faces an increasingly challenging financial 
tl k I 2016 17 th h b f i th th it l t f th il

Informed decision making, sustainable resource deployment, and working with
partners and third parties: Managed Services

A f dit f Th T i b h il i l t d doutlook.  In 2016-17 there has been a freeze in the authority element of the council 
tax charge, this has been despite government funding cuts.   The 2016-17 funding 
reduction was forecast to be £8.2m. The budget includes significant  savings of 
£15.4m.

■ Approach: We will review the controls and governance surrounding the budget 
setting and in year monitoring.  We will select a sample of cost savings measures 

■ Area of audit focus: The Tri-borough councils implemented a new managed 
service partnership with BT on 1 April 2015. There have been a number of 
difficulties with the implementation which gives rise to a risk over management’s 
ability to make informed decision making and has an impact on forward planning 
and budget monitoring.

■ Approach: We will consider the control environment surrounding the monitoring g y g p g
and review these to ensure that proper arrangements have been implemented to 
ensure that resources are deployed to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes. 

Working with partners and third parties: Procurement and Contract 
Management

pp g g
and management of the managed services contract to ensure that informed 
decisions are being taken to support the delivery of planned and sustainable 
outcomes.   We will consider the ongoing controls surrounding the managed 
services implementation, including the operation of the Intelligent Client Function 
(ICF), review and consideration of issue resolution actions,  review of the 
Operational Framework Board (OFB) and Managed Services Sponsors meetings Management

■ Area of audit focus: Procurement and contracting are a key mechanism through 
which improved services are delivered by the authority.  Contracts are managed by 
the Procurement team, which, during 16-17 has sought to embed improved  
consistency in the application of procurement and contracting controls. 

■ Approach: We will consider the process for managing contracts entered into by

to track progress against targets. 

■ Approach: We will consider the process for managing contracts entered into by 
the Authority to ensure that performance objectives are being achieved and any  
delivery issues are being managed in accordance with agreed governance 
requirements. We will select two contracts and review these in detail. 

14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 35



Other matters 
Section 5

Other matters 
Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review your WGA consolidation and undertake the work specified under 
the approach that is agreed with HM Treasury and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for 

d i f h k d h ifi d h f 2016 1 h b

Independence and Objectivity

Auditors are also required to be independent and objective. Appendix 3 provides more 
details of our confirmation of independence and objectivity.

production of the pack and the specified approach for 2016-17 have not yet been 
confirmed.

Elector challenge

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gives electors certain rights. These are:

— The right to inspect the accounts;

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2016-17 presented to you in April 2016 first set out our fees for the 
2016-17 audit. This letter also sets out our assumptions. We have not considered it 
necessary to make any changes to the agreed fees at this stage. We have agreed an 
additional fee of £7,000 in relation to our on-site testing at the managed services.  

The right to inspect the accounts;

— The right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

— The right to object to the accounts. 

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the accounts, we may need to 
undertake additional work to form our decision on the elector's objection. The additional 
work could range from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review

Our audit fee may be varied later, subject to agreement with PSAA, for changes in the 
Code, specifically this year the changes in relation to the disclosure associated with 
retrospective restatement of CIES, EFA and MiRS. If such a variation is agreed with PSAA, 
we will report that to you in the due course .

The planned audit fee for 2016-17 is £163,950 for the Authority. This is the same audit fee 
as in the prior year The planned audit fee for 2016 17 is £21 000 for the Pension Fundwork could range from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review 

evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where we have to 
interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of evidence and seek legal 
representations on the issues raised. 

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections raised by electors is 
not part of the fee. This work will be charged in accordance with the PSAA's fee scales.

as in the prior year. The planned audit fee for 2016-17 is £21,000 for the Pension Fund. 
(2015-16 £21,000).

Our audit team

Our audit team will be led by Andy Sayers. The Senior Manager will be Jennifer Townsend, 
in line with the prior year. The Assistant Manager this year will be Andrew Stuart. Appendix 
2 provides more details on specific roles and contact details of the team.

Reporting and communicationReporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating the audit findings 
for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are accountable to you in addressing the 
issues identified as part of the audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate 
with you through meetings with the finance team and the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee. Our communication outputs are included in Appendix 1.

15

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

.

P
age 36



Appendix 1: Key elements of our financial statements audit approach
ca

tio
n Continuous communication involving regular meetings between Audit Committee, Senior Management and audit team

Audit strategy D&A

C
om

m
un

ic Audit strategy 
and plan Annual Audit 

Letter
ISA 260 (UK&I) 

Report
ENABLED

AUDIT 
METHODOLOGY

Driving more value from the audit through data and 
analytics
Technology is embedded throughout our audit approach 
to deliver a high quality audit opinion. Use of Data and 
Analytics (D&A) to analyse large populations of 

f f

Initial planning 
meetings and 
i k t

Interim audit
Year end audit of 

financial 
statements and

Sign 
audit 

i i

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

transactions in order to identify key areas for our audit 
focus is just one element. We strive to deliver new 
quality insight into your operations that enhances our 
and your preparedness and improves your collective 
‘business intelligence.’ Data and Analytics allows us to:
— Obtain greater understanding of your processes, to 

CompletionPlanning Control evaluation Substantive testing

or
kf

lo
w

risk assessment statements and 
annual report

opinion

■ Perform risk 
assessment

■ Understand accounting 
and reporting activities

■ Plan substantive procedures ■ Perform completion 
procedures automatically extract control configurations and to 

obtain higher levels assurance.
— Focus manual procedures on key areas of risk and 

on transactional exceptions.
— Identify data patterns and the root cause of issues to 

increase forward-looking insight.

A
ud

it 
w

o assessment 
procedures 
and identify 
risks

■ Determine 
audit strategy

and reporting activities

■ Evaluate design and 
implementation of 
selected controls

■ Test operating 
effectiveness of selected

■ Perform substantive 
procedures

■ Consider if audit evidence is 
sufficient and appropriate

procedures

■ Perform overall 
evaluation

■ Form an audit opinion

■ Audit , Pensions and 
S C

g g
We anticipate using a wide range of data and analytics in 
our work around key areas such as journals, segmental 
income and expenditure, non-pay expenditure, PPE, 
debtors, creditors and payroll. We also expect to provide 
insights from our analysis of these tranches of data in 
our reporting to add further value from our audit.

■ Determine 
planned audit 
approach

effectiveness of selected 
controls

■ Assess control risk and 
risk of the accounts 
being misstated

Standards Committee 
reporting

16

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

p g

P
age 37



Appendix 2: Audit team

Your audit team has been drawn from our specialist public sector assurance department. Our audit team is detailed below.  

Name Andrew Sayers

Position Partner

‘My role is to lead our team and ensure the 
delivery of a high quality, valued added 

t l dit i i

Name Jennifer Townsend

Position Senior Manager

‘I provide quality assurance for the audit work and 
specifically any technical accounting and risk 
areas I will work closely with Andrew to ensureexternal audit opinion.

I will be the main point of contact for the Audit, 
Pensions and Standards Committee and 
Executive Directors.’

areas. I will work closely with Andrew to ensure 
we add value. I will work across the main 
Authority and Pension Fund  audit. 

I will liaise with the Strategic Finance Director and 
other Executive Directors.’Andy Sayers

Partner
Jennifer Townsend
Senior Manager

Name Andrew Stuart

+ 44 (0)207 694 8981
andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk

g

+ 44 (0)207 311 1368
jennifer.townsend@kpmg.co.uk

Position Assistant Manager

‘I will be responsible for the on-site delivery of 
our work and will supervise the work of our 
audit assistants.’

Andrew Stuart
Assistant Manager

+ 44 (0)75 5433 0111 

17

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

( )
andrew.stuart@kpmg.co.uk

P
age 38



Appendix 3: Independence and objectivity requirements

Independence and objectivity

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those charged with governance, 
at least annually, all relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the 
bj i i f h di d di ff Th d d l l

■ No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an appointment as a 
member of an audited body whose auditor is, or is proposed to be, from the same firm. 
In addition, no member or employee of the firm should accept or hold such 
appointments at related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a

objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place 
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons entrusted with the 
supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your case this is the Audit, Pensions and 
Standards Committee.

KPMG LLP i itt d t b i d b i t b i d d t APB Ethi l

appointments at related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a 
strategic partnership.

■ Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors at certain types of 
schools within the local authority.

■ Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity (whether paid or 
unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation providing services to an audited body 

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. APB Ethical 
Standards require us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and matters, 
including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in 
place, in our professional judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s 
independence and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Further to this auditors are required by the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice to: 

p ) y y g p g y
whilst being employed by the firm.

■ Auditors appointed by the PSAA should not accept engagements which involve 
commenting on the performance of other PSAA auditors on PSAA work without first 
consulting PSAA.

■ Auditors are expected to comply with the Terms of Appointment policy for the 

— Carry out their work with integrity, independence and objectivity;

— Be transparent and report publicly as required;

— Be professional and proportional in conducting work; 

— Be mindful of the activities of inspectorates to prevent duplication;

Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

■ Audit suppliers are required to obtain the PSAA’s written approval prior to changing any 
Engagement Lead in respect of each audited body.

■ Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action to be taken by 
Firms as set out in the Terms of Appointment.

— Take a constructive and positive approach to their work; 

— Comply with data statutory and other relevant requirements relating to the security, 
transfer, holding, disclosure and disposal of information.

PSAA’s Terms of Appointment includes several references to arrangements designed to 
support and reinforce the requirements relating to independence which auditors must

Confirmation statement

We confirm that as of the date of this report, in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is 
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the 
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and audit team is not impaired.

support and reinforce the requirements relating to independence, which auditors must 
comply with. These are as follows:

— Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved in the 
management, supervision or delivery of PSAA audit work should not take part in 
political activity.

18

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 39



This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the 
Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. We draw your attention to the Statement of Responsibilities of 
auditors and audited bodies which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website

© 2017 KPMG LLP a UK limited liability partnership and a

auditors and audited bodies, which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment s website 
(www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for 
putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

W itt d t idi ith hi h lit i If h© 2017 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a 
member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG 
International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or 
are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, should contact Andrew.Sayers@kpmg.co.uk , 
the engagement lead to the Authority and the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work 
under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.  After this, if you are still 
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints 
procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by 
writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, 
S ith S L d SW1P 3HZSmith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

P
age 40



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

21 March 2017 
 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CHECKS – PROGRESS UPDATE 
 

Report of the Director for Housing Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: Review and comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Other services consulted: 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Nilavra Mukerji, Director for Housing Services 
 

Report Author: Paul Monforte, Head of 
Operations 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 4394  
E-mail: paul.monforte@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report provides an update to committee on actions taken since the last report to 

Committee in December 2016. 
 

1.2 It also provides a summary of work being undertaken in respect of the remaining key 
Health and Safety risk areas (Gas safety, Asbestos, Legionella and Fire Risk 
Assessments) following the issues identified during the audit of communal area 
electrical inspections. 
 

1.3 Of the 9 recommendations within the Health and Safety audit report, 7 have now 
been completed, with the remaining 2 expected to be completed by May 2017. 
 

1.4 In regards of the EICR testing programme, Mite have revisited all sites and have 
rectified all outstanding repairs. They have now confirmed that all sites are safe and 
to the required standards. 
 

1.5 Following a number of improvements to the EICR testing process, it is proposed to 
re-commence the testing programme in May 2017. Mitie have recruited seven new 
electrical operatives to directly provide this service  
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

mailto:paul.monforte@lbhf.gov.uk


1.6 Housing Property Services is reviewing its structure and is creating new roles, with 
the appropriate skills, qualifications and expertise to improve it current approach to 
managing compliance areas such as Gas, asbestos and fire safety. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. The Committee notes the contents of this report and the actions taken to date by 
officers.  
 

2.2 The committee are invited to make comments and suggestions on the approach.  
 

3.0 BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 An internal audit report dated July 2016 in regards of Health and Safety, reviewed a 
number of different areas of compliance. Based on their findings, Audit could only 
provide a Limited Assurance, mainly due to shortcomings found in respect of the 
EICR communal testing. In respect of the other compliance areas audited, controls 
were found to be in place and operating effectively. A copy of the internal Audit 
report is provided in Appendix 1. 

 
3.2 At its September 2016 meeting, Audit Committee instructed officers to carry out a 

further audit on a sample of 125 completed tests. Following a tender process, officers 
instructed an Independent external electrical specialist Phoenix Compliance 
Management Ltd (PCM) to carry out the audit. The audit commenced in early 
November 2016 and was completed in early December 2016. 

 
3.3 The findings of this report and the proposed actions were reported at the December 

Audit Committee meeting. 
 
4.0 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Within Appendix 1 the Internal Audit report provides detailed recommendations for 

improvement. The table below, summarises the recommendations from the internal 
audit report, and the actions taken to date against them. 

 

 Recommendation Progress to Date Status 

1 Corporate policies to be 
reviewed and updated 
 

As reported to the last 
Committee, the Corporate 
Health and safety policies have 
all been updated by 
Environmental Health. They 
have now been presented and 
signed off at the safety 
committee in January 2017. 

Complete 

2 HRD policies – Provision of 
local Electrical Policy 

An Electrical Safety policy has 
been developed and is now in 
place. The policy was peer 
reviewed by Frankham Risk 
Management Services Limited. 
It is scheduled for a review in 

Complete 

Page 42



2018, unless regulatory / 
legislative changes trigger an 
earlier review. 

3 The newly developed policies 
will be placed on the LBHF 
intranet 

All new compliance policies will 
be linked to corporate policies 
on completion The new 
Housing Electrical Safety 
policy has been migrated to 
the LBHF intranet. 
 

May 2017 

4 The implementation of the 
new gas database on Iworld 

Gassys is now closed down 
and gas data has been 
transferred to Iworld (the 
Council’s Housing 
Management system.) 

Complete 

5 When Mitie amends their 
booked appointment this 
should be recorded 
 
 

An audit of this process was 
carried out by H&F officers in 
October 2016 and the booking 
and recording system 
managed by Mitie was deemed 
to be satisfactory. 

Complete 

6 Satisfactory performance of 
EICR checks 

For update please see section 
5 of this report 

May 2017 

7 Asbestos Management – 
contracts 

A Contract was presented to the 
Cabinet Member for Housing in 
December 2016, in 
accordance with the Council’s 
procedures, and approved. 

C Complete 

8 Asbestos Management 
programme- Monthly 
monitoring reports 

 The Asbestos Survey 
programme commenced 
January 2017. The first 
progress report is due at end 
of February and will be 
reviewed by LBHF officers to 
ensure the consultant is 
meeting our requirements. The 
results are being entered onto 
the IT system and shared with 
Mitie and relevant officers 

Complete 

9 Completion of communal hot 
water tank chlorination tests 

This recommendation was 
implemented prior to the July 
2016 Audit report 

 

Complete 

 
5. ELECTRICAL AUDIT REPORT FROM PCM (RECOMMENDATION 6) 
 
5.1 The final report from PCM dated 12th December 2016, provides the findings from 

their review. Of the 125 properties identified for inspection: 
 

 92 had test sheets were not completed correctly which required certificate re-issue. 

Page 43



 35 sites had works identified (known as C2 Faults, where action is required - see 
definition of Electrical faults at Appendix 4) which were outstanding. 

 Rectification works had already been identified on the remaining 90 sites from the 
original inspection by Mitie, and these works had been carried out correctly. 

  
5.2 Mitie were issued with an Early Warning Notice under contract, and asked to submit 

a Service Improvement Plan, requiring the following areas to be addressed: 

 Detail how and by when they will remedy the deficiencies within the audits 
carried out by PCM, and confirm those electrical installations are safe and 
compliant see 5.1 above. 

 How Mitie will provide assurance to H&F that the remaining 591 EICR tests 
not audited by PCM are safe and compliant. How Mitie will improve the 
service provided to H&F going forward, to ensure there is a robust and 
consistent testing process, and quality management systems in place in 
respect of the future testing programmes. 

 
5.3 LBHF officers have been meeting monthly with management from Mitie to develop 

improvements to the testing processes. Appendix 2 details the actions developed by 
the group. Pending the completion of the re-inspection and implementation of the 
improvements identified in the action plan all further testing has been suspended. 
This temporary delay is done at no risk to the Council as the highest priority 
installations have already been tested and the remainder can still be completed 
within the original 5-year programme (due to complete in 2019) through an 
accelerated testing regime after the restart. 

 
5.4 8Mitie revisited all 125 installations themselves, within a few weeks of the PCM 

inspections. Where physical issues were identified at the 35 sites, the faults found 
were rectified. Mitie have confirmed that as at 22nd February 2017 all 125 
installations are compliant within the acceptable industry parameters laid out in 
BS7671. These were therefore considered to be safe installations. 
 

5.5 A 100% post inspection audit of the 35 sites will be carried out by PCM in March 
2017. Committee will be provided with an update at the meeting. 
 

5.6 Mitie have confirmed that all certificates identified with Administrative errors have 
been corrected and re-issued and will be subject to a desktop audit by PCM. 

 
5.7  In addition to the 125 installations identified by PCM. Mitie have also carried out 

desktop reviews of the remaining 591 installations previously tested. The results are 
as follows: 
a) 186 (30%) were found to have physical issues Cat 1 53 Cat 2 133 for which job 

orders were raised and remedial works were completed. Mitie confirmed on 22nd 
February 2017 that all remedial works had been completed. 

b) The remaining sites were visually inspected to confirm that the installation was 
safe for continued use (i.e. no obvious C1 or C2’s). 

c) Mitie have stated all 591 are now compliant and all physical issues have been 
rectified. The remaining 591 tests will be subject to a 40% post inspection audit 
including all 186 blocks where works were completed. The remaining number 
approximately 50 will be a sample of blocks where remedial works were not 
carried out. The final number of inspections completed will be dependent on the 

Page 44



results from the initial 40% post inspections. This process will be completed by 
the end of April. 

 
5.8 As a result of the PCM findings, Mitie have recruited seven new electrical operatives 

to directly provide this service rather than use sub-contractors. This will provide 
greater control and transparency in the future. 
 

5.9 Using the issues identified and in conjunction with PCM; Property Services and Mitie 
have reviewed and amended the contract specification to provide clarity of roles and 
responsibilities and to remove ambiguities in standards to be achieved within the 
wider tolerances provided by the legislative framework. This now provides greater 
control and clear performance standards. 

 
5.10 Housing Property Services will be implementing a number of changes to ensure a 

much more robust approach to performance and contract management. These 
changes will be fully implemented by 3rd April 2017. Section 7 details the proposed 
changes being made and changes specific to ensure electrical compliance are: 

 A Service Level Agreement will be developed to provide a more efficient 
reporting process, ensuring issues are dealt with in a timely manner through a 
robust escalation process. 

 Housing Property Services will develop programmes of improvement  
and upgrades to the communal electrical systems using information and 
recommendations from the EICR tests. 

 
 
6.0 INTERNAL HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE REVIEW  

 
6.1 A service review of Housing property services and the Mitie contract, commenced in 

November and Project Team established a specific working group to address this 
area of delivery.  

 
6.2 In developing the work plan for this group and in addition to the initial review findings 

of the audit recommendations, the issues raised by the electrical testing issues and 
the electrical service improvement plan were all utilised. 
 

6.3 Electrical and gas compliance have been prioritised first with the other 3 areas being 
worked on but with slightly longer timescales. 
 

6.4 Shortly after commencing the gas review, a whistleblowing allegation was received 
in relation to gas compliance and quality control audits. The subsequent investigation 
has been carried out independently of the service, in accordance with the Council’s 
procedures. 
 

6.5 Any findings from the whistleblowing investigation will be presented independently, 
and any recommendations will be reviewed and implemented as required. 
 

6.6 The allegation identified 53 properties that failed internal quality audit inspections. 
These were passed to the Director of Housing Services on 25 November for 
immediate investigation. 
 

Page 45



6.7 PCM were commissioned to carry out an independent inspection of the properties to 
ensure that the installations and residents were safe and compliant. Inspections 
were prioritised based on the allegation in each case.  
 

6.8 PCM managed to gain access to 38 of the properties during the latter part of   
December and early January. 

 
  
6.9 Of the remaining 16 properties, a further 5 have since been inspected (27th February 

2017), after a stronger letter, stating the possibility of forced entry as a last resort 
was sent out on the advice of legal services. 10 have not been inspected due to no 
access, despite letters, phone calls and 4 separate visit attempts.  

 
6.10 In total 5% (2) were found to be non-compliant during the PCM inspection and were 

rectified within 2 hours of these being reported in addition 60% of inspections 
showed some issues relating to workmanship and administrative shortfalls. However, 
committee should note that none of these were deemed to be unsafe or non-
compliant. 

 
6.11 Following advice from the legal team, the annual service for the remaining 10 non 

access properties are being brought forward and any further access issues will be 
addressed through the established gas safety access process. 
 

6.12 In respect of the remaining, key health and safety compliance areas they are all 
under review by the compliance working group and the anticipated completion dates 
of the reviews are: 

 Water Hygiene – 1/5/17 

 Asbestos – 1/6/17 

 Fire Risk Assessments – 1/6/17 
 

7.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT ACTIONS AND TIME TABLE 
 
7.1 A Service improvement plan has been developed by Property Services and Mitie 

with regard to Gas safety compliance and is attached at Appendix 4. 
 

7.2 Mitie have taken the issues raised very seriously and provided reassurance that all 
necessary steps will and have been taken to identify the shortfalls and the root 
cause. Any engineer providing poor service or workmanship will be subject to 
disciplinary proceedings and ultimately, if appropriate, will be dismissed. They have 
undertaken a thorough review of their processes and quality assurance and as a 
result of their findings and those of PCM, have instigated the following actions: 
 

 From April 2017, Mitie will be self-delivering all gas installation works.  

 Mitie is instigating a process for flues in voids with a sticker being placed within 

the boiler case indicating if there are flue joints in a void so an engineer is aware 

when he visits to service. 

 Issues with Boiler flues making good have been addressed.  

 Mitie has revisited all blocks on the White City estate and checked every boiler 

flue, plus issued all engineers with kits for internally and externally making good. 

Page 46



 The boiler manufacturer has confirmed in writing that the collars provided were 

sufficient. Nevertheless, Mitie have continued with the making good, to satisfy 

the council inspectors’ requirements and a report of all work undertaken has 

been completed.  

 As a further measure to assure both Mitie and LBHF, Mitie has engaged with 
Gas Safe and requested they visit the contract and complete an audit. This is 
due to take place in May which was the earliest date Gas Safe could offer. As 
part of their work, Gas Safe will also speak to key officers in housing property 
services, and their findings will be shared with LBHF. 

 
7.3 Housing Property Services and Mitie have also jointly agreed: 

 

 Service Level Agreement to streamline reporting an escalation process to 
ensure problems are identified and dealt with in a timely manner, will be 
developed ready to commence using in April17. 

 From March, Property Services inspectors will attend Mitie toolbox talks to 
ensure continuity and common understanding of requirements and 
standards. 

 An increase in the level of post inspections from 10% to 15% until non-
compliance issues are falling to below 1% of total sample.  
Instigated a review of the contract specification in conjunction with PCM to 
remove ambiguities and clarify roles and responsibilities. 

  KPI s are being finalised and supported by improved dashboard  
monitoring to ensure failings are broken down into various categories   such 
as safety, contractual/workmanship and administrative. This will assist in 
identifying and targeting problem areas for corrective action. We aim to have 
these in place by April 17.  

 Operational groups and core groups are being restructured to ensure that 
performance management and issue resolution are at the heart of those 
groups, with regular review of process, procedures and KPI’s to ensure best 
practice is maintained.  

 PCM’s monthly independent post inspection report is now issued directly to 
Housing Property Services at the same time as they are delivered to Mitie. 
This will enable LBHF to address poor performance and quality issues and 
identify any trends in performance which may need to be addressed. Subject 
to a procurement exercise PCM or another independent auditor will be 
appointed directly by LBHF.   
 

7.4 Housing property Services will implement several significant changes to ensure a 
more robust and accountable approach to performance and contract management to 
ensure that Mitie deliver their services to the required standards and specification in 
accordance with the contract. Some of the changes are detailed in paragraphs 7.5 to 
7.8 below. 

 
7.5 To strengthen Housing Property Services management of the Mitie contract a new 

post of Principal Manager (Compliance has been created to bring together 
management and delivery of all housing compliance functions. In addition, a 
separate Compliance Manager will provide oversight and independent scrutiny of 
compliance delivery, working independently and reporting directly to the Director of 

Page 47



Housing Services. Both posts are being recruited to urgently, with the aim to have 
them in place by May 2017. 

 
7.6 As part of these changes the role and responsibilities of Housing’s Health and safety 

team will be redefined along with reporting and review requirements. 
 

7.7 As per 7.5, We are creating new roles, with the appropriate skills, qualifications and 
expertise to improve our current approach to managing asbestos and fire safety, with 
the aim to have these in place by May 2017. 
 

7.8 Appoint independent auditor to undertake representative sample quality checks of 
fire risk assessments and asbestos management plans 
 

7.9 The lessons learnt from the Electrical and Gas reviews will be applied to the policies, 
procedures and processes being developed for the compliance areas, including 
quality control, defining roles and responsibilities, performance management, role of 
meetings, reporting and actions and removal of ambiguity. The review of the 
compliance areas and their implementation is due to be complete by May 2017. 

 
8 Equality Implications 
 
8.1  The Council has a statutory duty towards the health and safety of all residents living 

in its properties. 
 

9 Legal Implications 
 

9.1 The Council is responsible for health and safety checks in a range of premises, both 
as an employer and a landlord. It has statutory obligations under various pieces of 
legislation, a contractual obligation to its tenants and leaseholders and a duty of care 
to ensure the safety of residents. 
 

9.2 It is important that the Council has robust procedures and policies to ensure 
compliance with its legal obligations. Non- compliance could pose a health safety 
risk and result in a criminal prosecution.  
 

9.3 Implications completed by: Janette Mullins, Senior Solicitor (Housing Litigation), 
0208 753 2744 
 

10 Financial Implications 
 
10.1 At present, any financial risks in relation to re-inspections have been borne by the 

contractor and to date Mitie have agreed to pay for a full desktop review of all the 
remaining EICR tests completed by Mitie. 

 
10.2 Mitie have also agreed to pay for further Electrical/visual tests on any subsequent 

highlighted circuits, estimated at this time to be 150 properties and will pay for 
Phoenix Compliancy Management to oversee any such tests and rectifications 
works, including post inspecting those works. 

 

Page 48



10.3 Mitie have agreed to reimburse the costs to the council for the current audit  carried 
out by PCM as instructed by the council. 

 
10.4 Implications completed by: Danny Rochford, Head of Finance, 020 8753 4023. 
 
11 Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 

None. 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Final Report on Health and Safety Checks.  
Appendix 2 - Mitie Electrical Service improvement plan 
Appendix 3 - Gas safety - Service improvement plan  
Appendix 4 - Definition of electrical faults – C1 - 3 
 
  

Page 49



Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Final Report on Health and Safety Checks. 
 

Tri Borough / Bi Borough / [BOROUGH 

NAME] 

 

Draft/Final Internal Audit Report 

 

[TITLE] 
[MONTH] [YEAR] 

London Borough of Hammersmith and 

Fulham 

 

Final Internal Audit Report 

 

Health and Safety Checks 

July 2016 

Page 50



Contents 
  
1 Introduction  

2 Executive Summary  

3 Summary of Findings  

4 Acknowledgement  

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan  

Appendix 2: Contractual KPI  

Appendix 3: Definition of Assurance Opinions and Recommendation Priorities  

Appendix 4: Audit Scope & Limitations  

Appendix 5: Timetable and Distribution List  

 

Page 51



 

1 Introduction 
 

As part of the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan, we have undertaken an internal audit of the MITIE 
Health and Safety Checks in the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (LBHF). 
 
The Council is responsible for health and safety checks in a range of premises, both as an 
employer and a landlord. These include buildings such as Council Offices, libraries, schools, 
and commercial properties where this is specified in the terms of the lease. 
 
The Housing and Regeneration Department (HRD) manage the Council’s housing stock and 
provide health and safety checks within its responsibility areas. This covers the requirement to 
complete health and safety checks on domestic properties for which the Council is responsible.  
 
A 10 year repairs and maintenance contract with MITIE Property Services UK (MITIE) came 
into effect on 1st November 2013. This has consolidated eight previous contracts into a single 
borough wide contract and is projected to save the Council approximately £2 million per year 
when compared to the previous arrangements on a like for like basis. The new contract with 
MITIE incorporates the provision for gas servicing, checking electrical installations, Portable 
Appliance Testing (PAT) and completion of water checks on communal water tanks. The 
completion of asbestos surveys lies with Asbestos Consultants Europe Ltd (ACE) under a 
contract which commenced 1 November 2014. Records of asbestos surveys are held as an 
interim measure on a database maintained by Ayerst Ltd. 
 
MITIE are responsible for the following checks on the Council’s housing stock that will be 
covered within the scope of this audit: 

 Annual Gas Safety Checks 

 Electrical Installation Condition Reports (EICRs) every five years and on every void 
property 

 Asbestos management within all void properties as part of the void process. 

 Communal water tank chlorination 

  PAT testing on hostels and sheltered housing 
 
MITIES remit covers the following property types that will be covered within the scope of this 
audit: 

 Housing - Council tenanted properties 

 Housing – Communal areas 

 Council owned Temporary Accommodation, (limited to hostels only) 

 Sheltered Accommodation 

  

Page 52



 

2 Executive Summary 
 

2.1 Assurance Opinion 

 

 Nil Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

Audit Opinion  
 

 
  

 
2.2 Recommendations Summary 

 
The following table highlights the number and categories of recommendations made. The 
Action Plan at Appendix 1 details the specific recommendations made as well as agreed 
management actions to implement them. 
 
The original intention was for the audit to cover only those check undertaken by MITIE; 
however the scope was expanded to incorporate asbestos surveys and communal water tests. 

 

Area of Scope Adequacy Effectiveness Recommendations Raised 

High Medium Low 

Roles, responsibilities and 
governance. 

  0 2 1 

Policies, procedures and 
training. 

  0 0 0 

Identification of properties 
requiring safety checks. 

  0 0 1 

Completion of Gas Safety 
checks and TBR. 

  0 0 1 

Completion of EICR and 
Remedial Works. 

  1 0 1 

Asbestos Management 
Reports. 

  0 1 0 

Completion of Communal Hot 
Water Tank Chlorination 
Tests. 

  0 1 0 

Portable Appliance Testing.   0 0 0 

Performance Management 
and Reporting. 

  0 1 1 

Total 1 5 5 

 

Please refer to the Appendix 2 for a definition of the audit opinions and recommendation 
priorities. 
  

Li 

Page 53



 

3 Summary of Findings 
 

In Internal Audit’s opinion, Limited assurance can be given to Members, the Chief Executive 
and other officers that the controls relied upon at the time of the audit were suitable designed, 
consistently applied and effective in their application. 

Although controls in most areas were in place and operating effectively, a number of Electrical 
Installation Condition Reports (EICRs) had not been completed to a satisfactory standard and 
had not yet been reperformed and remedial works undertaken.  It has now been confirmed that 
all outstanding works are complete, albeit rectification was several months after the audit 
fieldwork was completed. 

With regards to Gas Safety, two low priority recommendations have been raised that directly 
link to completion of gas safety checks. 

 
Design of the control framework 

  

 The MITIE repairs contract is managed by the Strategic Core Group, with designated 
operation Core Groups for Responsive and Planned Repairs. The management of the 
MITIE Health and Safety Checks falls under the Responsive Repairs Core Group. 

 There are Corporate policies developed by the Corporate Health & Safety Service setting 
the high level policy for the following: 

o Gas Safety Management September 2012; 

o Asbestos Management August 2013; 

o Electrical Fixed Installations March 2012; and 

o Water Hygiene Management July 2011. 

 Responsibility for review of these policies lies with the Corporate Safety Team. 

 There are local policies and plans developed by HRD which cover the following: 

o HRD Repairs and Maintenance Policy March 2010; 

o Gas Safety Policy 2013; 

o Asbestos Management Plan 2013; and 

o Water Hygiene 2013. 

 There is a Gas Policy and an Asbestos Management Plan in place, which set out 
responsibilities and the standards to be achieved. The Asbestos Management Plan 
includes a clear structure chart for HRD. 

 A formal contract is in place with MITIE which specifies the requirements with regard to 
Gas Safety, EICR and PAT checks. 

 A formal contract is in place with ACE which specifies the requirements for Asbestos 
Surveys and Risk Assessments. 

 Once every week a file is taken from the Council’s property database iWorld and issued 
to MITIE in which contain all changes to domestic properties for which the Council is 
responsible. This covers change of tenancy, notice of new right to buy leaseholders. 
Where MITIE identify any change this is reported back to HRD who update iWorld. 

 MITIE commence the process of completing annual gas checks 10 months after the most 
recent check was completed. This allows time for any missed appointments, no contacts 
or no access. 

 MITIE issue a Landlord Gas Safety Certificate (LGSC) on completion of the gas check, 
with a copy saved into their database. HRD have access to the MITIE database to view 
the LGSC. 

Page 54



 

 MITIE issue a Daily Report which details all properties with a gas appliance, the date of 
last check, date of next check, first letter date and first appointment date. The report 
identifies any properties which are overdue a check, and those falling due in the next 30 
days. 

 Communal blocks with water tanks which contain calorifiers which require an annual 
check. This results in the submission of a Service Report, Legionella Analysis Report and 
Certificate of Cleansing & Disinfectant to HRD. HRD maintain a control spread sheet of 
the 21 such properties and status of all checks. 

 MITIE are required under the contract to submit a monthly report which covers the 
following: 

o Numbers of LGSC issued, number overdue and a list of properties overdue; 

o Numbers of EICR jobs completed and details of any works arising from those jobs; 

o Numbers of PAT checks completed and lists of any overdue. 

 MITIE are required to make three visits to each property to complete a gas check. Where 
no access can be gained, the case is reported back to HRD, and referred to 
Environmental Protection to take legal action and obtain, where necessary a Warrant of 
Entry. 

 The contract with MITIE requires the Council to confirm the suitability of the MITIE 
employees and sub-contractors who complete gas safety, EICR and PAT checks. 

 A programme of blocks which hold an electrical installation and require an EICR check 
stating date inspection due and when completed is held. 

 The contract with MITIE specifies the Key Performance Indicators (KPI) to be achieved 
though only one covers Health and Safety checks (see Appendix 2). 

 Responsive Repairs Core Group is required to meet once a month and review the 
performance reports submitted by MITIE. 

 
Application of and compliance with the control framework 

 

 Terms of Reference existed for the Responsive Repairs Core Group which specified their 
remit, membership and requirement to meet at least once a month. The Terms of 
Reference was agreed by the Responsive Repairs Core Group May 2015. 

 There was no local HRD policy in place for EICR checks. The HRD Repairs and 
Maintenance Policy does not cover such checks. 

 The LBHF Corporate Safety intranet page included the corporate policies stated above, 
but there was no link to the HRD policies previously stated and posted on the Tri-Borough 
intranet. 

 The Corporate policies all required an annual review and review was overdue in some 
cases. 

 The HRD policies refer to the Executive Director of the department, as well SmartFM. The 
service has recently reorganised and there is no longer an Executive Director, and 
SmartFM has been replaced by Total Facilities Management (TFM). Although no 
recommendation has been raised, these policies are in need of updating. 

 Asbestos surveys and maintenance of the database on which they are held was 
undertaken by Ayerst. A separate contract for completion of asbestos surveys was 
awarded to ACE Ltd, and it was planned that as a temporary measure the contract with 
Ayerst would be extended to maintain the database of asbestos surveys until a new 
system (TechForge) could be implemented. It was noted that this is a corporate wide 

Page 55



 

project, and while it expected to be complete in the new year, no formal plan and 
timetable could be produced. 

 In two properties where no access to complete gas safety checks could be obtained by 
MITIE the actual time of the appointment was different from the time offered on the 
original letter. In one of these, there was a comment on the MITIE system that the tenant 
contacted to arrange a different time, but no explanation could be identified for the other 
case.  

 MITIE submit a monthly highlight report but it does not cover the health and safety checks 
for electrical installations, PAT and completion of hot water checks on communal water 
tanks. 

 MITIE complete all EICR checks and issue Certificate and inform HRD. A check is made 
of the reasonableness of works stated as completed, but there are no site inspections. 
We were advised this was due to lack of resources. 

 An examination of 10 properties where it was stated that an EICR was completed could 
not confirm that an EICR Certificate was held in one instance, and in one other, it was 
noted the Certificate stated the condition was unsatisfactory. In discussion with the HRD 
Electrical Engineer, we were advised that the performance of the MITIE sub-contractor 
has been unsatisfactory. Checks have since been reperformed and remedial works 
undertaken however this was several months after the issue was identified. 

 Examination of the HRD calorifier control sheet identified five properties for which current 
Certificates were not held. Emails were held by HRD confirming actions taken to obtain 
the necessary certificates but as at the time of the audit, no further response had been 
received. In addition, in one other property examined (Planetree Court), there was no 
Cleansing & Disinfectant Certificate. 

 A programme for the completion of Asbestos Surveys was agreed with ACE, but this was 
only agreed in September 2015. It could not be confirmed what reporting there was from 
ACE of surveys completed. 

 Examination of the contractual KPI identifies that there is only one which covers Health 
and Safety checks. This target is 100% compliance of gas safety checks (see Appendix 
2). Performance at the time of the audit was at 99.96%. There are also a set of MPIs 
related to Health and Safety that are monitored. 

 MITIE submit monthly source data from which the Housing & Regeneration Department 
produce a Balanced Score Card covering the KPI as stated in the contract.  

 A compliance report is submitted monthly by MITIE which details perform against forecast 
for EICR checks.  

 The Balanced Score Card is presented to the Director for review. 

 Examination of the Council’s website could not confirm publication of repairs 
performance. 

 Minutes were taken for the Responsive Repairs Core Group for its meetings in May, June 
and July 2015. The minutes confirmed performance was reviewed regularly. 

 Minutes were not provided for the Strategic Core Group and hence it could not be 
confirmed that this meets as required. 

 
4 Acknowledgement 

 
We would like to thank the following members of staff for their time and assistance during the audit: 

 Paul Monforte – Head of Operations, Repairs; 

 Michael White – Principal Development Manager; 

 Danny Reynolds – Group Leader, Services Engineering; 

Page 56



 

 Joseph Bedford – Gas Performance Manager; 

 Stephen Graham – Business Support Officer; 

 Ed Cousin – Mechanical/Electrical Project Engineer; 

 Alistair Nimmons – Head of Systems & Programme Management; and 

 Elizabeth Oakwell – Project & Support Officer, Systems & Programme team. 

 

Page 57



 

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan 

1. Roles, Responsibilities & Governance – Corporate Policies 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Corporate policies have been 
produced covering health and safety 
matters which were issued several 
years ago and are past the planned 
review date: 

 Gas Safety created 18 August 
2010, now version 1.12 and last 
amended 4 September 2012; 

 Asbestos Management created 21 
July 2011, now version 1.8 and 
last amended 13 August 2013; 

 Electrical Safety created 21 July 
2011, now version 1.2 and last 
amended 16 March 2012; and 

 Water Hygiene Management 
created 18 July 2011, now version 
1.3 and last amended 16 March 
2012. 

Responsibility for review lies with the 
Corporate Safety Team and this 
recommendation has not been 
considered in the overall assurance 
opinion for the audit. 

Where policies are not reviewed on a 
periodic basis, there is a risk that they 
no longer reflect the objectives, 
organisational structure and working 
practices of the Council. 

The Corporate policies should be 
reviewed and updated as required on 
an annual basis. 

Responsibility for overseeing review 
of policies should be allocated to an 
individual to help ensure policies in 
need of review are promptly identified. 

Management Response 

This is a corporate responsibility, No action to be taken by Housing Department 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

  

 
  

P
age 58



 

 
2. Roles, Responsibilities & Governance – HRD Policies 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Policies and Plans are in place within 
the department including a Gas Safety 
Policy, Asbestos Management Plan 
and Water Hygiene Plan. 

However, there is no local HRD policy 
for EICR and PAT checks. 

Where policies are incomplete, there 
is a risk that the objectives, 
organisational structure and working 
practices in these areas may not be 
clearly defined and understood. 

A separate and local HRD policy 
covering EICR and PAT checks 
should be developed. 

Management Response 

Policies for EICR testing and PAT checks to be developed 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Stan Grant / Danny Reynolds September 2016 

 
 

3. Roles, Responsibilities & Governance – Publication of Policies 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low There is no link from HRD policies on 
Tribnet to the Corporate policies on 
the LBHF intranet. 

The lack of clear and easy reference 
to all appropriate policies may prevent 
all staff from understanding correct 
responsibilities and duties with regard 
to health and safety checks. 

Consideration should be given to 
whether the publication of policies on 
Tribnet and LBHF intranet should 
include links between different 
pages. 

Management Response 

New policies will be placed on newly developed internet and links to corporate policies will be provided where this is applicable 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Norman Whyte December 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 59



 

4. Identification of Properties Requiring Safety Checks – IWORLD and GASSYS Reconciliation 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low HRD maintain two separate systems 
on which the domestic properties 
requiring gas checks are retained 
(iWorld and GASSYS), but there is no 
reconciliation between the two 
systems. 

Where data is held on two separate 
systems without periodic review and 
agreement, there is an increased risk 
that there are errors and 
discrepancies between the two. 

There should be a periodic 
reconciliation (6 monthly) of the 
properties requiring a gas check on 
GASSYS with those as recorded on 
iWorld. 

Management Response 

Gassys is being decommissioned in October 2016 and a process is being put in place to develop the existing Iworld system so 
that gas data is held on that system 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Desmond Stewart/Joseph Bedford November 2016 

 
 

5. Gas Safety Checks and TBRs – Completion of Visits as Booked 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low In two instances, the actual time of the 
MITIE visit recorded was different 
from that originally booked. In one 
instance, there was a comment on the 
MITIE system that an alternative time 
was arranged. 

Where it is not clear that MITIE have 
visited at the time arranged with the 
tenant, it may not be possible to 
demonstrate that the tenant has been 
treated fairly when trying to gain 
access. 

MITIE visits should be completed as 
and when originally booked. Any 
agreed changes to bookings should 
be recorded. 

Management Response 

To be discussed with Mitie at next Operational Core Group meeting and decisions taken to resolve this recorded and monitored at 
Future core groups 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Stan Grant July 2016 

 

  

P
age 60



 

 

6. Completion of EICR & Remedial Works – Satisfactory Performance of EICR checks 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

High In 10 properties where it was stated that an 
EICR was completed, no certificate could be 
located for one property. From the other nine 
instances, in seven cases remedial works were 
identified which were classed by the Inspector 
as dangerous or potentially dangerous, but no 
further works had been recorded as undertaken. 

Further examination and discussions 
established that of the nine properties 
inspected: 

 One should not have been tested as The 
installation tested belongs to a leaseholder 

In six cases the EICR was completed but was 
rejected by the Council as the inspection 
documentation suggested the inspection was 
not completed to a satisfactory standard. We 
were advised that MITIE have been instructed to 
reperform the safety checks and following the 
audit, remedial work had been completed in one 
case and scheduled in two cases.  All works are 
now complete 

Where satisfactory EICR checks are 
not completed and recorded, and all 
outstanding works resolved, there is 
an increased risk of Council tenants 
being exposed to risk of harm from 
unsafe electrical installations. 

The unsatisfactory completion of 
EICRs and should be raised at the 
Repairs Core Group and MITIE 
instructed to develop a plan to 
reperform the EICRs. 

Completion of checks and remedial 
works should be monitored more 
closely, including on site checks where 
there are concerns over the quality of 
work undertaken. 

Management Response 

All works have now been completed. Above issues and recommendations to be discussed with Mitie at Operational Core Group meeting and 
decisions taken to resolve these issues will be recorded and monitored and tracked.  LBHF to review internal procedures to ensure processes 
are more closely monitored. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Stan Grant./Danny Reynolds July 2016 

 

  

P
age 61



 

7. Asbestos Management Reports – Contracts 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium There was previously a contract for provision 
of both asbestos surveys and maintaining the 
database of surveys with Ayerst. 

ACE were contracted to complete all asbestos 
surveys with effect from 1 November 2014. As 
a temporary measure, Ayerst were required to 
maintain the database of asbestos surveys 
completed. 

No formal contract with Ayerst could be 
identified for this temporary contract 
extension. 

Where there is no formal contract in place 
between the Council and contractors and 
agreed by Legal Services, there is an 
increased risk that the Council operates on 
terms and conditions which are dis-
advantageous or that cannot be enforced. 

In the circumstances that an existing 
contractor is engaged to undertake the 
provision of services for a temporary period, 
this should be formally confirmed in a 
contract, subject to agreement by Legal 
Services. 

Management Response 

A retrospective contract will be put in place with Ayerst  

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Norman Whyte September 2016 

 

8. Performance Management & Assurance – Monthly Monitoring Reports 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium While there is a programme for the 
completion of asbestos surveys by ACE, 
there is no report received which identifies 
surveys completed against plan. 

Where reports on completion of asbestos 
surveys are not provided by ACE, there is 
a risk that non-completion of surveys, 
may not be identified. 

ACE should be required to submit a 
monthly performance report stating the 
numbers of surveys completed against 
plan. 

Management Response 

The survey programme is yet to start. Programme is a scoping stage and will be monitored by the Health and Safety team, when the surveys 
have commenced.  

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Norman Whyte September 2016 

 
 

9. Completion of Communal Hot Water Tank Chlorination Tests 

P
age 62



 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Examination of the calorifier control sheet 
identified five properties for which current 
water certificates (Service Report, Cleansing 
Disinfectant Certificate and Legionella Test) 
were not held. Emails were held by the 
department confirming actions taken to obtain 
the necessary certificates, but as at the time 
of the audit, no certificates had been received. 

In addition, in one other property examined 
(Planetree Court), there was no Cleansing & 
Disinfectant Certificate. 

It was confirmed that these have now been 
received. 

Where the required water certificates are not 
obtained, there is a reduced assurance that 
communal water systems are safe for use. 

Service Reports, Cleansing Disinfectant 
Certificates and Legionella Test Certificates 
should be obtained for all properties where 
these are outstanding. 

Progress with completing of checks and 
receipt of certificates should be monitored and 
reported to senior management. 

Management Response 

This has now been implemented. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

N/A Implemented. 

 

10. Performance Management & Assurance – Publication of Performance 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low It was stated that performance on housing 
repairs and health & safety checks is 
published, however this could not be 
confirmed. 

Without publication of performance data it 
is possible that the public, and Council 
tenants, may develop an inaccurate view 
of performance or the Council may not be 
able to demonstrate transparency. 

Consideration should be given to 
publishing performance information in 
relation to MITIE in the completion of all 
health & safety checks on domestic 
properties. 

Management Response 

To be reviewed and actioned as appropriate 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Norman Whyte October 2016 

P
age 63



 

Appendix 2: Contractual KPI 

 

No. Key Performance Indicator First year 
target 

Target 
2nd yr. 

onwards 

Percentage incentivisation 
based on annual 
expenditure for Repairs, 
Servicing & Voids  

1 
Percentage of properties with a valid Landlord 
Gas Safety Certificate  

100.00% 100.00% No financial incentivisation 

2 
Percentage of tenants satisfied with the repairs 
service 

93.00% 95.00% 0.60% 

3 Quality inspection pass rate 95.00% 99.00% 0.60% 

4 
Average number of calendar days to complete 
standard voids 

10 days 10 days 0.40% 

5 Right First Time 85.00% 90.00% 0.20% 

6 

Repairs completed on time  

 Priority 1 repairs  

 Priority 2 – 5 repairs 
(both targets to be met to meet the KPI and 
receive incentive) 

 
92.00% 
90.00% 

 
 

 
98.00% 
96.00% 

 
 

0.20% 

7 Percentage of appointments kept 98.00% 98.00% 
No financial incentivisation 
 

 

P
age 64



 

Appendix 3: Definition of Assurance Opinions and 
Recommendation Priorities 

In order to help put the audit opinion and recommendation priority ratings in context the 
following tables detail the current ratings used by Internal Audit. 

 

Rating Description 

 There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the objectives. 
Compliance with the control process is considered to be substantial and no 
material errors or weaknesses were found. 

 While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses and/or 
omissions which put some of the system objectives at risk, and/or there is 
evidence that the level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

 Weaknesses and / or omissions in the system of controls are such as to put 
the system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance puts the 
system objectives at risk. 

 Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or 
abuse, and/or significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the 
system open to error or abuse. 

 

Priority Description 

High Recommendation addresses fundamental weaknesses, which seriously 
compromise the effective accomplishment of the system’s objectives.  Risks 
presented by the control weaknesses could be damaging in the short term. 
The management action required should be implemented as soon as possible, 
certainly within 0-3 months. 

Medium Recommendation addresses serious weakness, which affect the reliance to be 
placed on the system. Risks presented by control weaknesses could be 
damaging in the medium term. Management action is required within 0-6 
months.  

Low Recommendation addresses minor weaknesses, or suggests a desirable 
improvement. Risks presented by control weaknesses are unlikely and 
inconsequential. Management action is recommended to address concerns 
within 0-9 months. 

   

Su 

N 

L 

Sa 

Page 65



 

Appendix 4: Audit Scope & Limitations 
 

This audit was a full risk based review of the arrangements for the procurement of the PMIS 
and included the following areas: 
 

Ref Audit Area - Description Comments on Coverage / Area Objectives 

1 Roles, Responsibilities and 
Governance 

Roles and responsibilities with regards to undertaking and 
monitoring safety checks and remedial works for the 
different types of properties within MITIE’s remit are 
clearly defined and understood 

2 Policies, Procedures and 
Training 

All staff across the Council act within current legislative 
and management requirements and that processes can 
be conducted efficiently during periods of staff absence. 

To ensure that the competence of staff can be 
demonstrated. 

3 Identification of Properties 
Requiring Safety Checks 

There are mechanisms in place to ensure all properties 
requiring each type of safety check are identified and 
including on inspection schedules promptly. 

Checks are scheduled in accordance with the required 
timeframes. 

Any acquisitions or disposals are reflected in the schedule 
of inspections. 

4 Completion of Gas Safety 
Checks and TBRs 

Gas safety checks and any TBRs are undertaken in 
accordance with Council policy and the legal timeframe on 
all required properties.  

Accurate and up-to-date records are held in respect of gas 
safety checks for the appropriate legal timeframes and 
that copies are retained and readily available to the 
appropriate persons. 

5 Completion of EICRs and 
Remedial Works 

EICRs and any remedial works are undertaken in 
accordance with Council policy and the legal timeframe on 
all required properties.  

Accurate and up-to-date records are held in respect 
EICRs for the appropriate legal timeframes and that 
copies are retained and readily available to the 
appropriate persons. 

6 Asbestos Management Reports Asbestos Management Reports are prepared for each 
void property and are communicated to the appropriate 
persons. 

7 Completions Communal hot 
water tank chlorination Checks 

Communal hot water tank chlorination checks are 
undertaken where required and that copies are retained 
and readily available to the appropriate persons. 

8 PAT Testing PAT tests are undertaken where required in accordance 
with Council policy and the legal timeframe required. 

Copies of test records are retained and readily available to 
the appropriate persons. 

Page 66



 

Ref Audit Area - Description Comments on Coverage / Area Objectives 

9 Performance Management and 
Assurance 

Performance and delivery meet Council standards and 
targets, and that this is reported to senior management 
and members on a regular basis. 

Assurance is gained that contractors are using 
appropriately trained and qualified staff and are working to 
a satisfactory quality standard. Corrective action is taken 
where the contractors are not performing to a satisfactory 
standard. 

  

Page 67



 

Limitations to the Scope of the Audit 
 
The internal audit approach was developed through an assessment of risks and 
management controls operating within the agreed scope. 
 
The following procedures were adopted: 

 Identification of the role and objectives of each area; 

 Identification of risks within each area which threaten the achievement of objectives; 

 Identification of controls in existence within each area to manage the risks identified;  

 Assessment of the adequacy of controls in existence to manage the risks and 
identification of additional proposed controls where appropriate; and 

 Testing of the effectiveness of key controls in existence within each area. 
 
Management should be aware that our internal audit work was performed in accordance with 
the Public Sector Internal; Audit Standards which are different from audits performed in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing 
Practices Board.  
 
Similarly, the assurance gradings provided in our internal audit report are not comparable 
with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the 
International Audit and Assurance Standards Board. 
 
Our internal audit testing was performed on a judgemental sample basis and focussed on 
the key controls mitigating risks. Internal audit testing is designed to assess the adequacy 
and effectiveness of key controls in operation at the time of the audit.  
 
Please note that, in relation to the agreed scope, whilst our internal audit will assess the 
efficiency and effectiveness of key controls from an operational perspective, it is not within 
our remit as internal auditors to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of policy decisions. 

  

Page 68



 

Appendix 5: Timetable and Distribution List 

 

It is the responsibility of the auditee to identify all officers that should receive a copy of this 
report. 

 

Stage Date 

Exit Meeting 30/09/2015 

Draft Report Issued 25/11/2015 

Responses Received 09/06/2016 

Final Report Issued 12/07/2016 

 

Audit Team 

Client Engagement Manager: James Graham 

Auditor: Alan Mulvey 

Auditee 

Paul Monforte – Head of Operations 

Client Sponsor 

Nilavra Mukerji - Director of Housing Services 

 

Report Distribution List  

Paul Monforte – Head of Operations 

Copy Recipients of Report 

Nilavra Mukerji - Director of Housing Services 

 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not 
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. 
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by management for their full impact before they are implemented. 
The performance of internal audit work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the 
application of sound management practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities rests with management and work performed by internal audit 
should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud or irregularity. Auditors, in conducting their work, are required to have regards to the possibility of fraud 
or irregularities. Even sound systems of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not 
be proof against collusive fraud. Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on areas as identified by management as 
being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full access to their accounting records 
and transactions for the purposes of our audit work and to ensure the authenticity of these documents. Effective and timely 
implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal control system. 

 

This report is prepared solely for the use of Audit Committees and senior management of the London Borough of Hammersmith 
and Fulham. Details may be made available to specified external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report 
should not be quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as 
the report has not been prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

  

Page 69



 

Appendix 2 - Mitie Electrical Service improvement plan 
 

Service Improvement 
Required 

Tasks 
Who Lead When by Status Comments 

Review of EICR `s 
Documentations from 

2014-2016 

1. Produce evidence of rectification works 
carried out on C1 and C2 faults by minor 
works certification or attendee orders. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

2. Complete EICR testing to sites with 
additional distribution boards as identified 
by PCM report. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

May 2017 Live  

3. Provide Hammersmith and Fulham 
comprehensive list of sites tested to date.  

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

4. Program and attend remaining 104 
sites from PCM audits this will be 
monitored and audited by tracking through 
attendee order process. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

5. Re-attend all remaining sites not 
audited by PCM and carry out visual 
audits to a jointly agreed 7-week 
program through our attendee order 
process. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

6. Meeting arranged with Supply chain to 
discuss an audit process of all EICR`s 
carried out and investigation of poor 
performance and corrective actions 
needed and report back to relevant 
parties. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

EICR`s Process Review 

1. Review Jointly the specification and 
limitations within the specification. Work 
shop to be arranged ensure joint 
understanding and clear instruction. 

Mitie/H&F Brian 
Sanders/ 

Stan Grant 

 Complete  

2. All EICR block tests to cease until new 
specification is agreed.  Programme to be 
reinstated when LBHF assured the 
programme will be delivered to the 
required standards 

H&F Paul 
Monforte 

May 2017 Live  

3. Develop Housing Department Electrical 
policy. 

H&F Paul 
Monforte 

 Complete  

P
age 70



 

4. Documents to continue to be uploaded 
onto Mi Housing System once authorised 
by competent person and made available 
on request. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

5. 7nos direct operatives allocated to 
delivery of the EICR test programme who 
are competent and qualified 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

6. Agree forward working program with 
Hammersmith and Fulham for the 
remanding program to ensure visibility 
and transparency of delivery promise. 

Mitie/H&F Brian 
Sanders/ 

Stan Grant 

 Complete  

7. Mobilisation of the testing program and 
pilot property to be agreed. 

Mitie/H&F Brian 
Sanders/ 

Stan Grant 

 Complete  

8. Photographs of before and after C1,C2 
and C3 and placed on MI housing 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

May 2017 Live  

1. Mitie Supervisor to carry out 100% 
desk top surveys and sign off. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

EICR`s Proposed 
Monitoring/Audit 

2. Mitie Supervisor to carry out 10% 
of post inspection inclusive of 100% C1 
and C2 or photographic evidence. 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

3. H&F to carry out post inspection to 20% 
of completed EICR tests on a monthly 
basis. 

H&F Paul 
Monforte 

May 2017 Live  

4. Appoint independent auditor to carry 
our inspection and validations on EICR on 
behalf of mitie going forward on a 
quarterly basis 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

5. Develop a compliancy dashboard that 
can be presented on Request 

H&F Paul Wilde June 2017 Live  

6. Development of EICR testing programme 
tracker sheet, which tracks test programme 
and associated repairs 

Mitie Brian 
Sanders 

 Complete  

 
  

P
age 71



 

Appendix 3 - Gas safety - Service improvement plan 
 
Item Service 

Improvement 
Required 

Tasks Who Lead When 
by 

Status Comments 

1 Quality Review 1. Revisit 
LGSR`s where 
client has 
identified 
anomaly's                                 

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

Mar-
17 

Live Issues around addresses 
incorrectly filled out i.e. 
Business address and 
property address this is 
inclusive of the manual 
certification. 

  2. Review 
repairs 
identified 
from client’s 
quality 
control 
sheets and 
appoint 
works. 

Mitie David Leonard Mar-
17 

Live Clients List to be reviewed 
and actioned from client’s 
quality control sheets 
approximate (100?) 
failures of quality, not 
compliancy, this is focused 
on repair works. 

  3. Joint 
training 
program and 
lesson learnt 
from finding 
off quality 
control 
monitoring 
and 
manufactures 
updates. 

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

Mar-
17 

Live Training needs identified 
will be delivered through 
toolbox talks or 
manufactures delivery 

  4. LGSR`s to 
be modified 
to 
incorporate 
makes and 
modules of 
appliances. 

Mitie Brian Sanders May-
17 

Live Mitie have already 
invested in a new system 
my repair and the new 
format of the LGSR will be 
implemented then. A tool 
box talk was carried out 
with regards to this 
information which is 
logged as unknown but 
records the appliances. 
Certification is vetted 
before issued. 

  5. Accuracy 
Residents 
details from 
IFS and CRM 

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

May-
17 

Live There is a daily 
spreadsheet already 
issued at 16:00 with jobs 
created on CRM/IFS for 
and audit trail, again those 
will improve when the 
new system Mi Repair is 
implemented where no 
data dump is required or 
double handling of 
information. 

Page 72



 

2 Gas Process  1. New 
process to be 
agreed on 
how follow 
on works are 
booked in 
and 
monitored 

Mitie/H&F Brian 
Sanders/Stan 

Grant 

Mar-
17 

Live This task is to give 
assurances the follow on 
works are recorded and 
monitored to give quality 
assurance. There have 
been questions around 
the level of supervision 
that is required. 

  2. Review the 
PD process 
and agree 
new process 

Mitie/H&F Jason 
Burroughs/Stan 

Grant 

Mar-
17 

Live Process already in place 
but client would like to 
revisit for clarity and more 
visibility 

  3. Review of 
the boiler 
replacement 
program 

Mitie/H&F Brian 
Sanders/Stan 

Grant 

Mar-
17 

Live Again clarification needed 
between client and Mitie 
on program and quality 
checks. 

  4. Monthly 
Operational 
meetings 
with clear 
action log 

Mitie/H&F Jason 
Burroughs/Stan 

Grant 

Feb-
17 

Live Meetings are now taking 
place.  The group to 
concentrate on 
performance and ensuring 
service improvement plan 
actions are met  
 
 

  5. Gas 
process 
mapping 

Mitie Ian 
Webb/Brian 

Saunders 

Apr-
17 

Live Original process maps 
have been submitted to 
the service improvement 
group for review. 

3 Gas Teams 
Monitoring/Audit 

and Quality 
Control 

1. Mitie Gas 
team to carry 
out 100% 
desk top 
surveys of 
certification 
and appoint 
follow up 
works within 
48hrs  

Mitie Dave Leonard Mar-
17 

Live This process is to 
commence in February 
2017 

  2. Mitie 
Supervisor to 
carry out a 
minimum of 
10% of post 
inspection.  

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

Feb-
17 

Live Mitie to provide proof of 
post inspections  
 

  3. H&F 
suggested 
post 
inspections 
10% target 

H&F Stan Grant Feb-
17 

Live Post inspections to be 
recorded  

  4. Provide 
details of all 
inspections in 
a report 
format 
identifying 
any non-

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

Mar-
17 

Live Mitie to provide details of 
records for LBHF review. 

Page 73



 

conformance. 

  5. Review 
quality of 
LGSR 
certification 
and arrange 
training if 
needs are 
identified. 

Mitie Jason 
Burroughs 

Feb-
17 

Live Progress to be updated by 
Mitie in March SIP 
meeting 

  6. Arrange 
regular 
training and 
feedback 
session from 
boiler 
manufactures 

Mitie/ 
H&F 

Jason 
Burroughs 

Apr-
17 

Live First toolbox talks in 
March. Both Mitie and 
LBHF staff to attend 

  7. Additional 
quality 
checks 
carried out 
by 3rd Party 

Mitie/ 
H&F 

Brian Sanders Feb-
17 

Complete Mitie have a third party 
appointed to carry out 
additional quality 
inspection to ensure 
quality assurance with the 
gas delivery this is emailed 
weekly and monthly to 
both client and Mitie at 
the same time 

 
  

Page 74



 

Appendix 4 Definition of Electrical Faults C1 to C3 
 

A Code 1 (C1) observation means 'Danger present. Risk of injury. Immediate remedial 
action required.' It is an immediate threat and should be rectified or made safe as soon 
as possible. An example of a C1 defect would be accessible live conductors due to 
damage, poorly modified enclosures or removed maintenance panels. Incorrect polarity 
would also attract a code C1 as it may allow conductive parts, not normally expected to 
be live, to become live. 

The presence of a code C1 warrants immediate action to be taken which would be to 
inform the duty holder or responsible person for the installation immediately, both 
verbally and in writing, of the risk of injury that exists. 

A Code (C2) is a These might be things that don't pose an immediate threat but are 
likely to become an issue in the future. A C2 is described as 'Potentially dangerous - 
remedial action required.' 

The phrase "potentially dangerous", in the C2 code is designed to point towards a risk 
of injury from contact with live parts after a sequence of events. A sequence of events 
could mean that an individual may gain access to live parts through a day to day task 
that would not be expected to give access to live parts. 

Codes C1 and C2 attract unsatisfactory report findings and you'll have to have these 
defects rectified in order to prove compliance. A report could also be classed as 
unsatisfactory if the only fault codes are FI. An example would be when there are lots of 
circuits that are not verified at the time of testing, this is because the inspector would 
not be able to categorically say that these circuits are safe or not. 

Code 3 is described as 'Improvement recommended.' This means it does not comply 
with the regulations but isn't actually dangerous. A code C3 should imply that the 
installation is not necessarily dangerous but it may not comply with the current version 
of the regulations or for example, may have damaged fittings that do not have exposed 
live parts. A code C3, in itself, should not warrant an overall unsatisfactory report. 

 

Page 75



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2017 

  

RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 

Report of the Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk, and Insurances 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Moira Mackie, Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk, and 
Insurances 
 

Report Author: Michael Sloniowski, 
Risk Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2587 
E-mail: michael.sloniowski@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The Members of the Audit, Pensions, and Standards Committee are 

requested to: 
 

a) Note the contents of the report. 
b) Review and agree the Corporate Risk Register, detailed in 

appendix 1. 
c) Note the content of the Service High Risk Extract Dashboard, 

appendix 2. 
 
1.2. The report enables the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee fulfil part of 

its functions as set out in the Committee’s terms of reference, to review the 
Risk Management arrangements of the authority. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
  

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s local 
government risk framework is based on a belief that ‘good governance 
structures enable an authority to pursue its vision effectively as well as 
underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of 
risk’. In other words, risk management is implicit in good performance. 
 

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  
 

Risk Management activities update 
 
Directors Assurance Statements 
 

4.1. In accordance with regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015 in relation to the preparation of an Annual Governance 
Statement, the Council is required to conduct a review at least once a year of 
the effectiveness of its governance arrangements, including its system of 
internal control and arrangements for risk management. 
 

4.2. To facilitate this, Directors and Executive Directors are required to complete 
and certify a self-assessment questionnaire on at least an annual basis. This 
questionnaire acknowledges the responsibility of the Director in disseminating 
corporate messages and monitoring practices that uphold the council’s 
governance framework within their Service. 
 

4.3. The governance framework comprises the systems and processes by which 
the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with, and leads its communities. It enables the Council 
to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether 
those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective 
services. 
 

4.4. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage all risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The Councils’ 
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, 
and economically. 
 

4.5. In January 2017 the Internal Audit, Risk, Fraud, and Insurances Service 
issued a Management Assurance self-assessment template to Executive 
Directors and Directors for completion. These ‘local’ statements have been 
utilised to develop the corporate statement following an overall review of the 
council’s corporate internal control arrangements. The corporate statement is 
due to be included in the 2016 2017 Statement of Accounts. Service 
Management Teams have reviewed local statements prior to their formal sign-

Page 77



off. The corporate statement will be subject to review by the External Auditor 
and reported to the Audit, Pensions, and Standards Committee as part of the 
Council’s final account process. 

 
Annual Governance Statement, changes to 2016 2017 format. 
 

4.6. The annual governance statement is a statutory document which explains the 
processes and procedures in place to enable the council to carry out its 
functions effectively.  

 
4.7. The statement is produced following a review of the council's governance 

arrangements and includes an action plan to address any significant 
governance issues identified. A few technical changes have been made to the 
expected content of an Annual Governance Statement. These include; 

 an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a 
sound system of governance (incorporating the system of internal 
control).  

 a reference to and assessment of the effectiveness of key 
elements of the governance framework, including group activities 
where the activities are significant, and the role of those 
responsible for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment such as the authority, the executive, the 
audit committee, and others as appropriate;  

 an opinion on the level of assurance that the authority’s 
governance arrangements can provide;  

 an agreed action plan;  

 a conclusion. 
 
4.8. The Council is well placed to meet the new requirements stated above, the 

Committee, for example, having a well-established process of monitoring the 
Annual Governance Statement action plan at its quarterly meetings.  
 
 
Risk Management Training 
 

4.9. The Risk Manager, with the Council’s Internal Auditor providers, is currently 
developing a series of workshops for relevant officers across all Services to 
identify their operational risks, using a ‘bottom up’ approach. In line with the 
recently refreshed strategy, any risk, identified during this programme that are 
felt to be strategic will be referred to the Strategic Leadership Team for 
consideration prior to inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register and referral to 
Audit, Pensions, and Standards Committee for approval. The training will 
include an understanding of the use of Risk Management techniques. 

 
Corporate Risk Register 
 

4.10. One of the primary purposes of this report is to update the Audit Pensions and 
Standards Committee on the Q3 status of the Council’s 2016 2017 Strategic 
Risk Register, in line with the requirements of the Council’s risk management 
strategy. The Council Management Team, Strategic Leadership Team, 

Page 78



maintains the Register on behalf of the Council, with the assistance of the 
Council’s Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk, and Insurances. 
 

4.11. The Register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by Business Delivery Team and 
Strategic Leadership Team and is presented to the Council’s Audit, Pensions, 
and Standards Committee on a quarterly basis. In the case of any risks where 
the position has worsened or for residual red risks where the Audit Pensions 
and Standards Committee shows an interest Services may be called in to give 
detailed context of the risks and mitigations. The Register was last presented 
to the Committee in December 2016. The Corporate Risk Register is attached 
as Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
Service Risk Registers 
 

4.12. The Committee is familiar with the detailed Service Level registers previously 
provided to them. Understandably the volume of these has begun to grow with 
their improved use in the Services. Consequently, a Services High Risk 
Extract Dashboard (SHRED) is attached as Appendix 2 to the report that 
provides a summarised extract of high Service Level risks for Members 
information and to also minimise the volume of reports. 

 
5. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

  
5.1. The report is brought quarterly to provide the Committee with an oversight of 

the authority’s processes to facilitate the identification and management of its 
significant business risks. 
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1. The Council’s risk management process is implemented across Services, 
Business Units, and Projects. On a quarterly basis each Service Management 
Team reviews and updates the risks captured on their risk registers and adds 
any new or emerging risks. 
 

6.2. New risks and key changes to current risks are discussed and challenged at 
Service and Corporate Management Team meetings. Annually each service is 
encouraged to undertake a full risk review in support of the submission of a 
local Management Assurance Statement. 

 
6.3. Key risks are included within relevant Service or Thematic Risk Registers and 

are also reported to Audit, Pensions, and Standards Committee. This 
reporting format ensures that the Council’s risk management framework 
remains embedded and the reporting of risks remains “live” across the 
organisation.  
 

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1. There are no equality or diversity issues arising from this report. 
 
 

Page 79



8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1. The Council has a responsibility for financial management under the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations (2015) which requires the Council to have a sound 
system of internal control, which includes arrangements for the management 
of risk. The Council is also required to conduct a review at least once a year 
of its systems of internal control. This report and the enclosed documents 
assist the Council’s compliance with this requirement. 

 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 
10. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

 
10.1. There are no direct implications for business arising from this report. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATION PARAGRAPHS 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

11.1. The expectations of CIPFA/SOLACE and the Financial Reporting Council are 
that the systems of risk management and internal control should include: risk 
assessment; management or mitigation of risks, including the use of control 
processes; information and communication systems; and processes for 
monitoring and reviewing their continuing effectiveness. 
 

11.2. The risk management and internal control systems should also be embedded 
in the operations of the council and can respond quickly to evolving business 
risks, whether they arise from factors within the council or from changes in the 
business environment. These systems should not be a periodic compliance 
exercise, but instead as an integral part of the council’s day to day business 
processes. 

 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
None. 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 - Corporate Risk Register 
Appendix 2 - Services High Risk Extract Dashboard (SHRED) 

Page 80



Score Key Action

16-25 Red High risk, immediate management action is required.

11-15 Amber Medium risk, review controls for appropraiteness and effectiveness

1-10 Green Low risk, monitor and if escaltes quickly check controls

Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

LBHF  RBKC WCC OFFICER(S) 4 4 16 0 3 4 12 4 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

1
Comments

Hitesh Jolapara, 

Strategic Finance 

Director, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham.

In March 2016, the Government confirmed 

a finance settlement commitment to provide 

minimum funding allocations for each year 

of the Spending Review period (2016-17 to 

2019-20) if a) councils choose to accept the 

offer and b) if they publish an efficiency 

plan. The deadline for both is 14 October 

2016.

The wider ramifications of the decision to 

leave the European Union are yet to be fully 

realised and felt in the national and local 

economy. Whilst there will be some 

opportunities there is also uncertainty that 

may affect areas of the economy, financial 

markets, interest and exchange rates, 

construction, grants from the EU, 

investment and other non-financial aspects. 

All of this is set in the context of continuing 

reductions in public funding.

Risk Review at May 

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team at 

LBHF

LBHF  RBKC WCC OFFICER(S) 0 9 0 0 0 0 3 2 6
RISK DELETED Agreed by Strategic Leadership 

Team February 2017

2
Comments

Maureen 

McDonald Khan

Director for 

Building and 

Property 

Management

Land Registry's programme suggests 

transfer from Autumn 2017

Risk Review at May 

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team at 

LBHF

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

Active participation in Land Registry's transfer programme and liaison with other Councils through the Local Government 

Association to ensure formulised burdens regime is adequate in compensating the Council regarding Local Land Charges 1.

Active participation as a member of the Local Land Charges Institute (LLCI) at briefings/ meetings. Close liaison with finance 

colleagues.

The council manages its financial risks through a range of controls including budget preparation, budget setting and a Budget 

Accountability Framework which updated the roles and responsibilities for managing, monitoring and forecasting income and 

expenditure against approved budgets. The level of reserves and balances are also regularly reviewed to ensure that account is 

taken of any financial risk.

Financial Regulations and Financial Scheme of Delegation.

Regular in-year monitoring, review of future financial plans and assessment of financial risks and reserves are undertaken to 

ensure the financial plans are delivered. 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, Finance Board, Efficiency Plan 2016-17 to 2019-20, Corporate Revenue Monitoring 

Reports with identified risks reported to Cabinet, Overspending Departments Action Plans with responsible Directors identified.

Medium Term Financial Strategy reported to Finance and Delivery, Policy and Accountability Committee February 2017 detailing 

savings, growth, and  risks.

Mid-Year Treasury Report for 2016/17 presented to Finance and Delivery, Policy and Accountability Committee November 2016 in 

accordance with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

The ongoing challenge of reshaping and 

delivering council services, within significantly 

reduced funding levels and increased demand 

pressures, remains a significant risk. This is both 

an in year risk and one going forwards over the 

medium term.  As such, a priority within our 

financial plan is to review different funding models 

for different services (referencing zero based 

budgets specfically at LBHF), and to focus not just 

on the short-term but on service transformation 

over a longer time-frame. 

Potential impact on Council Financing due to the 

outcome of the referendum to leave the European 

Union.

Local Land Charges Searches, reduction in resources and income

Loss of income and insufficient funding from 

Central Government through new burdens regime 

associated with the transfer of Local Land 

Charges1 to the Land Registry.

Actions

August

2016

Financial Management in year budget 2016/2017 and Medium 

Term Planning. 

* Risk number 2 is a sovereign LBHF risk.

Actions

February 

2017

Management controls

Management controls

Page 1

P
age 81



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

3
Comments

Liz Bruce, 

Executive Director 

of Adult Social 

Care

A report outlining issues associated with the 

Better Care Fund was considered by the 

Hammersmith and Fulham Finance, Policy 

and Accountability Committee in November 

2016. 

There is a £2m MTFS efficiency measure 

that has been built into the 2016/17

base budget following discussions with 

health over the second year of the

Better Care Fund. There are several 

efficiency targets attached to delivering

this £2m saving. At this stage of the year, 

the Department is projecting the

delivery of £1.379m of this target, this 

leaves a shortfall of £621,000 from of

the £2m target efficiency.

Review at Business Delivery 

Team, London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham.

Continued regular 

monitoring through 

performance and joint 

governance arrangements

Management controls Actions

Febraury 

2017

NHS England require regular updates against original Better Care Fund submission on benefits and performance reported to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board.

Review of Adults Social Care financial position at Finance and Delivery, Policy and Accountability Committee.

The Care Act implementation programme was successfully  completed.

Measures to monitor impact of Care Act implementation built into new routine Key Performance Indicator monitoring to Senior 

Managers and members. This covers expected increases in demand and new duties and responsibilities under the Act.

Demand and benefits model developed and being implemented for Community Independence Service as part of Better Care Fund.

Routine reporting of impact of new service reported to senior managers and members as part of regular reporting.

Multi agency Better Care Fund steering group receives progress reports and reports upwards to the Joint Executive Team and 

Better Care Fund Board which includes members and senior managers from Adult Social Care, Clinical Commissioning Groups etc.

Shared governance with Imperial around change programme for the Community Independence Service. Redesign of reablement 

part of Customer Journey programme.

Risks are regularly monitored by the programme and major risks logged on a risk register.

Management of the Better Care fund.

Compliance with the Care Act legislation 

underpinning the Better Care Fund;

• the accountability arrangements and flows of 

funding;

• the reporting and monitoring requirements for 16-

17;

• arrangements for the operation of the payment 

for performance framework;

• how progress against plans will be managed and 

what the escalation process will look like; and

• the role of the Better Care Fund Task Force / 

Better Care Support Team going forward.

Page 2

P
age 82



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 3 3 9

4
Comments

1. Michael Hainge 

Commercial 

Director Chief 

Executives 

Department

1. Nicholas 

Holgate, Town 

Clerk, The Royal 

Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea.

Restructuring of the Corporate Commercial 

and Procurement Management is underway 

with jobs recently advertised.

Hammersmith & Fulham

Amendments to  Contract Standing Orders 

have been  approved by full Council to 

facilitate earlier Cabinet visibility and 

approval of commissioning and 

procurement strategies before competitive 

tendering exercises commence. 

The Cabinet Member for Commercial 

Revenue and Resident Satisfaction has 

also requested regular Cabinet Member 

monitoring of all departments 3-year 

forward commissioning and procurement 

plans.

LBHF have appointed a  Commercial 

Director who also leads on procurement.  

Work is currently being undertaken to 

review the Contracts Register.

RBKC. Cabinet have considered a report 

on Procurement presented to them from the 

Procurement Working Party.

Corporate Procurement

Co-ordinate and support 

major procurement activities.

Support, develop and train 

to assist departments project 

by project.

Develop and implement 

procurement policy, 

standards and guidance.

Ensure compliance.

Work with Economic 

Development.

Strategic Contract 

Management

Set corporate contract 

standards.

Lead, supervise and c-

ordinate all activities on 

major contracts.

Accountability for contractual 

performance.

Work increasingly with 

commissioners.

1. Failure to deliver high quality commissioned 

services at the best cost to the taxpayer. 

Inadequate forward planning  risks 

(commissioning and procurement). 

2. Failure to comply with public procurement 

regulations, potential legal action, and lack of 

robust Member oversight. 

3. Not achieving Social Value through 

procurement.

4. Contract performance management. 

Actions

February 

2017

Adult Social Care and Childrens Services Departments have established contract and commissioning boards. 

A Shared Services Contracts Approval Board had been established but will now only be used for Westminster City Council 

sovereign procurement decisions.

Contract registers are now managed through the CapitalESourcing e-procurement system hosted by Westminster City Council and 

have recently been audited.

Training is being provided on Contract Management across the Shared Services.

Hammersmith & Fulham

Annual Governance Statement Action Plan monitoring. ( See Actions )

Business Delivery Team  have corporate oversight on procurement.

Maintain a watching brief on the financial and commercial stability of major contractors.

In addition to all decision reports going through at H&F they are subject to 2 additional key controls: Cabinet Member Briefing 

Boards, Cabinet (via Cabinet Briefing)

Revised Contract Standing Orders for LBHF took effect on 1 July 2016 for all procurements advertised on or after this date.  This 

ensured that Cabinet see forward Commissioning Plans and a Procurement Strategy on each procurement.

Commercially led Significant Contract reviews.

Update of the Commercial Director to Finance and Delivery, Policy and Accountability Committee.

The Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea. 

Procurement regulations for the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea.

Procurement Review conducted by the Procurement Scrutiny Working Group, Cabinet and Corporate Services Scrutiny 

Committee. Report from the Working Group issued to Cabinet. 

A presentation of the reports findings has been made to the Senior Managers in the Council.

Councillor Warrick is responsible for procurement policy, including monitoring and oversight of the letting of Council contracts.

Market testing risks.

Management controls

Page 3

P
age 83



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 4 4 16 -4 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 1 1 1

5
Comments

Dr Mike Robinson, 

Director of Public 

Health

The Director of Public Health is in the 

process of reviewing the

Public Health team’s operating model, 

structure and plans in order to

ensure the Public Health function can work 

to maximise the impact on

population health within available 

resources. A key milestone is to

have an effective staff structure in place in 

time for the next financial

year. A staff consultation on the proposed 

Public Health re-structure is

taking place during November 2016.

Going forward, the Public 

Health team will focus on 

Leading cross cutting 

programmes of work to 

tackle priority health

outcomes, System 

leadership across the local 

health system, Prioritising 

Public Health resources 

(staff and finance)

Understanding population 

health trends, Identifying 

gaps in service provision

Using evidence and analysis 

to re-design services, 

Contribute Public Health 

funding to achieve greatest 

impact on

population health, Contribute 

specific skills in health 

economics, forecasting,

epidemiology (the study of 

diseases) and statistics and 

evidence reviews to the 

commissioning process. 

Management controls

Public Health Budgets

Actions

February 

2017

For 2016-17 the public health ring-fence remains in place, with any underspends in the year being carried forward as a receipt in 

advance, or any overspends matched with a draw-down from prior years’ receipts in advance as appropriate.

The Public Health team are continually working to improve Public Health services through performance monitoring, service 

improvements and re-tendering.

2017 2018 Public Health Priorities and the Public Health Prioritisation Framework.

Going forward, if the Shared Services Councils 

are to achieve significant improvements in 

population health outcomes in the current 

economic climate, choices need to be made about 

how best to allocate Public Health resources to 

specific programmes or work/ services. In order to 

support these decisions, the Public Health team is 

in the process of developing and testing a 

prioritisation framework tool.

Page 4

P
age 84



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 3 4 12 0 4 4 16 -4 3 4 12 4 2 3 6

6
Comments

Dave Page, Bi-

borough Director 

for Safer 

Neighbourhoods, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham

Tony Redpath, 

Director of Strategy 

and Local 

Services, the Royal 

Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea.

There have been a number of events in 

the last reporting period;

Market Announcement concerning MITIE 

sent to RBKC and LBHF Officers within 

Adult Social Care and LBHF Housing.

* Sale of MiHomecare, a subsidiary of 

MITIE, to Apposite Capital for £2 plus a 

£9.45M payment to fund the Trading Loss. 

Following Box-It records storage company 

credit warning, highlighted last quarter, 

close monitoring of the situation is ongoing 

jointly by the Business Continuity Manager 

and Contract Manager.

CITAS

A report is being prepared proposing a  

managed transition to new Translation and 

Interpretation providers as a result of the 

previous provider ceasing trading.

Reviewed at February  

Business Delivery Team at  

the London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham. 

A review of Continuity2 

software has been arranged 

to assess if their system 

would enhance the Council's 

Service Resilience Planning 

and Response 

arrangements.

May 17 next scheduled 

meeting of the LBHF Service 

Resilience Group.

Service Continuity Plans are 

being upgraded for self-

testing and identification of 

strategies to be completed 

by June 17. 

Corporate Business Continuity Policies and Strategies have been agreed at the former Business Board  at Hammermsith and 

Fulham and Management Board at the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, and updated accordingly, ensuring commonality 

for incident management. 

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham use Creditsafe for the assessment of contractor credit and liquidity risks, with The 

Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, Westminster City Council utilising Creditsafe via CapitalEsourcing. 

                                                                                                                                 

Owners of Priority 1 and Priority 2 classified services have been requested to ensure a their service continuity plans have a strategy 

in place to cater for the loss of service and critical suppliers, are self-tested and authorised by Directors.

Risks are being identified and managed through the Service Resilience Group at Hammersmith and Fulham and via a themed 

Business Continuity Register including horizon scanning.

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Business Continuity Manager is liaising with the ICT Transformation Manager on IT 

Change risks, including on Data Migration and Telephony. 

Given the fragility of the care market we are beginning to make contingency plans for a sudden collapse of a provider – in reality the 

only viable option would be for the Councils to step in and to manage the service – the Care Act provides step in rights.

Housing Emergency Planning Internal Audit review 2016 2017, satisfactory assurance attained.

GOLD training has been provided to senior management in both boroughs, to enhance the ability to deal with serious incidents, 

plus additional Emergency Planning training delivered in London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham.

Business resilience.

1). Limited joined up systems, processes and 

resources in the event of a Royal Borough of 

Kensington and Chelsea and London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham Business Continuity 

internal / external incident.                                                                                   

2) Non-availability of I.T. systems,  cyber attacks. 

3) Significant accommodation moves. 

Actions

February 

2017

Management controls

Page 5

P
age 85



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC  OFFICER(S) 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

7
Comments

Veronica Barella, 

Interim Director of 

Information and 

Communications 

Technology, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham

Ben Goward 

Interim Director of 

Information and 

Communications 

Technology, The 

Royal Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea and 

Westminster City 

Council

* Organisational changes to the delivery of 

Information and Communications 

Technology services to the three boroughs 

occurred in late October/early November 

2016. The H&F Information and 

Communications Technology Service is 

bedding down as a new sovereign service 

and future risk reporting arrangements are 

in the process of being established.

* Regular contract monitoring of H&F 

Information & Communications Technology 

contracts identified one supplier with 

potential liquidity concerns. A meeting has 

been held with the supplier and a plan has 

been put in place to monitor the situation. 

*  A Working group was established in 

preparation for the voluntary Information 

Commissioner’s Office Audit of H&F, 

undertaken in  February 2017, now 

completed and awaiting the results of the 

Audit.

* Shared Services 

Information Management 

work programme to be 

progressed to deliver the 

Shared Information 

Management Strategy 

across the three boroughs.

An Internal Audit review of 

ITC risk management is 

being undertaken in Q4.

Actions

a) Information created, accessed, handled, stored, 

protected and destroyed  by the service areas and 

departments across the three partner councils is 

not managed in compliance with information rights 

legislation or local policies, e.g. the Data 

Protection Act 1998, Freedom of Information Act 

2000, Environmental Information Regulations 

2004 and the Protection of Freedom Act 2011;

b) The service areas and departments do not fully 

understand or manage the risks such non-

compliance involves therefore not making 

informed, risk based decisions;

c)  Insufficient staff resources, both corporately 

and departmentally, to mitigate the above risks;

d) Potential breach of information rights legislation 

resulting in a monetary penalty of up to £500,000 

plus costs of the staff/ICT resources to remedy the 

breach and reputational damage to the three 

partner councils (estimates based on average ICO 

fines in last 12 months and cost of H&F ICO 

Undertaking, £100,000 (fine) and £270,000 

(staff/ICT resources @ £90,000 per council).

Management controls

February 

2017

* Shared Services Information Management Board.

* Shared Services Information Management Strategy

* Shared Services Information Sharing Register

* Shared Services Information Management work programme, including the following workstreams: Governance, Information Asset 

Management, Learning and Development 

*Shared Services Information Management Toolkit, e.g. Information Governance Checklist, Information Sharing Protocol template, 

Information Sharing Agreement template, Confidentiality Agreement template

* Shared Services Privacy Impact Assessment process.

* Shared Services Information Security Policy Framework and Personal Commitment Statement

* NET Consent software used by all three boroughs to communicate Information Security Policy Framework to all Information 

Technology users and capture user acceptance of the Shared Services Personal Commitment Statement.

* Offsite Records Storage Service Framework Agreement for three boroughs and their partners (currently H&F and WCC only)

* Onsite records storage - records management function delivered by the Corporate Information Governance Team

* Sovereign information management and security risk logs, compliance monitoring, incident management and reporting protocols

* All three boroughs use the same local authority Retention Schedule

* Caldicott Guardians for Adult Social Care and Children's Services

* Sovereign Senior Information Risk Owners (SIRO's)

* Potential breaches of policy can be treated as a potential disciplinary matter and referred to Human Resources or the Corporate 

Fraud team for investigation

* Head of Information, Strategy & Projects role established in the H&F Information and Communications Technology Service.

Information Governance and Exchange NHS Toolkit Audit 2016 2017 Satisfactory Assurance attained.

Information management and digital continuity.

Page 6

P
age 86



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC  OFFICER(S) 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 3 3 9

8
Comments

Nigel Pallace, Chief 

Executive, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham Council.

Nicholas Holgate, 

Town Clerk, The 

Royal Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea.

Charlie Parker, 

Chief Executive, 

Westminster City 

Council.

Internal Audit of Organisational Health and 

Safety undertaken.

Internal Audit of LBHF gas safety 

arrangements undertaken.

Corporate Safety Team business plan and 

audit programme established.

Departmental and statutory Corporate 

Safety committee established and meeting 

regularly.

Regular Health and Safety performance 

reports to the Management Team.

Shared Service Building Compliance Board 

established.

Reviewed at February 2017  

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham

Capital Programme 2016-

2017 to 2018 2019

An Internal Audit review of 

Housing risk management is 

being undertaken in Q4.

Actions

Managing statutory duties.

Management controls

February  

2017

Non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Breach of a duty of care.

Non-compliance with Health and Safety at Work.

Equalities and Human Rights.

Integrated Transport for London Programme 

(Funding Highways Improvements).

Capital Programme. 

Local Codes of Corporate Governance, constitutions and schemes of delegation.

Officers codes of conduct.

Shared Health and Safety Service between the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and London Borough of Hammersmith 

and Fulham Council.

Shared Services Incident reporting on-line software.

Shared Services training software, Workrite.

A separate Health and Safety service is provided in the Housing Service.

Legislative changes are adopted and reflected in amendments to the Councils constitutions and budgets allocated through a unified 

business and financial planning process.

Amey now manage a number of statutory and regulatory procedural and record management processes.

Statutory returns to, for example, the Food Standards Agency, Health and Safety Executive.

Page 7

P
age 87



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC  OFFICER(S) 3 3 9 0 3 3 9 0 3 3 9 0 3 3 9

9
Comments

Liz Bruce, 

Executive Director 

of Adult Social 

Care

Clare Chamberlain, 

Interim Executive 

Director of 

Childrens Services

The Safeguarding Adults Executive Board 

is operating under Schedule 2 of the Care 

Act 2014, and overseeing the statutory 

duties of conducting Safeguarding Adult 

Enquiries (Section 42) and Safeguarding 

Adults Reviews (Section 44). The Board is 

required to report on progress on its 

strategic priorities, and particularly, on the 

work it has carried out reviewing deaths and 

serious harm, of people with care and 

support needs, as a result of abuse and 

neglect, and where agencies may have 

worked better together to prevent harm or 

death.

There have been 22 safeguarding alerts 

raised related to home

care provision in RBKC since August 2016; 

11 against MiHomecare

and another 11 against Mears.

LBHF Service Improvements 

following Ofsted Inspection 

of Services for Children in 

need of help and protection, 

children in care and care 

leavers. Report of the 

Director of Family Services. 

Ofsted’s overall

conclusion was that 

Children’s Services in 

Hammersmith & Fulham are 

good.

Safeguarding Adults Executive Board Annual Report to Committees.

Adults Safeguarding Strategy 2016- 2019

Multi-Agency-Safeguarding-Hub (MASH), The purpose of a Multi-Agency

Safeguarding Hub (MASH) is to gather information from various professionals in order to make a brief assessment of a child and/or 

a family, or an adult, who is at risk of harm, to ensure their immediate safety and meet their welfare, or care and support needs.

Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) Annual Report The publication of such a report is a requirement following statutory 

guidance.

Child Protection Report of the Director of Family Services. Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea.

Insurance cover in place in the event of a claim for a breach of duty of care.

Legislative changes are adopted and reflected in the Councils constitutions.

Contract monitoring includes assessment of quality of standards of care.

Regular Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply meetings brings together commissioners, operational, safeguarding and Care 

Quality Commission staff to discuss and detect breaches in quality of care.

Budget allocation is made through a unified business and financial planning process.

ActionsManagement controls

February 

2017

Standards and delivery of care.

Breach in the standard of delivery of care, caring 

services and care homes.

The Care Act 2014

The legal duties and responsibilities of the Local 

Authority in respect to the protection of children 

are set out in the Children Act (1989).

Child Protection (CP) involves the identification 

and multi-agency assessment of the care provided 

to children and young people who may be at risk 

of harm from their parents or carers, together with 

the development of a plan to reduce the risk of 

harm to those children by the coordination and 

provision of services. Child protection also 

requires the continuous monitoring of the 

effectiveness of this plan, and prompt action to 

seek legal advice to consider the removal of 

children via the application for a court order in 

those circumstances where the level of risk cannot 

be satisfactorily mitigated.

Page 8

P
age 88



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

10
Comments

Nigel Pallace, Chief 

Executive, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham Council.

Nicholas Holgate, 

Town Clerk, The 

Royal Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea.

Charlie Parker, 

Chief Executive, 

Westminster City 

Council.

LBHF undertake periodic checking of 

contractors liquidity.

Credit safe is now embedded in 

capitalEsourcing thus enabling the Royal 

Borough access to credit checking along 

with WCC.

LBHF have served notice to terminate the 

agreement with the Link for the 

management of the TFM contract.

LBHF Joint Venture for ICT formerly the HF 

Bridge Partnership has successfully 

transferred back into Council ownership.

Reviewed at February 2017  

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham

Contract Standing Orders, Regulations and Financial Procedure rules.

Directors are responsible for ensuring a contractor's financial viability.

Significant Tenderers are to be asked to provide copies of their latest audited accounts or other evidence of their financial standing. 

For the Royal Borough these should be forwarded to Brookes Bates with an order for the standard report requesting a statement on 

the tenderer’s risk of financial failure, its financial strength and an assessment of whether the candidate is suitable to be awarded 

the contract.  For Hammersmith and Fulham Council the Corporate Finance Team provide this service.

All reports should be stored on capitalEsourcing.

Contractor liquidity checking through Creditsafe.

The Royal Borough have an Organisations in Difficulties Procedure should a Grant aided organisation encounter financial or other 

pressures.

Shared Services Board.

The Link Intelligent Client Function (ICF) manages the AMEY Total Facilities Management contract but a London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham Risk and Compliance Manager has been seconded to review FM functions.

Procurement and commissioning is undertaken through CapitalEsourcing software acting as a repository for contract information 

and providing a workflow for the procurement process.

Performance review of 3BM

Section 113 agreements under the Local Government Act 1972 for Shared Services have been reviewed.

Actions

February  

2017

Failure of partnerships and major contracts.

Management controls

Loss of grant, non-delivery of objectives, service 

continuity to the client is of primary importance in 

these cases.

Page 9

P
age 89



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC OFFICER(S) 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

11
Comments

Nigel Pallace, Chief 

Executive, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham Council.

Nicholas Holgate, 

Town Clerk, The 

Royal Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea.

Charlie Parker, 

Chief Executive, 

Westminster City 

Council.

At its meeting in March, the King’s Fund 

Chief Executive Chris Ham facilitated a

discussion with the Health and Wellbeing 

Board about place-based systems of

care and the solution they offer to the 

challenges facing the local health and care 

system. At that meeting the Health and 

Wellbeing Board considered the progress 

made by Health and Wellbeing Boards to 

date nationally, the changing needs of the 

Hammersmith & Fulham population and a 

suggested framework and timeline for 

refreshing the Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy in 2016. The Health and Wellbeing 

Board approved the framework and timeline 

for a new 5-year strategy.

Management controls

Information sharing protocols and agreements.

Members scrutiny of partners risk management is undertaken by the Scrutiny Committees at the Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea and Policy and Accountability Committees at LBHF.

London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21

North West London Sustainability and Transformation Plan. Sustainability and transformation plans (STPs) were announced in the 

NHS planning guidance published in December 2015 as a vehicle to support the delivery of the Five Year Forward View. The NHS 

and local authorities across North West London have agreed to work together to deliver a better health and care system. Patient 

groups and other stakeholders have been involved in developing the plan. The North West London Plan describes the shared 

ambition of partners across health and local government to create an integrated health and care system that enables people to live 

well and be well.

Actions

February 

2017

Increase in complexity of working with partners.

Working with the National Health Services, Clinical 

Commissioning Groups, Police, General 

Practitioners., 3BM and Epic CIC Public Service 

mutuals.

Page 10

P
age 90



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC WCC 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 4 12 0 3 3 9

12
Comments

Nigel Pallace Chief 

Executive, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham Council

A review of this years evidence for the 

Annual Governance Statement 2016 2017 

has yet to consider the Head of Internal 

Audit Statements that is normally produced 

after year end.

Corporate Risk Management compliance 

has been reviewed by Internal Audit in 

January 2017 and was assessed as 

satisfactory.

Executive Directors and Directors 

Management Assurance Statements have 

been issued and all returns expected to be 

recieved by 17th March 2017.

Reviewed at February 

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham.

Corporate Governance 

reviews undertaken by 

Internal Audit are awaited to 

contribute to the Council's 

Annual Governance 

Statement self-assessment.

Actions

February 

2017

Corporate Governance of the Council(s);

- Pre-determination of policies or contract reviews.

- Breach of Officer or Member code of conduct.

- Breach of Information Security or Governance or 

Confidentiality leading to Information 

Commissioner review.

- Ombudsman, Ofsted, External Audit, The Care 

Quality Commission reviews and reports.

- Poor quality data internally or from third parties.

Decision making and maintaining reputation and service 

standards.
Management controls

The Constitution of the Council(s).

Annual Governance Statement.

Executive and Director's Management Assurance Statements.

Risk Management arrangements in Services.

Feasibility studies and options appraisals.

Members induction programme.

Capacity building of I.T. and Staff.

Business planning and performance management and information.

Complaints and compliments reviews reported to Committees.

Reports of the Council's Monitoring Officer.

Page 11

P
age 91



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC WCC 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 4 4 16 0 3 3 9

13
Comments

Hitesh Jolapara, 

Strategic Finance 

Director, London 

Borough of 

Hammersmith and 

Fulham.

Steve Mair, City 

Treasurer, 

Westminster City 

Council

Kevin Bartle, 

Interim Director of 

Finance, The Royal 

Borough of 

Kensington and 

Chelsea. 

The Shared Services Corporate Anti-Fraud 

Service (CAFS) implements a counter fraud 

and corruption strategy which is supported 

by a policy framework. 

Plans and operations are aligned to the 

strategy and contribute to the overall goal of 

maintaining resilience to fraud and 

corruption. The service employ a mixture of 

reactive and pro-active techniques to 

combat fraud, including subscription to 

national initiatives such as the National 

Fraud Initiative and the National Anti Fraud 

Network.

The service reports regularly to Audit  

Committees on performance against the 

counter fraud strategy and the effectiveness 

of the strategy.

Reviewed at February 2017  

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham

The Corporate Anti Fraud 

Service have designed and 

created an e-learning 

programme. Once fully 

complete, the range of 

courses will include "identity 

document checking" and 

“general fraud awareness”, 

as well as more focused 

courses aimed at specific 

departments or pay grades - 

for example, “anti-bribery 

and corruption”, “internal 

controls” and “tenancy 

fraud”.

Potential exploitation of Managed Services 

Agresso systems during implementation and 

towards business as usual delivery.

(Links to risk number 7, perceived threats and 

vulnerabilities  in association with Cyber-crime 

activities)

Employee related

Tenancy

Right to Buy

Benefits (Legacy cases)

Blue Badge

Parking 

Contract/Procurement

The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is aligned to the national strategy, Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally.

Shared Services Corporate Fraud function.

Risk assessment is used to assist in targeting fraud and for workload prioritisation.

Fraud Resilience Action Plan 2016/2017.

Review of Corporate Anti-Fraud Performance at Management Team meetings.

Data Analytics – the service have begun to conduct regular reviews of data using data analytic tools, including Benford’s Law trend 

analysis, to identify areas of potential risk.

Whistleblowing policy, Bribery policy, Officer Codes of Conduct.

Procurement teams have attended Counter Fraud training.

Internal Audit review 2016-2017 of the Shared Corporate Anti-Fraud Service was assessed as satisfactory.

Actions

Failure to identify and address internal and external fraud.

Management controls

February 

2017

Page 12

P
age 92



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

LBHF  RBKC  WCC 3 3 9 0 3 3 9 0 3 3 9 0 1 3 3
RISK DELETED Agreed by Strategic Leadership 

Team February 2017

14
Comments

Ian Heggs, Director 

of Schools, Quality 

and Standards

Safeguarding in all schools is the subject of 

a great deal of attention by the Children’s 

Services Department and overseen by the 

Local Safeguarding Board. They in turn are 

inspected by Ofsted.

Reviewed at February 2017  

Business Delivery Team and 

Senior Leadership Team, 

London Borough of 

Hammersmith and Fulham

Capital Programme 2016-

2017 to 2018 2019

Change in management of schools.

Relationship and accountabilities of academies.

Managing the potential of Fraud in schools.

Managing statutory responsibilities.

Safeguarding responsibilities.

Management controls Actions

February 

2017

AMEY/Link now provide some statutory compliance services for schools.

Ofsted inspection is currently taking place covering The Royal Borough, LBHF and WCC.

Children's Services Capital Programme, Schools General Maintenance Programme.

Page 13

P
age 93



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

Page 14

P
age 94



Review date 13/03/17

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall

L
ikelih

o
o

d

Im
p

act

Overall
Management comments on measures. 

Planned action(s) Date / in place

APPENDIX 1

Ref

RISK  

Assigned To

Target risk:  
Reducing the risk 

Risk cause and context

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 1 16/17

DOT

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 2 16/17

DOT

SHARED SERVICES RISK REGISTER CORPORATE LEVEL

Residual risk assessment: 

Quarter 3 16/17

DOT

16-25

11-15

1-10

Key to Risk Rating

Score

Score

Score

RED - High risk - immediate 

AMBER - Medium risk, review controls.

GREEN- Low risk, monitor and if the 

risk escalates check controls.

Page 15

P
age 95



Subject Context Mitigation Owner Risk

1. Adult Social 

Care
HIGH

Reduction in budget 

and/or increase in 

demand due to 

demographic 

pressures is over and 

above the planned 

levels.

Nationally in the current financial year 

there is considered to be a funding gap  

for adult social care of £3bn.

Through the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

efficiencies and savings have already made  in 

recent years as the resources available for social 

care have significantly reduced. There is a risk that 

further savings which will be required will make it 

very difficult to meet the needs of the increasing 

numbers of disabled and older people. As a result of 

demographic changes the Council is already 

supporting greater numbers of adults with care 

needs, further an increasing proportion of this group 

have very complex needs who would previously 

have been supported more by health services. 

Prakash 

Daryanani, Interim 

Director of 

Finance and 

Resources

2. Adult Social 

Care
HIGH

Complexity of change 

programmes in Adult 

Social Care and the 

National Health 

Service.

The three core change programmes in 

Adult Social Services ( Customer 

Journey, Commissioning and Whole 

Systems Integration ) are very complex 

and there are risks arising from inter-

dependencies, misalignment of projects 

and double counting of benefits. There 

are also risks of slippage due to the 

need for significant leadership, 

management capacity and additional 

programme resources to deliver. There 

are also risks of delays in decision 

making due to complex bureaucracy.

Continued strong governance and portfolio 

management with a focus on delivery of intended 

benefits.

The Customer Journey programme restructure is 

now close to completion and delivery of required key 

changes to services is underway.

Commissioning programme defined the tactical 

priorities for delivery in 2016 2017 and is close to 

completing the definition stage of a three year 

transformation programme. 

Whole systems programme is developing at pace 

through the Sustainability and Transformation 

Planning Process.

Prakash 

Daryanani, Interim 

Director of 

Finance and 

Resources

3. Childrens' 

Services
HIGH

Managed Service 

provision.

If Managed Services/Agresso is unable to 

provide Human Resource and Finance 

services (e.g. Starters / Leavers, payment to 

suppliers etc) then the ability for the 

Department. to deliver an effective service 

will be reduced.

HR/Finance issues reported to BT. 

Escalation process in place for issues reported to BT and 

not resolved. Escalate HR issues to Stephen Wood. 

Escalate Finance issues to Alex Pygram.

Work to ensure organisation structure accurate (Retained 

Finance and HR joining working to deliver)

A CHS Service Impact Risk Assessment carried out.

Payslip checker tool developed

Stephen Wood has been actioned to look at ways of 

setting up Super Users to help meet the challenges around 

E-recruiter

Clare 

Chamberlain 

Executive Director 

and the Senior 

Leadership team.

4. Childrens' 

Services
HIGH

Delays in the delivery of 

the Childrens and 

Families Act (CFA) 

Change Programme.

- EHC Plan Delivery: A key risk facing the 

SEN service to ensure we deliver our 

statutory responsibility around Education and 

Health Care (EHC) Plans.

- Local Area Inspection: The authority may be 

notified of an Ofsted / CQC Local area 

inspection of the SEND services (0-25) on a 

weekly basis, (excl. school holidays). These 

could result in: failure to meet the needs and 

expectations of our customers and politicians 

and reputational harm.

Delivery - There are a number of actions to support the 

building of capacity in the service to avoid service failure. 

These include: 

     - Reorganisation of SEN Service

     - A business case for additional SEN Transfer Review 

Keyworkers was approved with the new team in place from 

October 2016.

- There is regular oversight of service performance by the 

Director of Education

Inspection - Preparation for Local Area inspection 

progresses through the Quality Assurance board which is 

focussing on all areas of the programme and extending the 

stakeholder interest. 

- The Ofsted framework is now published and a new 

project manager is in place to drive self evaluation forward. 

Ian Heggs -  

Director of 

Schools, Quality 

and Standards

LBHF Services High Risk Extract Dashboard             Appendix 2

13/03/17 11:48

Source: Quarter 3,  registers submitted by Services.

Page 96



Subject Context Mitigation Owner Risk

5. Delivery and 

Value
HIGH

Managed Services, 

Orders and Payments

Lack of information on what is being sent to 

suppliers.  Risk that orders may not be 

generated, sent to wrong address (including 

email), with the wrong order details. There 

are too many options on the drop down menu 

in Agresso. This should be reviewed.

Products on Agresso should be selected where possible to 

mitigate risk of ordering the wrong thing.
Jeremy Beresford, 

Intelligent Client 

Function

6. Environmental 

Services
HIGH

Advertising Hoarding 

income falls.

Income targets not met. 1. Regular Finance monitoring.

2. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) planning 

process.

3. Review adverse variances and report action plan to 

Departmental Management Team (DMT).

4 Exploring further opportunities.

Maureen 

McDonald-Khan, 

Director for 

Building  and 

Property 

Management

7. Finance HIGH
Managed Service 

Provision

Processing of interfaced files between 

Agresso and Council systems. Savings 

not realised as a result of the Managed 

Service.

Subject to commercial negotiations. Chris Harris, 

Head of 

Corporate 

Accountancy & 

Capital
8. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Welfare Reform 

/Local Housing 

Allowance Changes.

Increased demand & decreased supply. 

Changes in the welfare benefit system. 

Impact on Homelessness acceptances, 

Temporary accommodation expenditure 

and the Housing Revenue Account bed 

debt cost/ void levels.

HB Assist linked with new prevention strategy,  

Incentive package for private landlords is in place. 

Housing Options have strengthened front of house 

to provide more tailored advice, assistance and 

homelessness prevention services, full membership 

of a West London Procurement framework with a 

panel of third party providers providing 

accommodation inside and outside London Sent out 

Direct Debit forms to every tenant with the rent 

increase letter, improved direct debit set up on i-

world, now have the ability to set up Direct Debit's 

over the phone, Direct Debit campaign, menu of 

support to help tenants manage finances, Housing 

management under occupation focus re spare room 

subsidy / bedroom tax

Ongoing development of Temporary 

Accommodation Procurement Strategy. Expenditure 

controlled within budgets and growth required in 

budgets minimised

Jo Rowlands 

Director of 

Housing Growth 

and Strategy, 

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director of 

Finance & 

Resources 

9. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Delivering the savings 

and income required 

to balance the budget.

Future Medium Term Financial Strategy 

savings not delivered or that in 2021 

rents continue to be enforced by statute 

and that the council is unable to return 

to the rent policy agreed last year with 

tenants of Consumer Price Index plus 

1% plus £1 

Strategic management team continue to seek ways 

to reduce costs and generate additional income, 

focus on opportunities for increasing advertising 

income and on ensuring we are spending money on 

communal and planned repairs effectively and 

efficiently, embedded Head of Financial Investment 

and Strategy into planned works budget monitoring 

meetings to look for efficiencies, work with residents 

to look for efficiencies and use leasehold services 

team to provide a challenge on planned works costs 

for leaseholders (and therefore our overall costs). To 

deal with Temporary Accommodation cost 

inflationary cost pressures we're looking to procure 

longer term temporary accommodation (again 

covered in risk 1 above). Welfare reform mitigations 

are covered by risk 1 above.

Monthly management reporting / budget monitoring, 

regular business plan updates 

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director of 

Finance & 

Resources 

Page 97



Subject Context Mitigation Owner Risk

10. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Earls Court 

Regeneration.

(Summarised from Register) The effect 

in a change of Strategy and the potential 

impact on the Housing Revenue 

Account.

(Summarised from Register) Project Management 

Team meets regularly,  monthly finance reporting to 

project team, original scheme project risk register 

held by project manager. 

Expenditure controlled within budgets and growth 

required in budgets minimised, good governance 

arrangements in place and complied with. Business 

plan modelling shared with Cabinet member for 

Finance . This means Members involved in the 

review are fully aware of the risk.

Jo Rowlands 

Director of 

Housing Growth 

and Strategy, 

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director of 

Finance & 

Resources 

11. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Investing and 

maintaining our 

Council Homes.

(Summarised from Register). Funds 

available to invest in existing stock & 

properties to ensure maintained to 

provided safe and well 

(Summarised from Register).  Continue to undertake 

a review of the existing Asset Management Strategy 

& long term financial investment plan - stock 

condition survey update has recently been 

completed and business plan updated. Finance 

team are now more embedding into the overall 

planned repairs process

Business planning process considers the different 

options available. Invoicing Leaseholders for major 

works bills has been delayed due to a) Agresso b) 

increased challenge of the costs by the Leaseholder 

Services team before billing. S20B's have been 

issued to maintain the right to invoice. Invoicing is 

just starting but we continue to have some Agresso 

issues on leaseholder service charges to resolve 

which colleagues at Westminster are now engaging 

with us properly on. Potential risk on full delivery of 

2016/17 programme due to leasehold recharging 

issues being progressed.

Nilavra Mukerji, 

Director for 

Housing Service 

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director Of 

Finance and 

Resources 

12. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Delivering new 

homes.  The 

replacement for Edith 

Summerskill House 

being for affordable 

homes and funding 

this using the land 

receipt from 

Watermeadow Court. 

(Summarised from Register). A review 

of Joint Venture opportunity Sites with a 

view to delivering the Affordable homes 

as Social Housing in as far as possible 

rather than Low Cost Home Ownership. 

(Summarised from Register). Continue to monitor 

and review. Model next years Housing Revenue 

Account business plan without this receipt. Continue 

to review legislative position on the sale of high 

value voids, ensure homes design can be used for 

either social rented or shared ownership

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director Of 

Finance and 

Resources 

(Housing And 

Regeneration) 

Jo Rowlands, 

Director of 

Housing Growth & 

Strategy

12. Housing * From November Register HIGH
Delivering a quality 

Housing service 

(includes repairs and 

caretaking etc). 

Managed Services.

(Summarised from Register). Managed 

services implementation continues to 

impact significantly on both our service 

delivery to residents and on our ability to 

collect both rents and leaseholder 

service charges.

(Summarised from Register). Project is managed by 

a team based in Westminster who have 

implemented the system across LBHF, RBKC and 

Westminster. We continue to experience missing 

payment files for rents but these are now picked up 

quickly and arrears letters are going out.  We now 

have access to suspense account on Agresso, 

we've been able to access rents for some time so 

this issue is now resolved and have recently had 

access for leaseholder service charges and all 

obviously transactions should now be posted. 

Progress has been made on Leaseholder bills, we 

have issued successfully the annual estimate and 

actual invoices and are just about to start raising 

major works bills although the process is not as we'd 

like as we have to send the detailed supporting info 

separately from the invoice. Dunning letters for 

leaseholders are with the reading groups to check 

but we still don't have a report that shows us just 

Leaseholders arrears to work from. Engagement by 

the client team on the issues impacting on 

leaseholder billing has improved and we are making 

firm forward progress.

Kathleen Corbett, 

Director Of 

Finance and 

Resources 

(Housing And 

Regeneration) 

Page 98



Subject Context Mitigation Owner Risk

13. Information 

and 

Communications 

Technology

HIGH

Network Transition. If 

the transfer of 

hardware and 

services from East 

London Data Centre 

(ELDC) to BT data 

centres does not 

happen in time.

There is a risk that ICT will be unable to 

complete the transfer by end June.  

Major network and telephony services 

are still in the ELDC, including access to 

the Service Desk.  ICT has to move all 

services and equipment by the end of 

June but Agilisys want to vacate building 

by end of March.  June will be difficult 

enough.

The Network Manager is developing plans to 

manage the exit.

Jackie Hudson, 

Transition Director

14. Information 

and 

Communications 

Technology

HIGH

People, if the ICT 

team doesn’t settle

There is a risk that a number of people 

who transferred from HFBP may still 

decide to leave.  There is still some 

uncertainty as there is no permanent 

CIO and the job descriptions of those 

transferring are still to be addressed.  

People are settling in but may become 

disillusioned as processes and gaps still 

need to be addressed.

Must complete new Target Operating Model (TOM) 

as well as the job descriptions for the team so ICT 

services can recruit as required.  Team meetings 

must be held regularly as well as 1:1 meetings with 

staff.  Team building events will also be scheduled 

regularly.

Veronica Barella, 

Interim Chief 

Information 

Officer

15. Information 

and 

Communications 

Technology

HIGH

If the proposal to end 

Shared Services 

relationship is 

followed through to its 

logical conclusion 

There is a risk that ending the old 

Shared Services relationship will impact 

the delivery of joint services from the 

Joint Network Team with RBKC, IM 

strategy, Sharepoint, ADFS and the 

provision of Strategic Relationship 

Managers  (SRMs)

There is a S113 for ICT and also one for Joint 

Network Team.  No formal plan to end Shared 

Business Services exists at present but would be a 

significant risk to the provision of ICT services and 

will need to encourage greater awareness among 

councillors and senior officers.  The IM strategy is a 

good argument to deploy here. 

Veronica Barella, 

Interim Chief 

Information 

Officer

16. Information 

and 

Communications 

Technology

HIGH

If there are not 

enough staff, such as 

Project Managers, to 

carry out the work 

There is a risk that parts of the ICT 

service will become restricted or lost.  

Also the delivery of projects may be 

delayed which may impact the planning 

of services and add to costs. 

Must complete the Target Operating Model to 

enable permanent recruitment to fill any gaps.  Will 

also use agency staff to address any temporary 

needs.

Veronica Barella, 

Interim Chief 

Information 

Officer

17. Libraries and 

Archives
HIGH

Manage income 

generating decline 

(libraries).

Monthly forecasting and medium term financial 

planning.

Explore other sources of income. Right size as part 

of alternative models of delivery.

Mike Clarke Tri-

borough Director 

of Libraries and 

Archives

18. Libraries and 

Archives
HIGH

Budgets not balanced, 

services overspend or 

under-achieve income

2016/17 savings identified.  Challenge 

to find 2018/19 savings still to be 

identified.

Approval of proposals for yearly reductions; 

development of alternative models.

Mike Clarke Tri-

borough Director 

of Libraries and 

Archives

Page 99



Subject Context Mitigation Owner Risk

Service Quarterly return submitted Additional Information Owner Risk

1. Adult Social Care Yes Executive Director, 

Liz Bruce LOW

2. Childrens Services Yes  Executive Director, 

Clare Chamberlain LOW

3. Commercial and 

Procurement

Yes Commercial 

Director, Michael 

Hainge
LOW

4. Delivery and Value Yes Kim Dero, Director 

of Delivery and 

Value
LOW

5. Environmental 

Services

Yes Lead Director, Nick 

Austin LOW

6. Finance Yes Strategic Finance 

Director, Hitesh 

Jolapara
LOW

7. Housing No The Housing Service is currently being audited on its 

Risk Management arrangements.

Lead Director, Jo 

Rowlands MEDIUM

8. Human Resources No An Officer has been allocated to undertake a review 

of the risks and produce an updated Risk Register 

having met with the Council's Risk Manager and 

been briefed on the new Risk Management Strategy.

Director of Human 

Resources, Debbie 

Morris LOW

9. Information 

Technology and 

Communications

Yes The ICT Service is currently being audited on its 

Risk Management arrangements.

Chief Information 

Officer, Veronica 

Barella
LOW

10. Libraries and 

Archives

Yes Mike Clarke, 

Director for Libraries 

and Archives LOW

Service Registers

Page 100



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2016 

 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTION PLAN AND OUTSTANDING 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EXTERNAL AUDIT 

 

Report of the Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 

 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 

Key Decision: No 

 

Wards Affected: None 

 

Accountable Director: Moira Mackie, Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 
Insurances 

 

Report Author: Geoff Drake – Senior 
Audit Manager 

Contact Details: 

Tel: 0208 753 2529 

E-mail: geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk  

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises Progress on implementing recommendations arising 

from the External Audit Report 2015/16 and the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. To note the contents of this report. 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Not applicable. No decision required. 
 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
4.1. In September 2016 the Council’s External Auditors (KPMG) issued their 

‘Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2015/16’. The report 
contained three recommendations for implementation by management. 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8

mailto:geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk


4.2. The Council’s 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) also contained 
three issues that required action by management. Action plans are a 
necessary result of the AGS and should provide sufficient evidence that the 
individual significant control weaknesses taken from the AGS will be resolved 
as soon as possible, preferably in-year before the next statement is due. 
 

4.3. Failure to act effectively on the significant control issue would increase the 
exposure of the council to risk. As these issues are considered to be 
significant, the action plans and the progress made in implementation will be 
periodically reported to the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee to 
agree and then to monitor progress. 

 
5. PROPOSALS AND ISSUES 

 
5.1. Update on External Audit Recommendations  

 
5.1.1. The table attached as Appendix A shows the progress reported by the 

responsible managers in implementing the recommendations from the 
KPMG ‘Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2015/16’. 
Unless otherwise stated, Internal Audit has not verified the information 
provided and can therefore not give any independent assurance in 
respect of the reported position. 

 
5.2. Update on Annual Governance Statement recommendations 

 
5.2.1. The table attached as Appendix B shows the progress reported by the 

responsible managers in implementing recommendation from the 2015/16 
Annual Governance Statement. 

5.2.2. Unless otherwise stated, Internal Audit has not verified the information 
provided and can therefore not give any independent assurance in 
respect of the reported position.   

 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 
None. 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
Appendix A - External Audit Recommendations 
Appendix B - Annual Governance Statement Recommendations 

 

Page 102



Appendix A 
External Audit Recommendations Update 

 
 

Recommendation/Areas of 
Improvement 

Initial response and timescale Responsible Officer Update to Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee 

Report to those charged with governance (ISA 260) 2015/16 

The Council should consider how to 
obtain assurance over the control 
environment at BT. This can be 
achieved through the commissioning of 
an ISAE 3402 as noted above or 
specific internal audit work undertaken 
at BT. The resulting report should be 
reviewed by management and any 
areas for local consideration should be 
actioned accordingly. 

We will investigate and consider options 
as to how we can obtain increased 
assurance over the control environment 
at BT. This may include an internal 
review of controls, an externally certified 
review, or a combination of both. 
Management will review any findings and 
ensure that any areas for local 
consideration are actioned accordingly. 
(Strategic Finance Director 
March 2017) 

Strategic Finance Director This has now been escalated to BT and progress 
in this area is being closely monitored. 

We recommend that the Council 
undergo a remapping exercise to ensure 
that the TB mapping to debtors and 
creditors is accurate (i.e. that debtor 
contra accounts are not mistakenly 
mapped to creditors and vice versa). In 
addition, the finance team should 
consider performing an analysis of 
debtors and creditors at year end to 
identify specific items or areas that 
would be appropriate to net against 
each other. 

LBHF will review the mapping of debtors 
and creditors and will also review the use 
of the chart of accounts. Corporate 
Finance will undertake more detailed 
analysis of debtors and creditors at year 
end to identify specific items or areas that 
would be appropriate to net against each 
other. 
(Strategic Finance Director 
December 2016) 

Strategic Finance Director Debtor and Creditor codes have now been 
reviewed and remapped as part of the Third 
Quarter closing exercise. This is now considered 
closed. 

   

P
age 103



Appendix B 

 

2015/16 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan  

 
Entry 

 

Responsible 
Officer 

Action Plan Progress To date 

Funding reductions 
Money received by Hammersmith and Fulham 
Council from central government is reducing 
significantly every year. Funding reduced by £18m in 
2015/16 (to £57.6m) and is forecast to further reduce 
by £33.6m from 2015/16 to 2019/20. Based on the 
Local Government Finance Settlement the 2016/17 
grant reduction is £8.2m. In addition, Government 
has imposed £3.4m of new responsibilities on LBHF 
without providing any funding. As part of the Local 
Government Finance Settlement the government 
announced that authorities can charge a 2% social 
care precept. This would raise £1.1m for 
Hammersmith and Fulham and is included in 
Government projections of LBHF’s spending power. 
The Government also included an assumed further 
1.75% increase in council tax in LBHF’s spending 
power projection, meaning a total council tax 
increase of 3.75% is assumed in the spending power 
projection. The Council’s administration does not 
wish to apply any tax increase to residents, so it does 
not form part of the 2016/17 budget proposals. In the 
context of this, the Council will continue to prioritise 
and endeavour to maintain strong governance 
arrangements, focusing on the purpose of the 
Council and on outcomes for the community, 
engaging with stakeholders, and promoting values for 
the authority whilst demonstrating the values of good 
governance 

Head of 
Finance Budget 

Planning & 
Monitoring 

The Council has put in place the Smarter Budgeting 
programme to help meeting the challenge created 
by funding reductions. The Smarter budgeting 
programme has followed an outcome based 
approach to identify growth and savings in eight key 
outcomes: 
• Economic Growth 
• The best start in life for children  
• Resident involvement 
• Decent homes 
• Reducing homelessness  
• Supporting vulnerable adults  
• Safer and healthier place  
• Cleaner, greener, sustainable borough 
 
A similar approach has been adopted for reviewing 
support services (enabling activities). For each 
outcome, a number of business cases have been 
developed.  These include identifying new sources 
of income, service improvement and savings.  Work 
is on-going to further develop and analyse 
proposals and the savings identified. 
 

The 2017/18 to 2020/21 budget proposals were reported to the 
Policy and Accountability Committees in January 2017. Budget 
Council on 22 February approved a balanced budget for 
2017/18 with a one-off contribution to the Efficiency Projects 
Reserve of £2.9m. This is now considered closed. 

P
age 104



Entry 

 

Responsible 
Officer 

Action Plan Progress To date 

through upholding high standards of conduct and 
behaviour. Further to this, proactive risk management 
arrangements will be enhanced to support the 
delivery of the Council’s key objectives. 

Contract Management and Procurement 
Contract management arrangements had been 
developing into a “tri-borough” service with significant 
procurements undertaken such as the SEN childrens’ 
transport contract and the Managed Services 
Programme (both procured prior to 2015/16). 
In order to strengthen both procurement and contract 
management, the Council appointed a new 
Commercial Director in December of 2015, with 
extensive experience in both the public and private 
sectors. 
Following an initial review, Council Standing Orders 
have been changed to improve visibility and oversight 
of procurement projects by requiring Cabinet sign off 
of procurement strategies for any project with a value 
greater than £100,000. A further review of 
procurement is underway, to better define the 
boundaries and interfaces between the corporate 
procurement function and related activities devolved 
to service departments. In terms of contract 
management, a maturity assessment of existing 
contract management capability has 
been initiated. The results will allow the Council to 
compare itself against prevailing best practice across 
all sectors on an international basis. A cohort of 
approximately 30 staff are undergoing formal 
commercial and contract management training that 
will lead to a recognised qualification from the 
International Association of Commercial and Contract 
Management. 
 

Director of 
Commercial and 

Procurement 

The Council's Strategic Leadership Team have 
agreed to significantly strengthen the Commercial 
Director's role across the organisation in 
procurement and contract management. Actions are 
as follows:  
 
Corporate Procurement 
a. Coordinate and support major procurement 
activities contracts (by value or sensitivity) across 
H&F to maximise opportunities and make sure 
resources are available 
b. Provide support, development, training and 
assistance to service departments on a project by 
project basis 
c. Develop and implement procurement policy, 
practice and guidance 
d. Ensure compliance with policy, standards and 
procurement law 
e. Work with economic development to ensure that 
maximum local economic benefit is derived from all 
procurements. 
 
Strategic Contract Management 
a. Set contract corporate contract management 
standards and ensure compliance 
b. Lead, supervise and coordinate all contract 
management activities on major contracts (by value 
or sensitivity) and share line management of 
relevant contract management staff 
c. Be accountable for contractual performance of 
major contracts 
d. Work with commissioners and service managers 

The Corporate Procurement team has created create and 
manage a forward plan of all major procurements. From the 
forward plan, a schedule of activities will be created and 
captured in discrete project plans. By coordinating the timing of 
major procurements, appropriate resources will be allocated to 
each project. The progress of each project will be managed with 
the assistance of the Corporate Procurement Team and is 
reported monthly individually and in aggregate at the Business 
Delivery Team (BDT) meeting. Actions to recover any slippage 
will be agreed, tracked and recorded at the BDT. These reports 
will be for information only unless there are unresolved or 
outstanding actions. 

 
The Head of Commercial and Contract Management (once 
appointed) will ensure monthly, corporate reporting of all major 
contracts takes place and will include: performance against 
contract requirements, corrective actions, penalties imposed or 
notices served. Status of previous corrective actions and any 
unresolved issues along with a plan to deal with them. The 
report will be provided individually and in aggregate and will be 
reported monthly to the BDT. Actions to resolve any 
outstanding issues will be agreed, tracked and recorded at the 
BDT. These reports will be for information only unless there are 
unresolved or outstanding actions. 
 
Accredited Commercial and Contract management training is 
underway and due to complete April 2017. A broad review of 
contract management to test H&F contract management 
against international standards has been completed. The 
findings suggest that our self-assessment (higher than average 
international standards) is at odds with actual performance 
(which is mixed).  

P
age 105



Entry 

 

Responsible 
Officer 

Action Plan Progress To date 

to carry out contract development for all major 
contracts to ensure their relevance and suitability 
during the contract term 
e. Work with, commissioners, service managers and 
major suppliers to continuously improve quality and 
cost through investment and innovation 
f. Maintain a watching brief on the financial and 
commercial stability of major contractors 
g. Train and develop capability and skills of contract 
management staff across H&F 
 
 
 

 
An initial contract management workshop has taken place and 
we are creating a community of commercial and contract 
management staff from this. The next workshop will be in 
January 2017. 

 
Individual reviews of the Serco, Mitie and Pinnacle contracts 
are underway. SLT has agreed that the Commercial Director 
will have shared line management for all contract management 
staff.  

 
Subject to internal governance, the director is recruiting a new 
Head of Commercial and Contract Management and four new 
contract managers in order to achieve the planned changes and 
to meet MTFS targets. 

BT Managed Services Contract Delivery 
The Managed Services Programme was procured by 
Westminster City Council in 2013 to provide 
transactional Human Resources, including payroll, 
finance services and a Shared Service help desk for 
the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, 
the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and 
the City of Westminster Councils. The programme 
overran its original delivery date of 1 April 2014 and 
went live on 16 March 2015 with a further programme 
of staged implementation originally extending to 30 
April 2015 that has continued to be extended since. 
Overall, the programme work plans were reviewed by 
the Programme post go-live and this established key 
deliverables with revised due dates. These plans and 
the target date for to achieve a steady state, have 
slipped and a more recent review of plans has re-set 
due dates which now stretch through to June 2016. 
The Council has recognised through its Audit 
Committee and Contract management arrangements 
that the contract with BT has had significant issues. 

Chief Executive, 
supported by 

MSP sponsors - 
Strategic 
Finance 

Director and 
Director for 

Human 
Resources 

3.1) LBHF management Oversight of Services and 
Performance 
 
3.2) Assurance for the control environment at BT 
 
3.3) Delivery of plans to achieve a steady state 

3.1) The frequency of governance meetings has been aligned 
to the contractual frequencies; meaning a reduction to the 
number of meetings undertaken. The impact of this is being 
monitored. BT continue to provide information on re-plan 
progress against deliverable dates, and matters requiring inputs 
from the Council. 
 
3.2) March 2017: KPMG are conducting an audit of the 
accounting controls environment at the BT Shared Services 
Centre located in Jarrow. 
 
3.3) LBHF continue to monitor and challenge progress against 
the transitional activities (re-plan) being undertaken by BT 
through attendance at the Operational Framework Board, 
Strategic Framework Board, and Board to Board forums  

P
age 106



Entry 

 

Responsible 
Officer 

Action Plan Progress To date 

During the year, the Council discontinued the use of 
Westminster City Council’s Chief Executive as the 
SRO for the contract with BT and appointed the 
Council’s Chief Executive as its SRO for the contract 
with BT. Officers and members from the Council held 
regular meetings with BT to review plans to improve 
performance, including making sure measures were 
taken to ensure internal controls operated. 
Work is on-going with BT to address the issues 
raised in this statement and additional resources are 
being 
applied by them and the Council to resolve the issues 
as soon as possible, although over the period 
improvements have been made we are unable to say 
with confidence when the system and service will be 
fully operational. In order to undertake an effective 
internal audit whereby reliance can be placed on the 
testing undertaken, there needs to be confidence that 
the system being reviewed is operating in a stable 
environment with changes properly controlled and 
tested prior to being implemented. Apart from the 
high level controls review of the Managed Service, 
which indicated that there were a number of areas 
where assurance on controls could not be given, 
Internal Audit have not been able to independently 
review the system controls and have therefore not 
undertaken any substantive testing during 2015/16 in 
the key areas of HR, Payroll and Finance. Due to 
problems with the system, additional internal finance 
and HR resources were engaged during the year by 
the Council to support HR and finance work, 
including to assist the production of the final 
accounts. The additional support mitigated the issues 
that have been experienced. 

 

P
age 107



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2016 

  

INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2017/18 

 

Report of the Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 

 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For information 

Key Decision: No 

 

Wards Affected: None 

 

Accountable Director: Moira Mackie, Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 
Insurances 

 

Report Author: Geoff Drake – Senior 
Audit Manager 

Contact Details: 

Tel: 0208 753 2529 

E-mail: geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides the 2017/18 year Internal Audit plans at Appendix 1.  The 

plan is designed to address key risk areas to the council and to be affordable. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. To note the contents of this report. 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. Not applicable. No decision required. 
 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
4.1. The Internal Audit plans have been developed using the council risk registers, 

the Internal Audit universe which identifies when each area was last audited 
and the audit assurance provided at that time, and Internal Audit knowledge of 
the council and current activities.  The initial draft plans were then discussed 
with management in each department with the plans updated as a 

Page 108

Agenda Item 9

mailto:geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk


consequence of those meetings, then was shared with the S151 Officer and 
the Chief Executive.  The resulting plan is provided at Appendix 1. This 
represents the current version of the audit plans, these are subject to change 
at any time taking into account changing risk within the council, changes in 
council activities, etc.  Any changes to the plan will be reported to the 
Committee in the quarterly internal audit reports. 

 
5. PROPOSALS AND ISSUES 

 
5.1. To note the contents of the 2017/18 year Internal Audit plans. 
 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 
 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A - Internal Audit Plans 2017/18 
 

Page 109



Appendix A 
 

 

 

Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_01 ASC - Finance Financial management and budgetary control 2016/17 Tri 1 High 

2017_02 ASC - All Supporting People: Housing related support contracts n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_03 ASC - All Direct payments 2014/15 Tri TBA High 

2017_04 ASC - All Customer care/complaints management n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_05 ASC - All 

Occupational therapy, including OT equipment (may be 
combined with reablement depending on overlap of 
processes) 2014/15 Tri TBA Medium 

2017_06 ASC - All Reablement (see also occupational therapy) 2013/14 Tri TBA High 

2017_07 ASC - All 

Client affairs including appointeeships and receiverships, 
deputyships/ protection of property, 
receiverships/funerals 2015/16 Tri TBA High 

2017_08 ASC - All Care assessments (including financial management) 2014/15 Tri TBA High 

2017_09 ASC - All Residential Placements n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_10 ASC - All Safeguarding adults 2013/14 Tri TBA High 

P
age 110



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_11 ASC - All 3B hospital discharge project n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_12 ASC - Self-neglect and hoarding n/a Tri TBA Medium 

2017_13 ASC - All Emergency Duty Team n/a   TBA High 

2017_14 
ASC - Mental 
Health Mental Health day services 2014/15 Tri TBA Medium 

2017_15 ASC - All Frameworki upgrade Adults  n/a Tri 3 High 

2017_16 PH - All Procurement governance (part 1) 2015/16 Tri 1 High 

2017_17 PH - All Procurement governance (part 2) 2015/16 Tri 4 High 

2017_18 PH - All Commissioning Planning and delivery: Preventions n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_19 PH - All 
Commissioning Planning and delivery: Behavioural 
change n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_20 PH - All 
Health Intelligence and Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment delivery 2015/16 Tri 2 High 

2017_21 PH - All Clinical Governance n/a Tri 4 Medium 

P
age 111



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_22 PH - All Prioritisation Framework n/a Tri 4 Medium 

2017_23 CHS Leaving Care (c/fwd 2015/16) 
2012/13 
(Sat) Tri 3 High 

2017_24 CHS Fostering & Adoption 
2015/16 
(Ltd) Tri 1 Medium 

2017_25 CHS  Child Care and the Age 2/3 offer n/a Tri 4 High 

2017_26 CHS - All Contract Management Arrangements 
2014/15 
(Sat) Tri 3 High 

2017_27 CHS - All 

Contract Procurements 2015/16 
(Sat) Tri 3 High 

2017_28 CHS - All Supplier Resilience n/a Tri 2 Medium 

2017_29 CHS - IT IT - Frameworki upgrade Children's  n/a Tri 4 High 

2017_30 CHS Safeguarding - Structures & Governance Arrangements 
2013/14 
(Sat) Tri 3 High 

2017_60 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Randolph Beresford - Nursery School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_61 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Addison - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

P
age 112



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_62 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Flora Gardens - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_63 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Holy Cross RC - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_64 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Melcombe - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_65 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Normand Croft - Community School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_66 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools St John’s C of E Walham Green Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_67 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools St Peter’s C of E  - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_68 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools The Good Shepherd RC - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_69 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools Wormholt Park - Primary School 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_70 
CHS - LBHF 
Schools 

Jack Tizard School 
 
 
 2014/15 SHF TBA Low 

2017_71 ES - TTS 
Parking Enforcement (including CCTV parking 
enforcement and bus lanes) 2014/15 SHF 1 High 

2017_72 ES - TTS Parking suspensions 2013/14 Bi 3 Medium 

P
age 113



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_73 ES - TTS Procurement: Property Services framework n/a Bi TBA High 

2017_74 ES - TTS Procurement: Highways contract n/a Bi TBA Medium 

2017_75 ES - TTS 

Contract management: Possibly SERCO (LBHF) or 
Idverde? (LBHF & RBKC) 

2014/15 Bi TBA Medium 

2017_76 ES - TTS Section 106  2012/13 SHF 4 High 

2017_77 ES - TTS 

Community Infrastructure Levy (see corp servs for 
RBKC & WCC) 

n/a SHF 4 High 

2017_78 ES - TTS Utilities n/a SHF 1 Medium 

2017_79 ES - TTS Residents parking permits 2014/15 Bi 1 High 

2017_80 ES - TTS Car pound 2011/12 Bi 2 Medium 

2017_81 ES - TTS - IT IT - Parking Cashless Phone Payment System n/a Bi 1 High 

2017_82 ES - ELRS Leisure centres n/a Bi TBA Medium 

2017_83 ES - ELRS 

Regeneration: King Street 

n/a SHF TBA Medium 

P
age 114



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_108 HRS Gas Safety - Transfer from Gassys to iWorld 2016/17 SHF 2 High 

2017_109 HRS MITIE Contract 2016/17 SHF 3 High 

2017_110 HRS MITIE walkthrough: Planned and cyclical works 2014/15 SHF 2 High 

2017_111 HRS MITIE walkthrough: Planned and cyclical works 2014/15 SHF 4 High 

see 
2016/17 HRS Stock options n/a SHF n/a n/a 

see 
2016/17 HRS Joint venture/ affordable homes etc n/a SHF n/a n/a 

2017_112 HRS Regeneration - Earls Court n/a SHF TBA High 

2017_113 HRS 
Govt Policy: Universal Credit & the Council's use of 
preferred partner status n/a SHF 4 Medium 

2017_114 HRS Estate Parking n/a SHF 2 Medium 

2017_115 HRS Council homes energy management n/a SHF 3 Medium 

2017_116 HRS Out of hours contact centre 2011/12 SHF 1 Medium 

P
age 115



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_117 HRS Housing capital programme 2012/13 SHF 3 Medium 

2017_118 HRS Fixed term tenancies 2013/14 SHF 4 Medium 

2017_119 HRS Techforge project management module n/a SHF 3 High 

2017_131 

Corporate Services 
- Delivery & Value - 
LBHF Corporate Governance 2016/17 SHF 3 High 

2017_133 
Corporate Services 
– LBHF 

Risk Management –  systems/ compliance audit of the 
process 2016/17 SHF 3 High 

2017_135 

Corporate Services 
- Service areas to 
be confirmed and 
agreed with each 
council during 
2017/18 

Risk Management – cyclical review in two council 
services (may be one or two reports depending on 
service chosen) 2016/17 BHK 3 High 

2017_136 
ICT – LBHF 

IT Service Governance n/a SHF 2 High 

2017_138 
ICT – LBHF 

Contract Monitoring Arrangements n/a SHF 3 Medium 

2017_140 ICT – LBHF Cyber Security Compliance 2015/16 SHF 3 High 

2017_142 ICT – LBHF Data Management Governance  

n/a 
SHF 2 High 

2017_144 
ICT – LBHF 

Office365 

n/a 
SHF 3 High 

P
age 116



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_146 ICT – LBHF Network Security Compliance 

n/a 
SHF 4 High 

2017_148 ICT – LBHF Telecommunications Service Contract 2014/15 SHF 4 Medium 

2017_150 ICT – LBHF ICT Procurement of Services (Non IT)  n/a SHF 3 Medium 

2017_152 ICT – LBHF 

Information Management (including Freedom of 
Information Requests/ Data Protection & Information 
Security) various SHF 2 Medium 

2017_154 

CS - Commercial & 
Procurement – 
LBHF Procurement  2016/17 SHF 2 High 

2017_157 

CS - Commercial & 
Procurement – 
LBHF Procurement: Contractor resilience n/a SHF 1 High 

2017_160 HR – LBHF Learning and Development Pre 2010 SHF 3 Medium 

2017_163 
HR – LBHF Staff Performance Management 

n/a SHF 4 Medium 

2017_166 
HR – RBKC & 
LBHF Occupational Health various BHK 1 High 

2017_168 

Bi-bo HR – RBKC 
& LBHF & Sov HR 
WCC 

Pension Administration – contract management & 
performance monitoring 2016/17 Tri 3 High 

2017_169 

Bi-bo HR – RBKC 
& LBHF & Sov HR 
WCC & Managed 
Services Payroll 2016/17 Tri 3 High 

P
age 117



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_170 

Bi-bo HR – RBKC 
& LBHF & Sov HR 
WCC & Managed 
Services Absence Management n/a Tri 1 High 

2017_171 
CS - Managed 
Services - General Intelligent Client Function (cfwd from 16/17) n/a Tri TBA High 

2017_172 
CS - Managed 
Services (IT) Interfaces (cfwd from 16/17) 2015/16 Tri 3 High 

2017_173 
CS - Managed 
Services (IT) 

MSP Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery (cfwd 
from 16/17) n/a Tri 1 High 

2017_174 

CS - Managed 
Services (IT) 

MSP Agresso Application Audits n/a Tri 3 High 

2017_175 Legal Services Demand Management n/a Tri 3 High 

2017_176 Legal Services Trading Account n/a Tri 2 High 

2017_177 
Finance & 
Managed Services Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013 n/a Tri 3 Medium 

2017_178 
Finance & 
Managed Services Accounts Payable 2016/17 Tri 2 High 

2017_179 
Finance & 
Managed Services Manual Payments 2016/17 SHF 2 Medium 

2017_182 
Finance & 
Managed Services 

Accounts Receivable (to include debt recovery and 
income management) 2016/17 SHF 3 High 

P
age 118



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_187 

Financial 
Corporate Services 
– LBHF Highways Infrastructure Accounting 2016/17 SHF 3 High 

2017_190 

Financial 
Corporate Services 
– LBHF Pension Investments 2014/15 SHF 3 High 

2017_211 
CS - Customer 
Access - RBKC Residents parking permits 2014/15 Bi 1 High 

2017_235 CS - LBHF 
Gas safety – annual coverage on a rolling programme 
basis.   2016/17 SHF TBA High 

2017_236 CS - LBHF Council Tax 2015/16 SHF 3 High 

2017_237 CS - LBHF Housing and Council Tax Benefits 2015/16 SHF 3 High 

2017_238 CS - LBHF NNDR 2015/16 SHF 3 High 

2017_239 CS -  LBHF Contact Centre Procurement n/a SHF 2 High 

2017_240 CS -  LBHF Trading company n/a SHF 2 High 

2017_241 CS - ICT - LBHF ICT Service Transformation Programme n/a SHF 2 High 

2017_242 
CS - General - 
LBHF Staff - Declaration of Interests n/a SHF 3 Medium 

P
age 119



Audit 
Ref 

Service Area Auditable Area 
Last 
Audit 

Type* Quarter Priority 

2017_243 
CS - General - 
LBHF Staff - Gifts & Hospitality n/a SHF 2 Medium 

 

*Key 
SHF – Sovereign LBHF audit 
Bi – Bi-borough audit, LBHF and RBKC 
BHK – Bi-borough audit. LBHF and RBKC 
Tri – Tri-borough audit, LBHF, RBKC and WCC 

P
age 120



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

AUDIT, PENSIONS AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 
21 March 2017 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1 OCTOBER – 31 
DECEMBER 2016 
 

Report of the Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and Insurance 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification: For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Moira Mackie, Interim Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 
Insurance 
 

Report Author: Geoff Drake – Senior 
Audit Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 2529 
E-mail: geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk  

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report summarises internal audit activity in respect of audit reports issued 

during the period 1 October to 31 December 2016 as well as reporting on the 
performance of the Internal Audit service. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. To note the contents of this report. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
3.1. Not applicable. No decision required. 

 
4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

 
4.1. This report summarises internal audit activity in respect of audit reports issued 

during the period 1 October to 31 December 2016, and is for the Committee 
to note. 
 

  

Page 121

Agenda Item 10

mailto:geoff.drake@lbhf.gov.uk


Internal Audit Coverage 
 

4.1.1. The primary objective of each audit is to arrive at an assurance opinion 
regarding the robustness of the internal controls within the financial or 
operational system under review. Where weaknesses are found internal 
audit will propose solutions to management to improve controls, thus 
reducing opportunities for error or fraud. In this respect, an audit is only 
effective if management agree audit recommendations and implement 
changes in a timely manner. 

 
4.1.2. A total of 8 audit reports were finalised in the third quarter of 2016/2017 

from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2016. 
 

4.1.3. Further, an audit of the Mitie contract quality assurance arrangements 
was undertaken with the final report being issued on 9 March 2107. In 
order to provide timely information to Committee members we have 
included the results of our work in this report. A Limited assurance 
opinion report was issued with 7 medium priority recommendations being 
raised. 

 
4.1.4. One Limited assurance report was issued in this period. The review of 

Trading Accounts within the Corporate Services department identified 2 
high and 3 medium priority recommendations. Recommendations are yet 
to pass their due date for implementation. 

 
4.1.5. There are currently no draft reports for which a response from 

management is overdue. 
 

 
4.1.6. A summary of the limited assurance report is provided in Appendix E. 

 
Outstanding audit recommendations 

 
4.1.7. The Internal Audit department works with key departmental contacts to 

monitor the number of outstanding draft reports and the implementation of 
agreed recommendations.  

 
4.1.8. Departments are given 10 working days for management agreement to 

be given to each report and for the responsible Director to sign it off so 
that it can then be finalised. There are no outstanding draft reports at the 
time of writing. 

 
4.1.9. There are now 9 audit recommendations where the target date for the 

implementation of the recommendation has passed and they have either 
not been fully implemented or the auditee has not provided any 
information on their progress in implementing the recommendation.  
These are shown at Appendix F. This compares to 5 outstanding as 
reported at the end of the previous quarter and represents a decline in the 
position. We will continue to work with departments to reduce the number 
of outstanding issues. 

Page 122



 
4.1.10. The breakdown of the 9 outstanding recommendations between 

departments is as follows:  

 Children’s Services (Non Schools) – 1 

 Schools - 4 

 Corporate Services – 4 
 

4.1.11. Three of the recommendations listed are over 6 months past the target 
date for implementation as at the date of the Committee meeting. Internal 
Audit are continuing to focus on clearing the longest outstanding 
recommendations. 
 

Non-Implemented Recommendation 
4.1.12. Management have confirmed that one High Priority recommendation 

arising from the 2015/16 premises licensing audit, an audit report with a 
limited audit assurance for LBHF due to the impact of Managed Services, 
will not be implemented. This relates to an implementing an interface and 
reconciliation between the Agresso and Uniform systems, a copy of the 
original recommendation and management response is provided at 
Appendix C. Management have made this decision in view of the cost 
plus the priority that Finance and the Intelligent Client Function place on 
this, as a result it was not considered viable. The risk of human error and 
the ongoing resource requirements of a manual reconciliation has been 
accepted by management. 
 
 

Implemented Recommendations 
4.1.13. The table below shows the number of audit recommendations raised 

each year that have been reported as implemented. This helps to 
demonstrate the role of Internal Audit as an agent of change for the 
council. 

 
 

4.2. In
ter
nal 
Au
dit 
Se
rvi
ce 
 

4.2.1. P
art 
of 

the Senior Audit Manager’s function is to monitor the quality of Mazars’ 
work. Formal monthly meetings are held with the Mazars Contract 
Manager and one of the agenda items is an update on progress and a 
review of performance against key performance indicators.  The 

Year 
Number of 

recommendations due 
Number of 

recommendations 
implemented 

2014/15  206 204 

2015/16 233 230 

2016/17 64 59 

Page 123



performance figures are provided for Quarter 3 of the 2016/17 financial 
year. 
 

Performance Indicators 2016/17 
 

Ref Performance Indicator Target 
Pro 
rata 

target 

At 31 
December

2016 
Variance Comments 

1 % of deliverables completed  95% 72% 53% -19% 
51 deliverables issued out of a total 
plan of 96 (excluding exceptions) 

2 % of planned audit days delivered 95% 72% 71% -1% 
835 days delivered out of a total 

plan of 1175 days 

3 
% of audit briefs issued no less than 

10 working days before the start of the 
audit 

95% 95% 100% +5% 
43 out of 43 briefs issued more than 
ten working days before the start of 

the audit. 

4 
% of Draft reports issued within 10 

working days of exit meeting 
95% 95% 91% -4% 

29 out of 32 draft reports issued 
within 10 working days of exit 

meeting. 

 5 
% of Final reports issued within 5 
working days of the management 

responses 
95% 95% 100% +5% 

21 out of 21 final reports issued 
within 5 working days. 

 
 
 

4.3. Audit Planning 
 

4.3.1. Amendments to the 2016/17 year Internal Audit plan are shown at 
Appendix C.  

 
5. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A - Audit reports issued 1 October to 31 December 2017 
Appendix B - Summary of Outstanding Audit Reports 
Appendix C - Non-Implemented Recommendation 
Appendix D - Amendments to 2016/17 audit plan 
Appendix E - Summary of Limited Assurance Reports 
Appendix F - Outstanding Recommendations 
  

Page 124



APPENDIX A 
 

Audit reports Issued 1 October to 31 December 2016 
 
We have finalised a total of 8 audit reports for the period of 1 October to 31 December 2016 and one 
in March 2017 that is being reported to this Committee. 
 
Audit Reports 
 
We categorise our opinions according to our assessment of the controls in place and the level of 
compliance with these controls. 

Audit Reports finalised in the period: 

No. Audit Plan Audit Title Director / Sponsor Audit Assurance 

1 2015/16 Trading Accounts Michael Hainge Limited 

2 2015/16 Adult Social Care - Quality Assurance Mike Boyle Satisfactory 

3 2016/17 Grants to Voluntary Organisations Kim Dero Satisfactory 

4 2016/17 Sir John Lille Primary School Dave McNamara Satisfactory 

5 2016/17 St Paul’s CE Primary Dave McNamara Satisfactory 

6 2016/17 Vanessa Nursery School Dave McNamara Satisfactory 

7 2016/17 Housing Voids Nilavra Mukerji Satisfactory 

8 2016/17 
Stakeholder Engagement/ Resident 

Involvement 
Nilavra Mukerji Satisfactory 

9 2016/17 Mitie Quality Assurance Nilavra Mukerji Limited 

 

 

Substantial 
Assurance 

There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the objectives. Compliance 
with the control process is considered to be substantial and few material errors or 

weaknesses were found. 

Satisfactory 
Assurance 

While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses and/or omissions 
which put some of the system objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the 
level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 

objectives at risk. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Weaknesses and / or omissions in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance puts the system 

objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, 
and/or significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the system open to 

error or abuse. 

 

Page 125



APPENDIX B 
Internal Audit reports in issue more than two weeks 

 

 

There are no outstanding audit reports in issue for more than two weeks at the time of reporting.  
  

P
age 126



APPENDIX C 
Non-Implemented Recommendation 

 
LBHF - Reconciliation of LBHF licensing application income 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

High Premises licensing applications income recorded in the LBHF 
Uniform system is not being reconciled to the income records 
in the Agresso system. This is due to the lack of an 
automated interface between the Agresso and Uniform 
systems, and limitations in being able to perform this 
reconciliation manually. 
For licensing applications income paid by card, suitable 
reports are not available from the card payment systems, 
Capita and World Pay, to enable reconciliation to the Uniform 
system. 
For licensing applications income paid by cheque, no 
reconciliation is performed between the record of cheques 
banked and Uniform, as the Uniform system does not enable 
payments to be identified as ‘reconciled’ and there is thus no 
way of keeping track of which items have been reconciled. 
However, by comparing the record of cheques banked for the 
month with a monthly general ledger report provided by the 
Finance department, the Administration Unit Leader is able to 
verify whether the cheques banked have been correctly 
recorded in the general ledger. This reconciliation has 
highlighted a number of general ledger coding errors. For 
June 2015, for example, 14 items of application fee income 
had been miscoded to annual fee income, which is a result of 
the incorrect mapping of legacy accounting codes to Agresso 
account codes. The legacy accounting codes are still being 
used as the cash management module is not yet live in 
Agresso. 

Premises licensing 
applications income may 
not be properly accounted 
for leading to errors and 
anomalies not being 
identified and 
misstatement of the 
Council’s financial 
accounts. 

An interface and 
reconciliation should be 
implemented between the 
Agresso and Uniform 
systems. 
This process should be 
automated to reduce the 
risk of human error and 
ongoing resource 
requirements of a manual 
reconciliation. 

P
age 127



Management Response 

The application income is not being reconciled due to the fact that there is no “reconciliation” field in the Uniform system to identify 
fees which have or have not been reconciled. As the income is banked at cashiers as a total amount for each type of licence an 
automated interface will not work as there is no corresponding reference number held in Agresso to identify which applications the 
fees relate to. An interface can work for annual fees as the Agresso customer and invoice numbers are/are capable of being held in 
Uniform. 
 
We recognise that having an automated interface significantly reduces the risk of missing or misallocated income. Currently for 
LBHF there is no such interface, so we would welcome this as a recommendation for the automatic creation of annual fees in 
Agresso and the transfer of invoice numbers and payments from Agresso into Uniform. It is important to note that unless Uniform is 
developed to include specific reconciliation fields in the “receipts” tab there will be limitations with trying to reconcile manually each 
month. 
 
Whilst we can write the specification and assist with the data mapping, this will require further investigation about who would be 
responsible for the development. We will need to ask for an updated position on this. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Administration Unit Leader and Managed Services Programme Team 31/03/2016 

  

P
age 128



APPENDIX D 
 
 

Amendments to 2016/17 Audit Plan 
 
 

 Department Audit Name Nature of Amendment Reason for amendment 

1 Corporate Smarter Budgeting Added Added from contingency 

2 Environment Services CCTV Added Brought forward from 2017/18 plan 

 

  

P
age 129



APPENDIX E 
 

Summary of Limited and Nil Assurance Reports 
 
Ref Audit and Scope Details Assurance / Risk 
1 Trading Accounts 

The objectives of this review were to 
assess and evaluate the controls in the 
following areas: 

 Policies and Procedures; 

 Set Up and Review of Trading 
Accounts; 

 Service Provision; 

 Invoicing and Debt Recovery; 
and 

 Financial and Performance 
Management. 

Trading accounts are maintained where services are provided on a basis other than a straightforward recharge of 
costs or on a cash limited vote basis, such as a quoted price or schedule of rates. Trading accounts have taken 
on more importance as local authorities have developed a more commercial culture and seek to increase 
revenue. 
Two high priority, and three medium priority recommendations have been raised. They are as follows: 

1) The Council should consider assigning an officer the responsibility for central oversight of trading 
accounts across the Council, to put in place governance processes and monitor compliance with these.   
The Council should develop guidelines for the end to end process over the management of trading 
accounts. As minimum the guidelines should include the following: 

 Steps to be undertaken for the set-up of trading accounts including business case preparation, 
scrutiny and approval; 

 Consideration of the Council’s risk appetite in respect of providing traded services; 

 Agreeing objectives, profitability & growth targets for the service; 

 Recording income and expenditure associated with the service; 

 Billing and Debt Management including vetting of customers or measures to prevent default 
payments where possible; and 

 A performance management framework on financial (revenue and profitability) and non-financial 
(quality of service and customer feedback) performance. 

2) A fee setting framework should be developed for all traded services. This should include the steps to be 
taken in determining the fees including any factors such as overheads, direct/indirect costs to consider. 
Assumptions used and calculations supporting the fee setting should be documented and retained. 

3) Separate accounts should be maintained to record all income and related expenditure including 
overheads and any other direct and indirect costs of providing the traded service. 
Trading accounts should be monitored regularly to check whether the profitability and growth targets 
are being achieved. Where the required profitability is not achieved, remedial action should be taken. 
Non-financial performance should also be monitored regularly to assess customer satisfaction and 
quality of services provided. 
Continuing viability of the traded services should be reviewed periodically to make a decision on 
whether the service should continue. 

4) Trading account debtors should be monitored separately from other non-traded services. 
5) The Council should disclose the remedial action proposed or already implemented for all trading 

accounts that have sustained a deficit in each financial year including the results of such actions as 
required by BVACOP. 

 

Limited 

P
age 130



Ref Audit and Scope Details Assurance / Risk 
2 Mitie Quality Assurance 

The objectives of this review were to assess 
and evaluate the controls in the following 
areas: 

 Policies and Procedures 

 Quality Assurance Framework 

 Responsive Repairs 

 Major Works 

 Voids (including asbestos works) 

 Completion of Safety Checks 

A 10 year repairs and maintenance contract with Mitie Property Services UK (Mitie) came into effect on 1 
November 2013.  Mitie’s remit covers Council tenanted properties, Communal areas, Council owned Temporary 
Accommodation, (limited to hostels only) and Sheltered Accommodation. The contract with Mitie also incorporates 
provision for the following checks on the Council’s housing stock that was covered within the scope of this audit: 

• Annual Gas Safety Checks; 
• Electrical Installation Condition Reports (EICRs) every five years and on every void property; 
• Asbestos management within all void properties as part of the void process; and 
• PAT testing on hostels and sheltered housing. 

Seven medium priority recommendations have been raised as follows: 

1) The Council should continue to explore viable options for KPI 2, secure Mitie’s agreement to KPI 3’s 
sampling method, and continue to monitor these areas of Mitie's performance. Where performance 
does not meet expected levels, remedial action should be taken. 

2) The results of post-inspections should be periodically reviewed to identify common trends. Where 
common themes are identified, the root cause should be identified and an action plan agreed with Mitie 
to help prevent reoccurrence. 

3) The Council should periodically compare jobs which have failed post-inspections to the Recalls Post-
Inspections tracker to ensure that all failed inspections are being logged appropriately by Mitie. 

4) A report of open Emergency and Urgent priority jobs should be generated and reviewed on a regular 
basis to identify any jobs overrunning their estimated completion timescale. Assurance should be 
gained that all necessary emergency or urgent works have been completed on these open jobs. 

5) In addition to the site monitoring, partnership meetings, and handover documents currently being filed, 
the Council should make efforts to record: meeting attendance, photos of issues, contractors’ Health & 
Safety documentation/certification, all signed handover certificates, and correspondence with Mitie 
relating to follow-up action. 

6) The Council’s gas post-inspectors should be reminded to complete all sections of the Service 
Checklists, making use of the “Yes”, “No” or “N/A” fields as appropriate, and providing pertinent detail 
regarding “No” and “N/A” assessments. Checklists should then be reviewed and filed in a consistent 
manner for future reference in quality monitoring. 

7) The Council should make a concerted effort to discuss and improve the performance of Mitie’s gas 
engineers, including identifying the root cause of the issues, and monitor post-inspection results for 
improvement, and to prevent the volume of re-inspections from becoming unmanageable or 
manageable only at the expense of standard post-inspections. 

The assurance opinion provided was based on sample testing across the entire contract period to date. It should 
be noted that a number of improvements have been made to the quality assurance framework since October 
2016 and these have been reflected in our summary of findings below. We have been unable to fully test the 
effectiveness of the new or strengthened controls as they are not yet fully embedded. As a result, we have also 
not been able to assess whether the quality of work has improved as a result of these measures being 
implemented. 

Limited 

  

P
age 131



APPENDIX F 
Summary of Outstanding Recommendations 

 
This is a schedule of all recommendations where the target date for implementation has passed and either the recommendation has not been 
fully implemented, or the auditee has failed to provide information on whether it has been implemented. 

 

 

Ref 
Audit 
year 

Department Audit Name Assurance Recommendation 
Priority 
(1/2/3) 

Agreed 
Target Date 

Sponsor  

(Name) 

Sponsor 

(Title) 
Status 

1 2015/16 Children's 
Services 

Semi-Independent 
Living Framework 

Satisfactory (a) Official acceptance letters should 
be drawn up and despatched in a 

timely manner thus officially 
concluding the tender process. 

(b) Copies of both the Notification and 
Acceptance letters should be held on 

the Capital E Sourcing portal. 

1 31/07/2016 Ros 
Morris 

Head of 
Commissioning for 

Specialist 
Intervention 

No response received  

2 2016/17 Children's 
Services 

Brackenbury 
Primary School 

Satisfactory The School’s income records should 
be independently checked against the 

amounts due to be banked by a 
second officer prior to banking. 

1 31/09/2016 Dave 
McNamar

a 

Director for Finance 
and Resources 

(Children's 
Services) 

Asset register is still being worked on.  

3 2016/17 Children's 
Services 

Old Oak Primary Satisfactory The following policies and documents 
should be subject to review and 

approval by the Governing Body on 
an annual basis: 

• Charging Policy; 
• Pay Policy; and 

• School Staffing Structure. 
Approval should be documented 

within meeting minutes. 

2 30/11/2016 Dave 
McNamar

a 

Director for Finance 
and Resources 

(Children's 
Services) 

Schools Response - Out-standing 
Policy docs to be prepared and 

submitted by Financial Mgt at School 
after consultation with Finance Service 

Provider as school has notified that 
they will be in contact with Provider 
today (1st Nov 2016). (Audit Review 
Point shall be completed by end of 

Month Nov 2016) 

4 2016/17 Children's 
Services 

Old Oak Primary Satisfactory The School should review the 
composition of Governing Body and 

liaise with the Council to either 
amend the Instrument of 
Government, or to review 

membership to bring this into line with 
the Instrument of Government. 

The Governing Body should be no 
bigger than necessary to secure the 
range of skills needed to carry out 

their functions.  

2 31/12/2016 Dave 
McNamar

a 

Director for Finance 
and Resources 

(Children's 
Services) 

Schools Response - Composition of 
the Governors body is being actioned 

and shall be in place by next 
Governors meeting by End of Year 

Break  

5 2016/17 Children's 
Services 

Old Oak Primary Satisfactory The Budget Monitoring Reports and 
Petty Cash reconciliations should be 
signed by the School Admin Officer 

2 30/11/2016 Dave 
McNamar

a 

Director for Finance 
and Resources 

(Children's 

School has stated that the BMR/PC 
shall be signed by Finance and SMT 

going forward from Period 8 in line with 

P
age 132



Ref 
Audit 
year 

Department Audit Name Assurance Recommendation 
Priority 
(1/2/3) 

Agreed 
Target Date 

Sponsor  

(Name) 

Sponsor 

(Title) 
Status 

and the Head Teacher on a monthly 
basis as evidence of review. 

Services) Audit Review. (Audit Review Point is 
activated and shall be complete by 

30th Nov 2016) 

6 2014/15 Corporate 
Services 

Tri borough Cloud 
Computing 

Satisfactory A central Tri-Borough inventory of all 
services and solutions provided 

through the cloud should be created 
and maintained, regardless of which 
borough is responsible for managing 
the service contract. The Tri-Borough 

Information Security Assurance 
Authority Group should be 

responsible for the inventory. 

2 30/10/2016 Veronica 
Barella  

Interim Chief 
Information Officer 

The delay in addressing this 
recommendation has resulted from 
both the move from a 'Tri-borough' 
service to a '2 plus 1' and also the 

move from HFBP to H&F ICT.   
Since the audit took place, there have 

been a number of changes that 
supersede this recommendation, in 

particular that there is no longer a 'Tri-
borough' service, nor an 'Information 
Security Assurance Authority Group'.  

It is therefore proposed that H&F 
Contract Monitoring Office (CMO) are 

responsible for maintaining an 
inventory of cloud based services and 

solutions that fall within the remit of 
H&F ICT.  However, it should be noted 
that ICT have a limited role in this risk 
mitigation as other cloud solutions are 
delivered without the involvement, and 

sometimes knowledge, of ICT. For 
example, Agresso is not the 

responsibility of ICT but managed by 
the Strategic Director of Finance.  

Application Services have a tool to 
identify applications and services 

running on externally hosted servers 
(CM tool database).  This broadly 

indicates that the services are cloud 
services. However we are aware that 

this reflects only a subset of such 
services as we do not have sight of all 
such services that have been procured 
and conversely, the termination of any 
hosted service.  This is exacerbated by 

the current risk that IT Strategy 
comments are optional on decision 

papers with a value below £100K - this 
is noted on H&F's risk register.  It is 

P
age 133



Ref 
Audit 
year 

Department Audit Name Assurance Recommendation 
Priority 
(1/2/3) 

Agreed 
Target Date 

Sponsor  

(Name) 

Sponsor 

(Title) 
Status 

proposed that H&F ICT complete the 
inventory of cloud services defined 
above by 30th April 2017.  Internal 

Audit have already scheduled a further 
audit 'Cloud Based Computer 

Services', due to start imminently (a 
draft scope is in circulation) and it is 

proposed that this H&F ICT inventory 
is reviewed as part of that audit. 

 
7 

2014/15 Corporate 
Services 

Tri borough Cloud 
Computing 

Satisfactory Regular reporting on performance 
and security incidents (or any agreed 
schedule) should be requested from 
the cloud service providers for the 
Frameworki, Library Management 

System and Bravo Solutions 
application. 

 
Furthermore, such reporting 

requirements should be extended to 
all Tri-Borough based cloud 

agreements. 

2 31/10/2016 Veronica 
Barella  

Interim Chief 
Information Officer 

01/03/17.  The delay in addressing this 
recommendation has resulted from 
both the move from a 'Tri-borough' 
service to a '2 plus 1' and also the 

move from HFBP to H&F ICT. 
 

Audit reports states this action is the 
responsibility of the Chief Procurement 
Officer in WCC.  It has been suggested 

that he was responsible only for the 
Bravo Solution (capitalEsourcing e-

tendering system); Framework-I was 
joint responsibility of the Executive 
Directors for Adult and Children’s 

Service departments (contact Stephen 
Murphy for shared Adults social care, 

Cathy Diver for Children's shared 
service), and the Library System by the 

Director of Library Service (possible 
contact Anne Cooper).  It is noted that 

none of the Corporate Procurement 
team appear to have been involved 

with the audit so may not be aware of 
these actions.   

 
Given the changes outlined above (ie.  
H&F are now sovereign), it is proposed 

that H&F ICT be responsible for 
contacting the cloud service providers 
for applications within scope of ICT (as 
defined in the inventory referred to in 
recommendation above) to request 
they provide regular reporting on 

P
age 134



Ref 
Audit 
year 

Department Audit Name Assurance Recommendation 
Priority 
(1/2/3) 

Agreed 
Target Date 

Sponsor  

(Name) 

Sponsor 

(Title) 
Status 

performance and security incidents as 
noted in the recommendation.  This 
work will be completed by 30th April 

2017.    

8 2015/16 Corporate 
Services 

High Level Review 
of New Systems 
and Processes 

Limited The process for requesting, 
approving changes to suppler details 

should be formalised and built into 
the workflow on ABW. 

2 30/04/2016 Jeremy 
Beresford 

Intelligent Client 
Team Manager 

February 17 update – a form is being 
tested which will achieve the objective 

of moving the requesting and 
approving of supplier changes into 

workflow.  The testing has not so far 
been successful and further work is 

required to make the form fit for 
purpose.  The target date for 

completing this action is 30th April 
2017, although there is a risk that this 

may not be achieved. 

9 2015/16 Corporate 
Services 

High Level Review 
of New Systems 
and Processes 

Limited A detailed plan should be developed 
showing which amendment tables 

should be activated for the purposes 
of logging amendments to the 

database records in the Agresso 
Business World system. 

A full list of amendment tables to be 
considered including details of which 

fields the tables relate to, what 
information would be retained by 

each, and retention periods should be 
created as part of this process. 

As part of the implementation process 
system testing and capacity testing 
should be undertaken to ensure the 

amendment tables are working 
correctly and data is being captured. 

1 31/05/2016 Jeremy 
Beresford 

Intelligent Client 
Team Manager 

February 17 update – The 
implementation of update 4.7 was 

successfully achieved between 
Christmas and the New Year as was 

the implementation of a SQL server to 
replace the previous virtual server at 

the end of January.  This last has 
produced a significant improvement in 

system speed and reliability. The 
review of amendment logging has 

been completed and recommendations 
made.  Implementation is now 
contingent on achieving stable, 
starters, leavers and changes 

processes.  The recommendations 
made include switching some 

amendment logging off, however, to 
ensure that we continue to achieve the 

right balance between control and 
system speed and responsiveness. We 

are planning for implementation 
following the completion by all three 

councils of their year ends. 

 

P
age 135



 

  1 

Tri Borough / Bi Borough / [BOROUGH 

NAME] 

 

Draft/Final Internal Audit Report 

 

[TITLE] 
[MONTH] [YEAR] 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 

Fulham 

 

Final Internal Audit Report 

 

Mitie Contract Quality Assurance  

 
March 2017 

Page 136

Agenda Item 11



 

  2 

Contents 
  
1 Introduction 3 

2 Executive Summary 4 

3 Summary of Findings 5 

4 Acknowledgements 9 

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan 10 

Appendix 2: Definition of Assurance Opinions and Recommendation Priorities 22 

Appendix 3: Audit Scope and Limitations 23 

Appendix 4: Timetable and Distribution List 26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 137



 

 

  3 

1 Introduction 
 
As part of the internal audit plan for 2016/17, agreed by the Audit Pensions and Standards 
Committee, we have undertaken an internal audit of the quality assurance arrangements over 
the Mitie contract in the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham. 
 
A 10 year repairs and maintenance contract with Mitie Property Services UK (Mitie) came into 
effect on 1 November 2013.  This has consolidated eight previous contracts into a single 
borough wide contract and was projected to save the Council approximately £2 million per year 
when compared to the previous arrangements on a like for like basis. Mitie’s remit covers 
Council tenanted properties, Communal areas, Council owned Temporary Accommodation, 
(limited to hostels only) and Sheltered Accommodation. 
 
The contract with Mitie also incorporates provision for the following checks on the Council’s 
housing stock that was covered within the scope of this audit: 

• Annual Gas Safety Checks; 
• Electrical Installation Condition Reports (EICRs) every five years and on every void 

property; 
• Asbestos management within all void properties as part of the void process; and 
• PAT testing on hostels and sheltered housing. 

 
A Planned Preventative Maintenance Contract (PPM) is also in place and was originally signed 
as a 3 year contract, which started in or around November 2012. However, in 2015 it was 
extended for a further year. The PPM contract was intended to “pick up” the outstanding Decent 
Homes works. 

 

  

Page 138



 

 

  4 

2 Executive Summary  
 

2.1 Assurance Opinion 

 

 Nil Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

Audit Opinion  
 

  

 
2.2 Recommendations Summary  

 
The following table highlights the number and categories of recommendations made. The 
Action Plan at Appendix 1 details the specific recommendations made, as well as the agreed 
management actions to implement them. 

 

Area of Scope Adequacy Effectiveness Recommendations Raised 

High Medium Low 

Policies and Procedures   0 0 1 

Quality Assurance 
Framework 

  
0 2 0 

Responsive Repairs   0 2 1 

Major Works   0 1 0 

Voids (including asbestos 
works) 

  
0 0 0 

Completion of Safety Checks   0 2 0 

Total 0 7 2 

 

Please refer to the Appendix 2 for a definition of the audit opinions and recommendation 
priorities. 

 

  

L 

Page 139



 

 

  5 

3 Summary of Findings 
 

In Internal Audit’s opinion, Limited Assurance can be given to Members, the Chief 
Executive and other officers, meaning that weaknesses and omissions in the system of 
controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, and the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk. 

The assurance opinion provided is based on sample testing across the entire contract period 
to date. It should be noted that a number of improvements have been made to the quality 
assurance framework since October 2016 and these have been reflected in our summary of 
findings below. We have been unable to fully test the effectiveness of the new or 
strengthened controls as they are not yet fully embedded. As a result we have also not been 
able to assess whether the quality of work has improved as a result of these measures being 
implemented. 

 
The key findings and an assessment of controls are summarised below: 

 

Design of and compliance with controls to address the key risks identified  

 The Council has policies and procedures in place to enable staff to manage quality 
assurance measures over Mitie’s work. 

 Policies and procedures are not all available to staff on the intranet. Those with the right 
permissions can access them on the shared drive. Documents can be provided on 
request by senior management, and are intended to be uploaded to a shared site in the 
near future.  Housing Property services are currently reviewing these policies and 
procedures, with compliance policies taking priority.  We are advised these will be made 
available to staff on the Council intranet as they become live. 

 The contract between Mitie and the Council contains specifications detailing the 
Council’s quality expectations and authority in conducting quality reviews of Mitie’s work. 

 There is a quality assurance framework in place to provide ongoing evaluation of Mitie’s 
performance. This includes a number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and 
Management Performance Indicators. Of these, four KPIs are chiefly concerned with 
quality of work. 

o KPI 1 concerns compliance with Domestic Gas tests. From reports April-
December 2016, the target of 100% of properties being inspected on time had 
been reported as met. The KPI 1 target level has always been monitored with 
100% compliancy expected. 

o KPI 2 concerns Customer Satisfaction. This KPI is currently suspended until an 
alternative to the previous customer satisfaction monitoring using Kwest 
independent telephone surveys is agreed. In its place, the “Rant & Rave” 
customer feedback is being recorded to indicate customer sentiment and the use 
of this system is still under consideration going forward 

o KPI 3 concerns Quality Control over completed work. This is currently being 
reported, but the method of measurement has not been agreed by both the 
Council and Mitie, with Mitie citing concerns that the Council’s entitlement to 
choose the sample inspected could lead to unrepresentative results. Since 
October 2016, the results of gas post-inspections have also been included in KPI 
3, which has seen results fall from the 85-95% range to a 70-80% range. 

o KPI 5 concerns the percentage of repairs that are completed “Right First Time”. 
This is targeted at 90% and has been met for the 18 months from April 2015-
December 2016. 

Page 140



 

 

  6 

 All KPI targets (with the exception of KPI 1, where 100% compliance is expected) would 
normally be incentivised, however incentivisation has been suspended for 2016/17 as 
agreed by both the council and Mitie to allow a review of the KPI’s to be carried out. 

 KPIs are reported to a number of monitoring meetings attended by both the Council and 
Mitie. These include: the Strategic Core Group, Repairs Core Group, and Continuous 
Improvement Group. The Continuous Improvement Group first met in November 2016. 

 Responsive Repairs carried out by Mitie are subject to sample post-inspections by the 
Council’s surveyors to verify that work has been carried out to an acceptable standard. 
Information logged from these post-inspections was not always clear, with numerous 
records providing no supporting comments regarding the nature of failed checks. 
Supporting information such as inspectors’ names, property addresses, or completion 
dates were not always present.  This has been addressed following the introduction of 
tablets to complete inspection reports, as mandatory fields and automatically populated 
data help to ensure complete details. 

 Where responsive repairs are found to be of insufficient quality through post-inspection, 
the inspectors instruct Mitie to raise a new job and return to remedy any problems. It was 
not always clear where remedial actions had been raised, nor whether Mitie had returned 
to complete them. From January 2017, a tracker has logged work arising from recalls 
(raised by either tenants or post-inspectors) and these are to be subject to 100% re-
inspection. 

 Jobs are tracked once open on the system to the point of completion or cancellation. 
There were a significant number of longstanding jobs on the system which did not 
appear to have been investigated in detail and resolved prior to this audit. Upon a first 
request, there were 1018 open jobs recorded between January and December 2016, of 
which 2 were Emergency Priority and 66 Urgent. Subsequent review by Mitie reduced 
this number to 362, of which none were Emergency Priority and 10 were Urgent. It 
should be noted that reports of all works in progress that are more than 100 days 
overdue are generated, which can subsequently be investigated at an individual job 
level. Average job completion times are also recorded monthly. Between April 2016 and 
January 2017 all average completion times were within the priority timescales.      

 The Council’s major works projects are monitored for quality through on-site meetings 
with Mitie, and the direct involvement of the Clerks of Works. Following previous audit 
work, there has been improvement in the major works documentation process, with 
ongoing development regarding the maintenance of a detailed audit trail. Major works 
projects from September 2016 onwards record quality observations in greater detail to 
the limited information retained previously, however there remain inconsistencies 
between projects. The major works team have now developed a Project Management 
manual which will help ensure consistency on all projects when followed 

 The Council monitors repairs to voids through regular meetings and a program of post-
inspections. Due to the high base cost of all voids, 100% are inspected by the Council. 
The results of these inspections were previously managed as with responsive repairs, 
with brief detail of quality concerns logged and Mitie notified of relevant additions. A 
“Void Property Joint Post Inspection Check List” has been introduced in 2017 to provide 
more detailed coverage of key items including: Asbestos checks, Gas, Electricity, 
Plumbing, Security, and Cleanliness. There is a section included to log outstanding work 
and planned means of resolution. This is then to be signed by representatives of the 
Council and Mitie once complete. 

 Gas safety checks and work completed on gas appliances are subject to a 10% sample 
post-inspection by the Council’s inspectors who complete a Service/Maintenance 
checklist on-site, raising new orders where remedial work is required. 

 Throughout the testing period, inspectors’ findings were not always presented in a 
complete and clear manner with some fields being left blank instead of  being marked as 

Page 141



 

 

  7 

“Yes”, “No” or “N/A” and some fields seemingly marked as “No” when they should have 
been marked as not applicable. From mid-2016, the Council’s inspectors have also been 
logging their findings using tablets, and information regarding quality is captured in 
greater detail. 

 From the sample of 53 post-inspections examined, based on the information recorded: 

o 50 had been reported as having one or more failures. 

o 9 of these were reported as being unsafe. 

o 15 (not including the nine above) were reported as not installed in line with 
manufacturers’ instructions. 

 From October 2016, any works failing this post-inspection are recorded and subjected 
100% re-inspection following Mitie’s work to correct any issues identified following the 
first inspection. At the time of audit, these works were being logged for subsequent 
action and re-inspection, but had yet to be visited by the Council’s gas inspectors. 

 A regime of third-party gas quality checks are carried out by Phoenix Compliancy 
Management (PCM) in addition to the Council’s post-inspections, which also highlight 
quality issues. 

 Gas safe certificate expiration deadlines are tracked and are considered an important 
part of the KPI framework. Examination at the time of audit confirmed that there were no 
addresses overdue for inspection. 

 Following November 2016, electrical work and five yearly Electrical Installation Condition 
Reports undertaken by Mitie have been subject to post-inspection. Previously, there was 
quality checking no systematic quality review. Electrical certificates are reviewed through 
a combination of desktop analysis, and physical on-site inspection. 

 Mitie have developed a tracker which allows the Council clearer monitoring of electrical 
certificate expiration. 

 A sample of Electrical test records were tested following the introduction of random 
sample quality testing in November 2016. 

 From the Domestic EICRs tested: 

o All seven had been found at least in part unsatisfactory by the Council's 
inspectors. 

o Recurring faults identified by the Council include: failure to clarify supply and 
earthing arrangements, supply protective devices, and wiring details. 

 From the Communal EICRs: 

o A number of comments have been made to be reported to Mitie. Most of these 
refer to items that need clarifying rather than necessarily acting upon; most 
commonly: earthing arrangements, supply characteristics, and wiring type and 
method. 

o Three of the ten identified minor items that required resolution. 

 From November 2016, provision has been made for a third party quality review of 
electrical works. PCM published a report on this in December 2016, making a number of 
recommendations for both the Council and Mitie. 

 PAT tests are not inspected by the Council owing to the perceived low risk of them being 
carried out incorrectly. Inspection results are reviewed by the Council’s officers. PAT 
expiry/renewal dates are not held by Operational & Engineering, but are monitored by 
the Council’s scheme managers and Mitie. 

 Post-inspections are carried out by the Council to sample check the quality of work 
conducted by Mitie. The results of these are discussed with Mitie, as confirmed through 
review of meeting minutes, but results are not always subject to formal, quantified trend 
analysis for management review. 

Page 142



 

 

  8 

  

Page 143



 

 

  9 

4 Acknowledgements 
 

We would like to thank the following members of staff for their time and assistance during the 
audit: 
 

 Head of Operations 

 Health & Safety Manager  

 Principal Manager for Planned & Capital Works 

 Principal Manager for Operational and Engineering 

 Principal Manager for Business Intelligence 

 Senior Operations Surveyor 

 Performance Officer 

 Quality assurance Officer 

 Quality assurance Officer 

 

Page 144



 

 

  10 

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan 

 
1. Policies and Procedures – Distribution of Guidance Documents 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low Policies are not all available on the 
intranet or TriBnet. Policies are filed on a 
shared drive, but are not made widely 
available as many are under review, and 
awaiting upload to shared sites. It is 
noted that a similar recommendation was 
made in the 2015/16 Mitie Health and 
Safety Checks Internal Audit report. 

Policies were provided upon request 
during the course of the audit. 

Where policies are not available in a well-
known and accessible location, there is a 
risk that staff will not be confident of 
having sourced the latest version, or will 
not be able to source a policy document 
quickly where required. This may lead to 
staff not operating in line with 
management requirements. 

Policies should be uploaded to TriBnet 
when possible, and in the meantime 
should be listed on the Housing and 
Regeneration or Health & Safety sections 
of the LBHF intranet to ensure staff have 
reliable interim access. 

Management Response 

A housing Electrical Safety policy has been developed and is available on the intranet.   The remaining Housing Property services policies and 
procedures are currently under review, with compliance policies taking priority.  All new policies and associated processes will be available on 
the council’s intranet. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Business Intelligence October 2017 

  

P
age 145



 

 

  11 

2. Quality Assurance Framework – Suspended KPIs 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium There are a number of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) used to monitor the 
quality of work completed by Mitie. 
Incentivisation has been suspended for 
2016/17. 

KPI 2 (Customer Satisfaction) was 
originally based on telephone surveys. 
These have now been stopped, and the 
Rant & Rave customer insight values are 
being used to indicate customer 
sentiment. Future measures of customer 
satisfaction are being explored to 
redefine the KPI. 

KPI 3 (Quality Control) has been 
recorded, as of the December 2016 
Monthly Report, as “suspended due to 
the difficulty in resourcing 10% sample 
and should not be published as it is not a 
sufficiently representative sample”.   
Quality post-inspections continue to take 
place, and a KPI score generated and 
reviewed; however, the reports describe 
footnote KPI 3 as “suspended”.   

Where KPIs use replacement data or 
definitions do not satisfy both parties, 
there is a risk that failure to achieve KPI 
targets will not be taken as seriously by 
the contractor, disputed, and therefore 
not subsequently corrected. 

The Council should continue to explore 
viable options for KPI 2, secure Mitie’s 
agreement to KPI 3’s sampling method, 
and continue to monitor these areas of 
Mitie's performance. Where performance 
does not meet expected levels, remedial 
action should be taken. 

Management Response 

KPIs are under review as part of the Mitie contract review and a suite of new and updated KPIs for the contract are being jointly developed with 
Mitie and will be in use for the 17/18 financial year.  Current KPIs are still in use and are monitored except for KPI2 as it is replaced currently by 
Rant and Rave. KPI3 continues to be used and has driven improvements in voids quality and has been a driver for the improvement process on 
gas servicing. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Business Intelligence June 2017 

P
age 146



 

 

  12 

3. Quality Assurance Framework – Review of Post-Inspection Trends 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Post-inspections are carried out by the 
Council on a sample of Mitie’s work for 
the purpose of quality review. This 
includes: Responsive Repairs, Gas and 
Electric checks and work, and Voids and 
Major Works prior to handover. 

While common issues arising from these 
inspections have been identified and 
referenced in monitoring meetings with 
Mitie, this appeared to be based on 
general observations rather than any 
structured, quantified trend analysis. 

The Continuous Improvement Group was 
set up in November 2016 to provide more 
structured discussion of quality concerns 
based on prominent trends. This group 
was initially proposed to meet on a 
temporary basis. 

Where the results of post-inspections are 
collated in a general or anecdotal 
manner, there is a risk that common or 
significant issues and their root cause 
may not be fully appreciated, and 
therefore resolved. It may also be more 
difficult to monitor and demonstrate 
improvement or deterioration in 
performance. 

The results of post-inspections should be 
periodically reviewed to identify common 
trends. Where common themes are 
identified, the root cause should be 
identified and an action plan agreed with 
Mitie to help prevent reoccurrence. 

Where this data can be gathered in a 
quantitative manner rather than general 
observations from reports, this will 
provide a reliable evidence base for 
subsequent actions, and a means of 
assessing positive or negative trends in 
performance. 

This analysis should be periodically 
reported to senior management. 

Management Response 

Process is to be developed with the business intelligence team and the post inspection teams to enable robust trend analysis to be carried out 
on Post inspections. Post inspections data sheets are to be re-defined where required to ensure that analysis and trends can be identified. The 
continuous improvement group will continue to monitor those trends. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Business Intelligence June 2017 

  

P
age 147



 

 

  13 

4. Responsive Repairs – Remedial Works Inspections 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low Of the 126 post-inspections tested, 
comparison to the Mitie system through 
the CRM interface found that seven had 
not yet been attended by Mitie by the 
time that post-inspection took place. This 
was due to works being logged as 
“Complete” when in fact there had been 
no access, and visits had been raised for 
a later date. 

These cases had also been recorded as 
failing the post-inspection. 

Upon Internal Audit raising this issue, the 
Council’s Performance Officer has started 
to filter the pick list to exclude works 
listed as “Complete – No Access”. 

Where works are recorded as complete 
rather than “no access” and these jobs 
are marked as inspection failures, post 
inspectors time will not be effectively 
utilised, and the inspection results 
distorted. 

The Council should continue to ensure 
that, prior to selecting responsive repairs 
for post-inspection, the sample population 
reflects only those jobs where work has 
been confirmed to have been carried out. 

Management Response 

This is implemented and will be monitored. 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

N/A Implemented 

  

P
age 148



 

 

  14 

5. Responsive Repairs – Remedial Works 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Where post-inspections identify quality 
issues, remedial works are referred to 
Mitie. Of 27 failed inspections for our 
sample of responsive repairs, only 17 
could be verified through the CRM 
interface to have clearly related jobs 
raised and completed at the same 
properties as a result of post-inspection 
assessments. 

It should be noted that these figures do 
not include inspections failed due to Mitie 
having not yet gained access. 

From January 2017, a “Recalls Post-
Inspections” tracker has been updated to 
monitor remedial works. This is updated 
by Mitie in response to recalls generated 
from tenants or post-inspections and is 
intended to be subject to 100% re-
inspection to ensure second-time 
completion to required quality. At present, 
the Council’s records of post inspection 
results are not compared to recalls 
logged by Mitie to gain assurance they 
are being recorded correctly. 

Where Mitie is responsible for 
maintaining the recalls list, there is a risk 
that remedial works will not be recorded 
as recalls, and therefore not monitored 
for completion and quality by the Council. 

The Council should periodically compare 
jobs which have failed post-inspections to 
the Recalls Post-Inspections tracker to 
ensure that all failed inspections are 
being logged appropriately by Mitie. 

Management Response 

The post inspection process is being reviewed as part of the repairs flow process within the Mitie contract review and will ensure all failed jobs 
will be monitored.  The process for monitoring the post inspection tracker will be reviewed to ensure the council regularly monitor progress.     

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Operational and Engineering April 2017 

  

P
age 149



 

 

  15 

6. Responsive Repairs – Tracking Open Jobs 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium A copy of the Outstanding Works (Jan.-December 2016) 
report listed 362 open orders (Jan.-December 2016) of 
which:  

 14 were raised between January and June 2016;  

 3 works were prioritised as "Urgent - 3 Day" 
(opened between October and December 2016); 
and  

 7 works were prioritised as "Urgent - 5 Day" 
(opened between August and December 2016).  

The Council produces a list of all works in progress 
exceeding their planned completion date by 100 days. 
Data is also collected and monitored showing the monthly 
average completion times for each priority rating. 
Between April 2016 and January 2017 these were all 
within the accepted parameters. 

It should be noted that in many cases (for example, leaks) 
a job may be marked as urgent in regards to the initial 
problem, but subsequent lower priority work such as 
redecoration will be carried out under the original order 
before it is marked as complete. 

Where information gathered regarding 
outstanding work is based on 
averaged results or a threshold of 100 
days, there is a risk that if Emergency 
or Urgent priority work is not carried 
out, this is not identified and resolved 
promptly. 

A report of open Emergency and 
Urgent priority jobs should be 
generated and reviewed on a regular 
basis to identify any jobs overrunning 
their estimated completion timescale. 
Assurance should be gained that all 
necessary emergency or urgent works 
have been completed on these open 
jobs. 

Management Response 

Council officers will put in process to ensure that emergency orders are monitored on a daily basis.  Officers to develop a process to have a weekly list of 
all open orders which can be monitored.   It has been agreed that Mitie will, as part of their monthly performance report, produce a list of the top 20 
oldest remaining open orders, which can be monitored by Management.  These will be broken down by category IE emergency/20-day priority 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Operational and Engineering / Principal Manager for Business Intelligence April 2017 

  

P
age 150



 

 

  16 

7. Major Works – Records of Quality Checks 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Following previous reports on the management 
of major works projects, efforts have been made 
to improve the audit trail with regards to quality 
management. 

Our testing identified improvement in the range 
of documentation retained. However, there are 
areas of further improvement available as copies 
of Health and Safety checks or certification, 
photo evidence of problems, and action logs 
were being filed inconsistently. 

Our testing highlighted a focus on issues of cost 
and delay, with numerous quality or “snagging” 
items monitored informally. During the course of 
the audit, new inspection records were drafted to 
better document quality concerns noted by the 
Clerks of Works. 

It is noted that a Term Partnering Contract 
Project Flow document was produced on 5th 
February 2017, and includes a number of 
processes and monitoring templates to be 
included in the management of major works. 

Where the results of quality checks 
are not formally logged and reviewed, 
there is a risk that remedial actions 
will not be undertaken, or that 
commonly occurring issues will not be 
highlighted as a wider concern. 

In addition to the site monitoring, 
partnership meetings, and handover 
documents currently being filed, the 
Council should make efforts to record: 
meeting attendance, photos of issues, 
contractors’ Health & Safety 
documentation/certification, all signed 
handover certificates, and 
correspondence with Mitie relating to 
follow-up action. This could be 
facilitated by adopting a standardised 
folder structure for all projects.  

Management Response 

A Project Management manual has been developed to provide a standardised approach to the management of all projects and training 
sessions have been held with Project Managers and Clerk of Works in February 2017 to ensure that all staff are aware of the standards 
expected of them.  Internal audits will be set up to monitor staff against the set standards.  A project Management module is being developed 
on the Techforge system and this will assist in providing consistency in delivering of projects 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Principal Manager for Planned & Capital Works Implemented 

  

P
age 151



 

 

  17 

8. Completion of Safety Checks – Gas Post-Inspection Records 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Post inspections are undertaken on gas safety checks 
and works on gas appliances and a service/maintenance 
checklist is completed. A sample of 64 post-inspection 
records were selected for testing. Of these: 

 23 service/maintenance checklists could not be 
located. Of these, 11 were found off-site and 
supplied later. 12 were not located and those that 
were found were not filed in a clear, organised 
manner. 

 33 of 53 available records did not have all fields 
complete. Many only included comments, or only 
filled out the “No” fields, with “Yes” or “N/A” items left 
incomplete. 

 12 records did not explicitly state whether an 
installation or appliance was safe for use. 

 Multiple records lacked date, signature, and boiler 
details. 

 Numerous records gave “No” results for fields that, 
upon discussion with the inspector, transpired 
should have been completed as “N/A”, most 
commonly with “Failed” Flue Flow and Spillage 
checks when the property had no fireplace. 

From mid-2016, the Council’s gas post-inspectors have 
been logging their findings using tablets, with the paper 
records increasingly intended to serve as a backup 
method of recording. The data captured includes details 
of: the property, the responsible inspector, appliance 
details, a quality pass/fail assessment with supporting 
comments, whether the appliance is safe for use, if a 
warning label has been raised, and any further work 
required. These were reviewed and all key fields were 
found to have been completed, with further detail 
provided where appropriate. 

Where post-inspection records 
are not completed clearly or 
retained, there is a risk that 
quality issues are not adequately 
followed up or monitored. This 
could prevent common themes 
from being identified, or prevent 
remedial work being followed up 
effectively. 

The Council’s gas post-inspectors 
should be reminded to complete 
all sections of the Service 
Checklists, making use of the 
“Yes”, “No” or “N/A” fields as 
appropriate, and providing 
pertinent detail regarding “No” and  
“N/A” assessments. Checklists 
should then be reviewed and filed 
in a consistent manner for future 
reference in quality monitoring. 

P
age 152



 

 

  18 

  

P
age 153



 

 

  19 

Management Response 

As above, the gas inspectors now record their findings on a tablet and the findings are downloaded onto the Mi-Housing system.   Training for 
gas inspectors is to be carried out in March to ensure they are clear of expectations.  The Gas manager will monitor the completed post 
inspections to ensure they are being completed to the required standards.     

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Gas Compliance and Repairs Manager April 2017 

 

  

P
age 154



 

 

  20 

9. Completion of Safety Checks – Gas Post-Inspection Failures and Remedial Works 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Although KPI 1 (Gas Certificate Compliancy) 
remains at the target level of 100%, the underlying 
reliability of certificates produced is not confirmed 
by the results of post-inspections. 

Both the Council’s inspectors and those of Phoenix 
Compliancy Management have raised a number of 
issues. Of 53 Council post-inspection checklists 
reviewed, 46 indicated issues with Mitie’s 
completion of checks or the underlying installation’s 
condition. PCM have identified a number of 
concerns, and the minutes of the Gas review 
meetings indicate that many faults noted as minor 
by PCM could in fact have been classified as check 
failures. 

It is noted that from October 2016, gas post-
inspection results have been included in the KPI 3 
(Quality) results and quality issues have been the 
subject of regular discussion at gas review 
meetings. 

Previously, there was no systematic check on 
remedial work as a result of quality checks, and of 
46 sampled checks indicating faults, only 26 could 
be verified to have resulted in remedial action. 

To resolve this, from October 2016, a tracker was 
created of all sites that failed post-inspection, to be 
re-inspected following remedial work. At the time of 
audit, this tracker had been populated with a 
number of jobs, which had yet to be re-inspected. 

Where recurring quality issues are 
found during post-inspection and not 
adequately resolved, there is a risk 
that they are perpetuated across all 
work, and remain uncorrected in 
properties not selected for post-
inspection. 

Where high volumes of quality 
issues require the repeat post-
inspections, there is a risk that fewer 
new works will be able to be 
checked for quality issues. This 
could result in emerging problems 
not being spotted owing to a focus 
on previous work. 

The Council should make a 
concerted effort to discuss and 
improve the performance of Mitie’s 
gas engineers, including identifying 
the root cause of the issues, and 
monitor post-inspection results for 
improvement, and to prevent the 
volume of re-inspections from 
becoming unmanageable or 
manageable only at the expense of 
standard post-inspections. 

An action plan should be agreed 
with MITIE and monitored against. 

Management Response 

A service improvement plan has been developed and is now being implemented.  

Responsible Officer Deadline 

P
age 155



 

 

  21 

N/A Implemented 

P
age 156



 

 

  22 

Appendix 2: Definition of Assurance Opinions and Recommendation 
Priorities 
In order to help put the audit opinion and recommendation priority ratings in context the following 
tables detail the current ratings used by Internal Audit. 

 

Rating Description 

 There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the objectives. Compliance 
with the control process is considered to be substantial and no material errors or 
weaknesses were found. 

 While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses and/or omissions 
which put some of the system objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the 
level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 

 Weaknesses and / or omissions in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance puts the system 
objectives at risk. 

 Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, 
and/or significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the system open to error 
or abuse. 

 

 Priority Description 

High Recommendation addresses fundamental weaknesses, which seriously compromise 
the effective accomplishment of the system’s objectives.   Risks presented by the 
control weaknesses could be damaging in the short term. The management action 
required should be implemented as soon as possible, certainly within 0-3 months. 

Medium Recommendation addresses serious weakness, which affect the reliance to be 
placed on the system.  Risks presented by control weaknesses could be damaging in 
the medium term. Management action is required within 0-6 months.  

Low Recommendation addresses minor weaknesses, or suggests a desirable 
improvement. Risks presented by control weaknesses are unlikely and 
inconsequential. Management action is recommended to address concerns within 0-
9 months. 

   

Su 

N 

L 

Sa 

Page 157



 

 

  23 

Appendix 3: Audit Scope, Limitations and Inherent Risks 
 
This audit was a full risk based review of the arrangements for Mitie Contract Quality Assurance and 
included the following areas: 
 

Ref 
Audit Area - 
Description 

Comments on Coverage / Area Objectives 

01 Policies and Procedures Requirements with regards to quality assurance are defined and known 
to staff (including Mitie staff).  

All staff act within current legislative and management requirements 
and that processes can be conducted efficiently during periods of staff 
absence. 

02 Quality Assurance 
Framework 

Sufficient assurance is gained that all types of works and safety checks 
are being completed to a satisfactory quality standard and that the 
contractor is acting in compliance with management and legislative 
requirements. 

The results of quality assurance work are reliable and appropriate 
conclusions are drawn on the cause of any failings. Action is then 
taken to address these issues. 

The results of quality assurance work are reviewed on a regular basis 
at an appropriate level of management to allow effective oversight and 
decision making. 

Any common issues arising from quality assurance work continue to be 
monitored to gain assurance they have been addressed. 

Alternative sources of assurance, such as resident feedback and 
intendent inspections or accreditations, are considered when assessing 
quality. 

03 Responsive Repairs All responsive repairs and callouts undertaken by Mitie are completed 
to the required quality standard. 

Prompt and effective remedial action is taken where any repairs are not 
to the required standard. 

04 Major Works All major works undertaken by Mitie are completed to the required 
quality standard and agreed specification. 

Remedial action is taken where any work is not to the required 
standard or specification. 

05 Voids (including asbestos 
works) 

All void works undertaken by Mitie are completed to the required 
quality standard and agreed specification. 

Remedial action is taken where any work is not to the required 
standard or specification. 

06 Completion of Safety 
Checks 

Safety checks required under Mitie’s contract are undertaken to a 
satisfactory standard. 

Any safety checks that are not to the required standard are identified 
and re-performed. 

Any remedial works required as a result of safety checks are 
undertaken within the required timescales and to the required quality 
standard. 

 

  

Page 158



 

 

  24 

Limitations to the Scope of the Audit 

The following limitations to the scope of the audit were agreed when planning the audit: 

 The work will be undertaken using a risk based approach and testing will be on a sample 
basis to verify compliance; 

 The records maintained by third parties to the Council will not be reviewed and are outside 
of the scope of this audit; and 

 The audit review does not provide absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does 
not exist. 

 This work will not cover properties outside of the remit of Mitie including: 

o Private Sector Leasing 

o Leasehold properties 

o Commercial Properties 

 This work will not cover safety inspections outside of the remit of Mitie including but not 
limited to: 

o Lift safety testing 

o Legionella testing 

o Fire risk assessments 

o Emergency Lighting 

 

Management should be aware that our internal audit work was performed in accordance with the 

Public Sector Internal; Audit Standards which are different from audits performed in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.   

Similarly, the assurance gradings provided in our internal audit report are not comparable with the 

International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the International Audit 

and Assurance Standards Board. 

Our internal audit testing was performed on a judgemental sample basis and focussed on the key 

controls mitigating risks.  Internal audit testing is designed to assess the adequacy and 

effectiveness of key controls in operation at the time of the audit.   

Please note that, in relation to the agreed scope, whilst our internal audit will assess the efficiency 

and effectiveness of key controls from an operational perspective, it is not within our remit as 

internal auditors to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of policy decisions. 

  

Page 159



 

 

  25 

Inherent Risks 

The risks listed below are potential inherent risks which are common for any system/organisation of 

this type: 

Key generic risk factors that affect this service are: 

 Repairs and Major works are not undertaken to a satisfactory safety or quality standard 

endangering residents or causing dissatisfaction in the service provided. 

 Individual quality issues are identified but are not addressed. 

 Common themes with respect to quality are not identified and addressed at their root cause 

 Safety inspections may not be arranged or access cannot be obtained leading to checks not 

being undertaken within the required timeframes. 

 Poor quality inspections may be undertaken leading to unsafe appliances and installations 

being certified as safe. 

 Remedial works may be identified as a result of safety checks but not undertaken. 

Page 160



 

 

  26 

Appendix 4: Timetable and Distribution List 
 

Stage Date 

Exit Meeting 02/03/2017 

Draft Report Issued 27/02/2017 

Responses 
Received 

07/03/2017 

Final Report Issued 09/03/2017 

 

Audit Team 

Client Engagement Manager:  

Auditors:  

Auditee 

Head of Operations 

Client Sponsor 

Nilavra Mukerji - Director of Property Services 

 

Report Distribution List  

Head of Operations 

Copy Recipients of Report 

Nilavra Mukerji - Director of Property Services 

 
 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  Recommendations for 
improvements should be assessed by management for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of internal audit 
work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management practices.  
We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Auditors, in conducting their work, 
are required to have regards to the possibility of fraud or irregularities.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on 
areas as identified by management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full 
access to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our audit work and to ensure the authenticity of these documents.  
Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal 
control system. 

 

This report is prepared solely for the use of Audit Committee and senior management of the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham.  Details may be made available to specified external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be 
quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been 
prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

Page 161



 

  1 

 

Tri Borough / Bi Borough / [BOROUGH 

NAME] 

 

Draft/Final Internal Audit Report 

 

[TITLE] 
[MONTH] [YEAR] 

London Borough of Hammersmith and 

Fulham 

 

Final Internal Audit Report 

 

Trading Accounts 

 
October 2016 

Page 162

Agenda Item 12



 

  2 

Contents 
  
1 Introduction 3 

2 Executive Summary 4 

3 Summary of Findings 5 

4 Acknowledgements 7 

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan 8 

Appendix 2: Definition of Assurance Opinions and Recommendation Priorities 13 

Appendix 3: Audit Scope and Limitations 14 

Appendix 4: Timetable and Distribution List 16 

 

 

Page 163



 

 

  3 

1 Introduction 
 
As part of the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan, we have undertaken internal audit work on Trading 
Accounts in the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham. 

 

Trading accounts are maintained where services are provided on a basis other than a 
straightforward recharge of costs or on a cash limited vote basis, such as a quoted price or 
schedule of rates. Trading accounts have taken on more importance as local authorities have 
developed a more commercial culture and seek to increase revenue. 

 

Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) Section 2, 2.33 defines the two main types of 
external trading accounts that may be run by authorities as: 

a) Trading services or undertakings with the public or with other third parties. These include, 
inter alia, catering undertakings, markets, trade refuse collection and industrial units. 

b) External trading organisations which have won contracts from other public bodies, for 
example under the Local Authorities (Goods & Services) Act 1970. 

The Council’s 2014/15 Statement of Accounts showed the following for traded services: 

 

 Turnover Expenditure 
(Surplus)/ 

Deficit 

Highways Division (811) 790 (21) 

Industrial Estates and Misc Properties (2,514) 107 (2,407) 

Other (316) 719 403 

Net surplus on trading operations (3,641) 1 ,616 (2,025) 

  

Page 164



 

 

  4 

 

2 Executive Summary  
 

2.1 Assurance Opinion 

 

 Nil Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

Audit Opinion  
 

  

 
2.2 Recommendations Summary  

 
The following table highlights the number and categories of recommendations made. The 
Action Plan at Appendix 1 details the specific recommendations made, as well as the agreed 
management actions to implement them. 

 

Area of Scope Adequacy Effectiveness Recommendations Raised 

High Medium Low 

Policies and Procedures   1 0 0 

Set up and Review of Trading 
Accounts 

  
0 1 0 

Service Provision   1 0 0 

Invoicing and Debt Recovery   0 1 0 

Financial and Performance 
Management 

  
*0 1 0 

Total 2 3 0 

*A recommendation related to this area has been raised under Service Provision 
 
Please refer to the Appendix 2 for a definition of the audit opinions and recommendation 
priorities. 
  

L 

Page 165



 

 

  5 

3 Summary of Findings 
 

In Internal Audit’s opinion, Limited Assurance can be given to Members, the Chief Executive and 
other officers that the controls relied upon at the time of the audit were suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective in their application. 

 

The key findings and an assessment of controls are summarised below. 

 

Design of and compliance with controls to address the key risks identified  

 

 LBHF Financial Regulations briefly outline the purpose of trading accounts. Traded services are 
classified into internal (between departments) and external (with parties outside the council). 
The Council’s Financial Regulations outline controls regarding internal recharges between 
departments and high level responsibilities in respect of external trading accounts. However, no 
detailed guidelines are in place regarding the end to end processes for setting up and operating 
trading accounts. 

 At present, Heads of Services are responsible for managing trading accounts and there is no 
officer within the Council coordinating or having oversight of trading accounts. 

 The following traded services were selected for testing: 

o Commercial Waste; 

o Pest Control; 

o Markets and Street Trading; 

o Cemeteries; 

o Sports Bookings; 

o Hiring of Council Buildings; 

o Building Control; and  

o Premises Licensing.  

 For the eight traded services tested, business plans were drafted providing both financial and 
non-financial targets for seven of the services, the exception being the Sports Booking service. 
It should be noted that the Sports Booking service is delivered by an external contractor and the 
contract stipulates that the contractor’s performance is to be measured against the standards 
and targets set out in the contract documents, the operational plan and any other local or 
national key performance indicators relevant to the services. 

 For the seven out of the eight traded services where a business plan was in place, these did not 
include profitability and growth targets. We were unable to confirm these targets were in place 
and monitored against. 

 We were able to confirm that fee increases were presented to the Cabinet Members for 
approval for our sample. However, documentation could not be provided to demonstrate how 
the costs of the service were calculated, how the initial fees were set, and detailed calculation 
supporting any changes in fees. The Council do not have guidelines on the fee setting 
processes for the different traded services. In the cases tested, any amendment to fees were 
generally a percentage increase across the fees charged for that service. 

  

Page 166



 

 

  6 

 The Council’s Financial Regulations stipulates that separate accounts should be maintained to 
record all income and relevant expenditure relating to the trading accounts. However, for the 
sample of eight traded services tested, separate accounts were not being maintained. For 
sports booking, a financial analysis showing profitability of the service is prepared by the 
contractor. For PEST control, a copy of annual report was provided and this included their 
performance compared against the previous year. However, the report did not cover the service 
profitability (taking account of all associated costs including corporate overheads), achievement 
against target outcome, and non-financial performance such as customer feedback on the 
quality of services. These were also not reported on for the remaining six services.  

 For the sample of services tested, we were able to confirm that a contract is used for six 
services setting out the terms and conditions of the services being provided. Cemeteries do not 
issue a contract but an invoice is issued to the customer confirming the fee charged and 
description of the service provided. This is considered to be reasonable given the nature of the 
service. For sports booking, day to day operation is managed by the contractor and we did not 
test whether the contractor issue any contract to its customers as their operation was beyond 
the scope of this work; however, we would not expect a contract for casual bookings.  

 The Council has in place a complaints policy which is available on the website to guide 
customers to raise a complaint when they are not satisfied with the service received from the 
Council. Each of the traded services in our sample had a page on the website which included 
contact numbers and emails to provide a platform for communication between the customers 
and the Council. 

 The Council has an income recovery team who follow up outstanding debts. Updates are 
provided to budget holders on progress made in debt recovery. A bad debts provision is in place 
to cover any unrecovered debt. The final aged debt position is reported at the end of the 
financial year and compared with the previous financial year. There was however no separate 
debtors report prepared and analysed specifically for trading accounts. 

 Guidance has been prepared setting out the types of services that should incur VAT and those 
that are exempt from VAT.  A review of VAT is to be undertaken this financial year and therefore 
no further testing has been undertaken in this area. 

 Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP) requires that where a trading account has 
sustained a deficit, disclosure must include the remedial actions and the results of any such 
actions. In the 2014/15 financial year, the Council had a deficit on trading accounts of £430,000. 
This deficit was reported in the financial statements but was not accompanied by the required 
disclosure indicated above. 

 

  

Page 167



 

 

  7 

4 Acknowledgements 
 

We would like to thank the following members of staff for their time and assistance during the 
audit: 

 ELRS Finance Manager 

 ELRS Finance Manager 

 ELRS Head of Service 

 Markets Manager 

 Bi-Borough Head of Environmental Health 

 Pest Control Manager 

 Business Support Officer 

 Bi Borough Parks Manager 

 Interim Sports and Physical Activity Manager 

 Bi-Borough Head of Environmental Health 

 Finance Manager 

 Finance Manager 

 Senior Accountant (Taxation) 

Page 168



 

 

  8 

Appendix 1: Management Action Plan 

 
1. Policies and Procedures – Traded Services Guidelines 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

High No detailed guidelines are in place 
regarding the end to end processes 
for the set up and operation of 
trading accounts. 

At present, the Heads of Services 
are responsible for managing 
trading accounts and there is no 
officer within the Council 
coordinating or having corporate 
oversight of the trading accounts in 
operation across the Council. 

All trading accounts tested were 
long standing so we were unable to 
review the initial business case and 
approval to set up the trading 
account. 

Where detailed guidelines are not 
in place and communicated to staff, 
there is a risk that staff may not be 
aware of their responsibilities and 
the traded accounts may not be 
managed adequately to fulfil their 
intended purpose. Without clear 
guidance and oversight ineffective 
or inconsistent working practices 
may develop and this may result in 
non-compliance with management 
and legislative requirements. 

The Council should consider assigning an officer the 
responsibility for central oversight of trading accounts 
across the Council, to put in place governance 
processes and monitor compliance with these.   

The Council should develop guidelines for the end to end 
process over the management of trading accounts. As 
minimum the guidelines should include the following: 

 Steps to be undertaken for the set-up of trading 
accounts including business case preparation, 
scrutiny and approval; 

 Consideration of the Council’s risk appetite in respect 
of providing traded services; 

 Agreeing objectives, profitability & growth targets for 
the service; 

 Recording income and expenditure associated with 
the service; 

 Billing and Debt Management including vetting of 
customers or measures to prevent default payments 
where possible; and 

 A performance management framework on financial 
(revenue and profitability) and non-financial (quality 
of service and customer feedback) performance.  

Management Response 

Agreed – proposals will be brought to SLT by the Commercial Director to action these recommendations  

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Commercial Director 1 April 2017 

2. Set Up and Review of Trading Accounts – Fee Setting 

P
age 169



 

 

  9 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Documentation could not be provided to 
demonstrate how the costs of the traded 
service were calculated, how the initial 
fees were set, and detailed calculations 
supporting the fee increases. 

The Council does not maintain guidelines 
for the fee setting processes for traded 
services. 

Where the fees and increases are not 
supported with a robust rationale, there is 
a risk that the service may be delivered at 
a loss or the fees may be set too high 
compared with the Council’s competitors. 
This may result in losses for the Council 
from reduced profitability, or loss of 
business from potential customers due to 
uncompetitive fees. 

A fee setting framework should be 
developed for all traded services. This 
should include the steps to be taken in 
determining the fees including any factors 
such as overheads, direct/indirect costs to 
consider. 

Assumptions used and calculations 
supporting the fee setting should be 
documented and retained. 

Management Response 

Agreed 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Commercial Director 1 April 2017 

  

P
age 170



 

 

  10 

3. Service Provision – Monitoring of Traded Services 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

High For the sample of eight traded services 
tested, separate accounts were not 
being maintained for seven of the 
services. Income and expenditure for 
traded services was included in the 
overall budget for that area. 

Traded services do not have 
documented profitability and growth 
targets set at the beginning of each 
year. 

For Pest Control, a copy of annual 
report was provided and this included 
their performance compared against the 
previous year. However, the report did 
not cover the service profitability (taking 
account of all associated costs including 
overheads), achievement against target 
outcome, and non-financial 
performance such as customer 
feedback on the quality of services. 
These factors were also not reported on 
for the remaining six services.  

Where separate accounts are not 
maintained to record income and 
expenditure relating to traded services, 
service is not meeting the requirement 
set out in the Council’s Financial 
Regulation and the true profitability of 
traded services cannot be ascertained. 

Where profitability and other financial 
performance of the traded service is not 
monitored regularly there is an increased 
risk that the services may be delivered at 
a loss to the Council and the service may 
be sustainable financially.  

Where non-financial performance of 
traded services is not monitored and 
reported, there is a risk that poor 
performance may not be remedied and 
the Council may suffer a loss of custom 
from dissatisfied customers. 

Separate accounts should be maintained to 
record all income and related expenditure 
including overheads and any other direct and 
indirect costs of providing the traded service. 

Trading accounts should be monitored 
regularly to check whether the profitability and 
growth targets are being achieved. Where the 
required profitability is not achieved, remedial 
action should be taken. 

Non-financial performance should also be 
monitored regularly to assess customer 
satisfaction and quality of services provided. 

Continuing viability of the traded services 
should be reviewed periodically to make a 
decision on whether the service should 
continue.  

Management Response 

Agreed 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Setting up separate accounts – Strategic Finance Director 

Other parts of this recommendation – Commercial Director 

1 April 2017 

1 April 2017 

  

P
age 171



 

 

  11 

4. Invoicing and Debt Recovery – Debt Management 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Medium Trading account debts are not currently 
identified and separated from statutory 
services debt to identify the debtors of 
traded services and determine whether 
measures should be put in place to 
improve debt prevention and recovery. 

Where trading account debts are not 
identified and separated from statutory 
services debts, there is a risk that the 
level of debt associated with the traded 
service is unknown. 

Where the debtor balances relating to the 
trading accounts are not known, there is 
also an increased risk that the cost of 
debtors (such as write offs) may not be 
correctly reflected in the trading account 
and the financial performance of the 
traded service may be inaccurate. 

Trading account debtors should be monitored 
separately from other non-traded services. 

Management Response 

Agreed 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Commercial director and Strategic Finance Director 1 April 2017 

 

  

P
age 172



 

 

  12 

 
5. Finance and Performance Management – Reporting of Remedial Actions against Trading Accounts Deficit 

Priority Issue Risk Recommendation 

Low Best Value Accounting code of Practice 
(BVACOP) requires that, where a 
trading account has sustained a deficit, 
disclosure must include reporting the 
remedial actions and the results of any 
such actions.  

In the 2014/15 financial year, the 
Council had a deficit on trading 
accounts (category – others) of 
£430,000. This deficit was reported in 
the financial statements but it was not 
accompanied by the required disclosure 
as indicated above. 

Where remedial action and result of the 
action is not reported, the Council is not 
complying with the BVACOP requirement 
and there is a risk that the deficit may 
continue in future due to a lack of 
remedial actions.  

The Council should disclose the remedial 
action proposed or already implemented for all 
trading accounts that have sustained a deficit 
in each financial year including the results of 
such actions as required by BVACOP. 

Management Response 

Agreed 

Responsible Officer Deadline 

Strategic Finance Director and Commercial Director 1 April 2017 

 

P
age 173



 

 

  13 

Appendix 2: Definition of Assurance Opinions and Recommendation 
Priorities 
In order to help put the audit opinion and recommendation priority ratings in context the following 
tables detail the current ratings used by Internal Audit. 

 

Rating Description 

 There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the objectives. Compliance 
with the control process is considered to be substantial and no material errors or 
weaknesses were found. 

 While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses and/or omissions 
which put some of the system objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the 
level of non-compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk. 

 Weaknesses and / or omissions in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk, and/or the level of non-compliance puts the system 
objectives at risk. 

 Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, 
and/or significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the system open to error 
or abuse. 

 

 Priority Description 

High Recommendation addresses fundamental weaknesses, which seriously compromise 
the effective accomplishment of the system’s objectives.   Risks presented by the 
control weaknesses could be damaging in the short term. The management action 
required should be implemented as soon as possible, certainly within 0-3 months. 

Medium Recommendation addresses serious weakness, which affect the reliance to be 
placed on the system.  Risks presented by control weaknesses could be damaging in 
the medium term. Management action is required within 0-6 months.  

Low Recommendation addresses minor weaknesses, or suggests a desirable 
improvement. Risks presented by control weaknesses are unlikely and 
inconsequential. Management action is recommended to address concerns within 0-
9 months. 

   

Su 

N 

L 

Sa 

Page 174



 

 

  14 

Appendix 3: Audit Scope and Limitations 
 
This audit was a full risk based review of the arrangements for Trading Accounts, and included the 
following areas: 
 

Ref 
Audit Area - 
Description 

Comments on Coverage / Area Objectives 

01 Policies and Procedures The circumstances under which trading accounts can be set up how 
they should be managed has been defined and communicated to staff. 

All staff across the Council are aware of, and act in compliance with, 
documented policies and procedures that reflect management and 
regulatory requirements. 

02 Set up and Review of 
Trading Accounts 

Trading accounts are only set up where there is a sound business case 
and the Council will make a sufficient return. 

The risks associated with setting up a trading account have been 
considered prior to setting up the traded service. 

Fees and charges have been set at an appropriate level to provide a 
service to the community, attract custom, and generate sufficient 
income for the Council. 

Trading accounts are subject to periodic review to confirm they 
continue to provide sufficient benefit to the Council. Opportunities to 
increase income or reduce the costs of running the service are 
identified and investigated. 

03 Service Provision Services are only provided to customers where there a sufficient return 
to the Council and an acceptable level of risk. 

Formal agreements are entered into with customers where appropriate. 

Services provided are monitored to ensure they are completed to the 
required quality standards. 

04 Invoicing and Debt 
Recovery 

Accurate invoices are promptly raised for all services delivered. 

All income due is received in full, on a timely basis. Where income is 
not received, effective action is taken to recover monies owed. 

05 Financial and 
Performance 
Management 

Suitable performance measures (including financial performance 
measures such as profitability and growth) have been set to monitor 
performance of the traded service. 

Management information is accurate and complete (including all costs 
and overheads). Receipt of data, collation, and review of management 
information take place in a timely manner. 

VAT is accounted for correctly in financial statements. 

The service is delivered within in line with the agreed performance 
measures and that any variances or irregularities are identified, and 
prompt corrective action taken. 

 

  

Page 175



 

 

  15 

Key risks  

The risk listed below is a potential inherent risk which is common for any system of this type: 

 Trading accounts may be set up where the Council will not make a sufficient return or in areas 
where it would be inappropriate or of high risk to do so. 

 Trading accounts may not be managed and monitored effectively leading to profit and growth 
targets not being achieved. 

 The true financial position of the trading account may be unknown leading to poor decision 
making. 

 Trading accounts may continue to operate where the market has changed and there is no 
longer a commercial reason to do so. 

 

Limitations to the Scope of the Audit 

The following limitations to the scope of the audit were agreed when planning the audit: 

 This is a high level review and will be based on examination of documentation and interviews 
with key officers with limited testing undertaken; 

 The audit review does not provide absolute assurance that material error, loss or fraud does not 
exist. 
 

Management should be aware that our internal audit work was performed in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal; Audit Standards which are different from audits performed in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.   
  
Similarly, the assurance gradings provided in our internal audit report are not comparable with the 
International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3000) issued by the International Audit 
and Assurance Standards Board. 
 
Our internal audit testing was performed on a judgemental sample basis and focussed on the key 
controls mitigating risks. Internal audit testing is designed to assess the adequacy and effectiveness 
of key controls in operation at the time of the audit.   
 
Please note that, in relation to the agreed scope, whilst our internal audit will assess the efficiency 
and effectiveness of key controls from an operational perspective, it is not within our remit as 
internal auditors to assess the efficiency and effectiveness of policy decisions. 
 

 

Page 176



 

 

  16 

 
Appendix 4: Timetable and Distribution List 
 

Stage Date 

End of Fieldwork 19/07/2016 

Draft Report Issued 27/07/2016 

Responses 
Received 

05/10/2016 

Final Report Issued 06/10/2016 

 

Audit Team 

Client Engagement Manager:  

Auditor:  

Auditee 

Michael Hainge – Commercial Director 

Client Sponsor 

Hitesh Jolapara – Strategic Finance Director 

 

Report Distribution List  

Michael Hainge – Commercial Director 

Copy Recipients of Report 

Hitesh Jolapara – Strategic Finance Director 

 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required.  Recommendations for 
improvements should be assessed by management for their full impact before they are implemented.  The performance of internal audit 
work is not and should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound management practices.  
We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls and the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses in internal controls, nor relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity.  Auditors, in conducting their work, 
are required to have regards to the possibility of fraud or irregularities.  Even sound systems of internal control can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance and may not be proof against collusive fraud.  Internal audit procedures are designed to focus on 
areas as identified by management as being of greatest risk and significance and as such we rely on management to provide us full 
access to their accounting records and transactions for the purposes of our audit work and to ensure the authenticity of these documents.  
Effective and timely implementation of our recommendations by management is important for the maintenance of a reliable internal 
control system. 

 

This report is prepared solely for the use of Audit Committee and senior management of the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham.  Details may be made available to specified external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be 
quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been 
prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

Page 177


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Certification of Grant Claims 2015-16
	Appendix 1 - Annual Report on Grants and Returns 2015-16

	5 External Audit Plan 2016-17
	Appendix 1 - External Audit Plan

	6 Health and Safety Checks - Progress Update
	7 Risk Management Highlight Report
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix 2 - Services Risk Extract Dashboard

	8 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan and Outstanding Recommendations for External Audit
	9 Internal Audit Plans 2017-18
	10 Internal Audit Quarterly Report
	11 Internal Audit Report - Mitie Contract Quality Assurance 2016-17
	12 Internal Audit Report - Trading Accounts 2015-16

